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Resources of a mainstream asset manager, investment mindset

of a boutique

BlueBay provides investment management services to institutions and
high net worth individuals, offering three distinct asset management styles
to Its mnvestors — long-only funds, long/short funds and structured products

We seek to provide asset management services characterised by active
management and a focus on absolute returns

We are developing the infrastructure of an asset manager many times
our current size, including a new London base with room to expand, and
distribution offices in Tokyo and New York
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Business Highlights

$13.1bn +66%

Assets under Management {" AuM ') of 313 1 bilhon a3 Profit ‘before tax up 66% 10 £51 6 mithion
at 30 June 2007, up 89% from the previcus year

£109.2m 6.0p

Total fee revenue up 44% to £109 milion Proposed dividend per share (subject to shareholder approval)

Initial public offering
BlueBay was admitted to the Official List of the UK Listing Authority
on 22 November 2006

New hedge fund
Launch of BlueBay Multi-Strategy Hedge Funds in April 2007 with AuM of
$0 6 billion as at 30 June 2007

Awards

¢ Emerging Market Debt Manager of the Year 2007 — Global Investor Awards

» Award for Excellence in Hedge Fund Operations — Best Operator in Fixed
Income Single Manager Europe 2007 — Financial News.

5th anniversary
July 2006 marked BlueBay’s 5th anniversary since inception highlighting the
significant growth In the organisation both In terms of AuM and resource

F|nanC|al nghllghtS for the year ended 30 June

2007 2006
Assets under Management $13.1bn $7 Obn
Net management fees * £610m £37 2m
Performance fees £48 2m £388m
Profit before tax ** £51 6m £31 tm
Profit after tax £352m £21 6m
Operating margin ** 45 2% 299%
Diluted earnings per share 18 Sp 15 8p
Dwidend per share **~ 6.0p n/a

Stated net of rebates and expense cag resmbursements For further details refer to page 21 of Business Review
* Stated after exceptional negms For further details refer to page 22 of the Business Review
*+* Praposed dwvidend per share subject 1o shareholder approval at the Annual Generat Meeting 1o be held on 14 November 2007
Private limited company prier te November 2006
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Two Secular Opportunities

BlueBay's business model is positioned to take
advantage of strong secular growth trends in
both European and global emerging market

debt markets.

European corporate debt market

Over the last decade, the intreduction of the Euro has created
a deep homogeneous debt capital market from what was
once a small, fragmented and illiqguid market The European
debt market has experienced rapid growth and continues to
exhibit faster growth momentum than its US counterpart

This growth has been fuelled by increases in

investor demand from dability driven institutsons such as
insurance companies and pension funds

the growing disintermedration of the banking sector from the
corporate lending process

leveraged buyout (LBO) activity

US vs European Public Corporate Bond Market
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Global emerging market debt

Emerging market debt has matured as an asset class in the last
decade such that it 1s now considered a mainstream asset class
across sovereign and corporate 1ssuers in a vanety of hard and,
more recently local currencies

Over the last few years, emerging market economies have
experienced

sustained robust domestic ecenomic growth
increased foreign exchange reserves
the general adoption of floating foreign exchange rates

The resultant market has seen
a steady increase n tradable hquid debt instruments and

dervative contracts
an upward moemerium in the credit quality of 1ssuers

Emerging market debt |
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As these markets have grown,

so has the demand for specialist
managers such as BlueBay with the
expertise to manage the full range
of debt instruments

BlueBay's European corporate debt AuM
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BlueBay's credentials

BlueBay'’s Eurcpean corporate debt investment management
capabilities cover the full credit spectrum from investment grade
bends to distressed debt

BlueBay’s emerging market debt AuM
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BlueBay's credentials

BlueBay's emerging market debt investment management
capabilities have evolved to cover sovereign external and local
currency debt as well as emerging market corporate debt
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BlueBay at a Glance

Founded in 2001, BlueBay is one of the largest
independent managers of fixed income credit
funds and products in Europe.

We specialise in two major sub-asset classes within the fixed income
credit markets

European Corporate Debt
Emerging Market Debt

Within each sub-asset class, BlueBay offers three distinct asset
management styles to its investors

long/short funds
long-only funds/products
structured products

BlueBay also manages segregated mandates on behalf of large
institutional investors

BlueBay's aim 15 to be a premier provider of investment solutions io
investors allocating to the sub-asset classes of European fixed
income and emerging market debt In order to achieve this we seek
to provide asset management services that are charactensed by

Upper quartile performance, driven by investment flexibility,
active management and a focus on absolute returns
Operational strength, including state-of-the-ari portfolio and
rnisk management systems and a robust comphance environment
High quality client service, with an emphasis on timely and
transparent performance reporting

These three interlocking disciphines, reflected in our organisational
structure, receive equal emphasis within BlueBay and together form
the basis of our approach to investment management

Landon

BlueBay's head office, founded in 2001
15 the main lacation for our investment,
infrastructure, distribution and chent
ServICINg resource

Tokyo
Opened n early 2005, our Tokyo office
services the region’s investors

New York

Our most recently opened office, n Aprl
2006 with dedicated trading and client
servicing resource

Based in London, with offices in Tokyo and New York,
BlueBay provides investment management services to
institutions and high net worth individuals globally
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Long/Short Funds

Relatively low volatiity products by industry standards which are
designed to produce high nsk adjusted returns to investors

Flagship Products Annualised returns
since inception' (%)
BlueBay Global Credit Fund 77

BlugBay Value Recovery Fund 141
BlueBay Emerging Market Total Return Fund 146
BlueBay Multi-Strategy Fund? 83
BlueBay Multi-Strategy PLUS Fung? 94

All Cayman Islands demicited corperate master-feeder fund
structures

i Returns 45 at 3G June 2007
2 Less than one year since inception BlueBay Mult-Strategy funds from 1 Apnl 2007

Long/short AuM growth
[ Longfshort

Sbn

6

5

4

3

2

1

OI_!l_li_l_[_]i_l !

Jun©2 Oec02 Jun03 Decdl n04 DecOd hundS5 DOecdlS hnOh  Cer R4

hn 07

Source BlueBay Aset Management ple

Long-only Funds

Actively managed products which are designed to produce targeted

excess returns versys their benchmarks aver the course of the credit cycle
Flagship Products Annualised alpha
since inceptiont (%)

BlueBay Investment Grade Bond Fund 15
BlueBay High Yield Bond Fund 38
BlueBay Emerging Market Bond Fund 38
BlueBay Emerging Market Local Currency

Bond Fund 49
BlueBay Emerging Market Select Bond Fund? 52

All sub-funds of the BlueBay Funds umbrella structure - a Luxembourg
UCITS fund which may be distributed in £U states under a single passpart
1 Excess returns as at 30 fune 2007

2 Less than one year since nception 8lueBay Emerging Market Select Fund from
30 November 2006

Long-only AuM growth |
[ Long-only !

$on
6

5

0 .—‘r"""lr"'-"\l_||——|

fun 02 DCec02 Jun03 DecB3 nB4 DecOd Jun05 Dec05 JunO6 Dec06 und?

Source ElueBay Asset Management plc

Structured Products

Developed to provide investors with customised investment solutions
not catered for by the Company's flagship long/short or long-only
funds These include

Fund Derivatives
Linked 1o our flagship fund strategies using principal protection
techmques or portable alpha structures

Structured Funds

These funds are 1ssued opportunistically and are designed to utilise
BlueBay's existing credit management skills and processes in either
the long/short or long-only strategies

Annuahised returns
since inception' (%)
137

Flagship Product

BlueBay European Credit Qpportunity Fund

1 Returns as at 30 June 2007

Structured products AuM growth
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Chairman’s Statement

Hans-Jorg Rudioff
Chairman

Prudent nisk management |
combined with robust infrastructure
have been essential building
blocks of the business.

A year of sustained growth

This 15 the first Annual Report that BlueBay Asset
Management plc (“BlueBay” or the "Company"} has issued
since 1ts admission to the Official List of the UK Listing
Authonty ("Listing”} In November 2006 Having been the
Chairman of the Company since 1ts foundation in 2001, it s
particularly gratifying to see the achievement of our long-held
ambition of a flotation on the London Stock Exchange just
five years after the Company was founded

It gives me great pleasure to report that this has been anather year
of sustained growth with an Increase in Assets under Management
("AuM") of 89% to $13 1 billien, an increase in total fee revenues
of 44% 1o £109 2 million and an increase in after tax profits of 63%
t0 £35 2 million Fully diluted earnings per share increased from

15 8 pence per share in the year to 30 June 2006 to 18 5 pence

per share in the financial year to 30 June 2007

We will be proposing a dividend of 6 0 pence per share payable
10 all shareholders on the register at 26 October 2007 t¢ be pad
on 23 November 2007

It is encouraging that the growth has been broadly based across all
products Existing funds continued to grow while new funds were
launched in each of the products n fong/short funds, the BlueBay
Multi-Strategy Fund and the BlueBay Multi-Strategy PLUS Fund

( BlueBay Mult-Strategy Funds”) in long-only funds, the BlueBay
Emerging Market Salect Bond Fund and in structured products,
the 8lueBay Emerging Market Opportumity Fund In terms of
geographical distribution, Europe continues to be the principal
source of assets representing just over two thirds of the assets
raised The share represented by Asia and Australia has increased
10 19% at the end of the year from 13% a year earler

Throughout most of the year credit spreads were at histoneally low
levels with low levels of index volatdity and little credt differenuation
For firms such as BlueBay with its strong credit analysss capabilities

and stock-picking skills this was a difficult environment in which to
generate outstanding performance Nevertheless, fund perfermance
during the year was solid resulting in a blended return on the
long/short products of 10 4% net of fees All of the flagship long-
only funds continued to outperform their benchmarks

Fraom its inception in 2001, prudent risk management combined with

robust infrastructure have been essential bullding blocks of the

business These have continued to evolve as the business has grown

and a number of new initiatives were undertaken during the year

to 30 June 2007 In the early part of 2007, we commissioned KPMG

to carry out an extensive review of the Company's internal control

envircnment to ensure that it would be able to meet the demanding

requirements of the Audit and Assurance Faculty 01/06 (" AAF

01/06" } external reparting standards applicable to asset

management businesses in the UK |

At the time of Listing a number of changes took place on the Board
The representatives of our institutioral shareholders, Roger lenkins
(Barclays Bank PLC) and Mike Militello (Shinset Bank, Limited) both
resigned We would like 1o thank them both for their cantinual
support of the Company during the early part of its development
We welcomed two new independent non-executive directors,
Terence Eccles and Tom Cross Brown as well as Nick Wilhamns and
Alex Khein, who joined the Board as executive directors James
Brace the Company’s General Counsel has been of invaluable
assistance to the Board in meeting 115 legal and regulatory
responsibilities as a public company and, in recogmtion of his
contribution, he was appainted Company Secretary from July 2007

Since the end of the financial year, financial markets in general
and credit markets in particular have been severely affecied by
the resurfacing of concerns about sub-prime mortgages n the US,
leading to the hquidhiy crisis which has prompted unprecedented
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levels of central bank intervention In the short term, this wili have
an impact on all the participants in the ftnancial markets BlueBay
included However through its prudent risk management, BlueBay
has avoided exposing the long side of any of its funds to sub-prime
morigages either directly or through derwative structures which
repackage debts backed by sub-prime mortgages It should therefore
be well placed to weather the current turmoil in the financial
markets In the longer term, the Board remains optimistic about the
two secular opportunibies which led to BlueBay's foundation, namely
the creation of a single unified market for Eurapean corporate debt
following the introduction of the Euro and the growth and maturing
of the markets for global emerging market debt

The Cempany weuld not have been able to achieve its ambitions
without the hard work of its employees To them we owe our thanks
for therr enthusiasm, commitment and unswerving dedication to
achieving the Companys abjectives
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Chief Executive's Review

Hugh Willis
Chief Executive

Asset growth has been

driven and underpinned by
solid investment performance -
the backbone of any asset
management firm

2007 — An important and successful year

2007 was an important and successful year for BlueBay The
Group performed well in 2007 with continued growth in AuM
(up 89% to §13 1 bilhion) and profit before tax (up 66% to £516
mithon) Growth was driven by good performance across the
Group's funds and products and strong investor demand for its
asset management services In November 2006, moreover, the
Group realised 1ts long established objective of successfully
gaining admission of BlueBay's ordinary shares to the Offical
List of the UK Listing Authority and to trading on the main
market of the London Stock Exchange, and was subsequently
admitted to the FTSE 250 index in March 2007

Group strategy

The Group’s strategy since its inception in 2001 has been to position
itself as a leading institutional asset manager in two particutarly fast
growing sectors of the global fixed income credit markets European
corporate debt and emerging market debt In constructing the optimum
business modal to achieve this, we have adhered to two key principles

That modern institutional investors have a strong preference for
employing asset management firms able to offer both
comprehensive infrastructure and strong nsk-adjusted fund
performance, and that this combination is surprisingly rare, and
That the traditional boundaries between long-only funds and hedge
funds are breaking down fast, and that asset management firms
seeking scaleable busimnesses must offer investors a range of
absolute return styte products spanning bath disciplines

2007 has seen continued validation of the Group’s focused strategy, with
powerful secular growth continuing in its two target markets — European
corporate debt and emerging market debt — and the Group winning

significantly increased market share across its major sub-asset class range

2007 results

The most obvious manifestation of this has been rebust growth in
AuM across the Group’s funds and products from $7 0 bilhon in June
2006 to 313 1 bilhan in June 2007 Growth has been strong across
all disciplnes, with lang/short assets nsing 76% to %4 9 billion, long-
only assets nising 117% to 35 6 hillion and structured product assets
rsing 65% te $2 6 bilhon

This asset growth has been driven and underpinned by solid investment
performance - the backbone of any asset management firm The Group's
five flagship long/short funds returned a blended average 10 4% net
of fees, marginally ahead of budgeted performance Its five main long-
only funds all beat ther indices over the year, by between 1 1 and 69
percentage points, with both of 1ts European corporate bond funds
and one of its emerging markets funds ranking as the best performing
in their sectors since launch A satisfactory year of performance was
rounded off with BlueBay recewving the prestigicus Giobal Investor
2007 Emerging Market Debit Award for Investment Excellence

Solid investment performance was accempanied by continued
investment in the Group's frastructure platform - with the firm’s
achievements in this sphere being marked by it receiving an award
for excelience in hedge fund operations — Best Operator in Fixed
Income Single Manager — Eurgpe 2007 from Financial News

The benefits of the Group’s focus on bullding first class systems,
compliance, legal and nisk infrastructure are now being felt daly,
with Institutional investors regularly ating BlueBay's strength in these
areas as a key differentiztor in manager selection

Despite rapid year on year asset growth and continued infrastructure
investment, the Group was successfut during the year both in
maintaining premium management fee marging and in improving
operating margins once more This aliowed pre-tax profits and diluted
earnings per share to nse 10 £51 6 million and 18 5 pence respectively
Notable improvements in the quality of earnings were also achieved
over the year with the proportion of overall management fees denving
from the Group’s long-only and structured product funds nsing from
25% to 36% and the proportion of total revenues represented by
management rather than performance fees nsing from 48% to 56%

Listing

The admission of BiueBay's shares to the Official List of the UK Listing
Authonty In November 2006 was a milestone event for the firm
Planned since BlueBay's inception 1n 2001, the flotation allowed the
Group to make avadable an exit to 1its onginal institutional equity
backers ~ Barclays Bank PLC and Shinsel Bank, Limited, to improve
further the Group’s transparency to the benefit of its fund investors,
and to equip 1tself with a potent currency with which to continue to
attract and retain talented people The flotation was successful, with
the maximum number of shares allotted
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People

Asset management companies are ulumately dependent upon therr
people and BlueBay's success to date has Deen a direct function of its
ability to attract and retain the very best people in the industry We are
requred te do this in a highly competitive market place and therefore
attach considerable importance to ensunng that BlueBay s a pleasant
and rewarding place to work While competitive cash compensaticn
structures and a collegiate working environment are iImportant elements
of tms programme, at 1is heart hes the important pnnciple of unversat
equity ownership 58% of BlueBay's equity was held by its employees at
year end, with all of the Group's permanent UK employees given the
opporiunity to own shares 1n the firm BlueBay's employees also hold
In excess of $100 million of personal investments 1n BlueBay funds

Our forus on ensurning that BlueBay remains a real community was also
behind the decision we 100k in May to relocate the entire London office
{0 a new building in Grosvenor Stieet (pictured on the cover of the
Annual Report) at the end of this calendar year We selected this option
over an alternative that would have involved sphiting the London office
nto two locatans, and are confident that the incremental investment
involved will show both tangible and mtangible benefits over time

Outlook

The first two months of the current financal year (July and August)
have been, as already well documented, extremely difficult for credit
rarkets What began as a sub-prime mortgage crisis in the US has
spilled over into the broader credit arena and severe losses have
been expenenced by many market pariicipants This s gwang nse

to a more challenging credit environment than we have seen for
some years and it appears unhkely that the second half of the
current calendar year will be an easy one for our industry 1in general

Against the background of a challenging credit environment, trading
at BlueBay has been satisfactory in July and August AuM have nisen
7% over the penod - from $13 1 billion to $14 0 bilion — and the
Group has accrued positive performance fee income duning the penod

Imporianily, BlueBay 15 benefiting in the current environment from the
conservative approach 1t has histonically taken to structured credit
products which have proven to be a particularly difficult area for
managers that have been more aggressive in this space in recent years
Specifically, BlueBay has avoided any structured products that are
exposed 1o refinancing risk, the structured investment vehicle (“SV™)

market and refatad SV-ite struciures being prime examples of this
We remain an opportunistic 1ssuer of collateralised debt obligations
("CDOs"), with our only 1ssued transaction to date being a 2005
emerging market vehicle whose entire 1ssued note base was upgraded
t0 AAA some time ago and which remains very stable  We have not
1ssued any collateralised loan obligations ("CLOs™), pnmarily due to
our views on term levarage at this point in the credit cycle and it also
remains the case that none of BlueBay's funds or preducts has had
any direct long-side exposure ta the sub-prime mortgage market

Locking to the immediate future, we expect the current difficult credit
market conditions to persist in the near future It seems highly Iikely
that major central banks will soon cut rates - maybe significantly ~ in
order to unblock the arteries of credit markets and prevent a short-
term liquidity crisis triggering an accelerated recession Qur base case
15 that such action wilt ultimately be successful and that an early end
to the current credit cycle will be avoided The process of restoring
order to credit markets is nevertheless hkely to take some time, and
10 involve further pain for market participants who have become
overextended in recent times However, this s likely to be a very
nteresting environment for investors and asset managers whose
portfolio hquidity and investment skills equip them 1o take advantage
of forced seling and distressed prices

More generally, we believe that the hughly favourable combination

of asset class and industry developments that have driven BlueBay's
growth over the last six years are set to continug From an asset class
perspective, European corporate debt markets remain at a relatively
early stage of therr development and set for further pronounced
secular growth while emerging market debt continues to be
embraced by an increasing number of investors worldwide as an
Important, mainstream asset class From an industry perspective,

the growing populanty of specialist managers, absolute return style
investment processes and open architecture distribution continue
disproportionately to benefit parformance-driven brand names such
as our own BlueBay remains particularly well positioned, in our view,
to continue 1@ benefit from this remarkable confluence of trends

A thank you

I would Iike to close my remarks by extending my thanks to all the
members of BlueBay's staff that have made possible the Group's success
to date We will continue to rely upon therr skill and dedicatton for our
future success, and we do so with confidence




BlueBay Asset Management plc
Annual Report 2007

11|

Business Review

12 BlueBay - a brief hisiory

12 Industry environment

13 Requlatory environment

14 Strategic objectives and highlights of 2007
15 Non-financial business drivers

20 Financial business drivers

22 Capital and capital management
23 Cash flow

23 Returns 1o shareholders

24 Profit disiribution

24 Accounting standards and policies




BlueBay Asset Management pl¢
Annual Report 2007

112

Business Review

Nick Willtams
Chief Financial Officer

BlueBay’s overall aim 1s to
provide a broad range of credit
products that gives the modern
Investor strong nisk-adjusted
performance over time

One of the largest independent managers
of fixed income credit in Europe

BlueBay - a brief history

BlueBay was founded in London in July 2001 and recewved
authonsation from the FSA 1n Qctober 2001 The Company was
formed by its Chief Executive Officer, Hugh Willis, and 1ts Chief
Investment Officer, Mark Pocle, with financial support from Barclays
Bank PLC and Shinser Bank, Lirmted These two nstitutional investors
provided the Company with the bulk of the significant imtial capnal
resources required to create 1ts scalable busmess platform

BiueBay 15 now one of the largest independent managers of fixed
income credit funds and products tn Europe, with a total of

$13 1 bilhon of Assets under Management as at 30 June 2007
BlueBay's ordinary shares were admitted to the Official List of the
UK Listing Authority and to trading on the main market of tha
London Stock Exchange on 22 Novemnber 2006

BlueBay was founded in order to capitalise on strong growth trends
in the European and emerging market fixed income debt markets
The introduction of the Euro in 1999 paved the way for the creation
of a unified market for European carporate debt Since the nadir of
the Russian debt default in 1998, there has been a dramatic
improvement in the scope and quality of the markets for emerging
market fixed income debt

BiueBay speciahises in two major sub-asset classes of credit -
European corparate debt and emerging market debt Within each
sub-asset class, BlueBay offers three distinct product hines long/short
funds long-only funds and structured products Its long/short

funds are designed as low volatility products by industry standards,
intended to preduce attractive high rnsk-adjusted returns to investors
over the long term Hs fong-only funds are designed as actively
managed praducts with the objective of producing targeted excess
returns over therr benchmarks over the course of the credit cycle

Its structured products are managed to prowide investors with
custormised investment solutions not catered for by the Company’s
flagship funds The Company also manages a number of segregated
long-only accounts on behalf of large institutional clients BlueBay's
overall aim s to provide a broad range of credit preducts that gwes
the modern investor strong risk-adjusted performance over time

BlueBay distributes its products directly, through wholesalers and via
intermediaries It does so through its sales and marketing teams
based in London, Tokyo and New York BlueBay's distnibution
capabilities are further enhanced by its structured products actvities,
which allow 1t 10 access the investor bases of the major investment
banking partners through which the Company typically launches its
structured products

Industry environment

Secular credit market opportuntties

BlueBay was founded in response 10 two secular developments in
the debt capital markets The first was the advent of a mainstream
European corporate debt market, sparked by the intraduction of the
Euro in 1959 The second was the rapid growth from 1998 cnwards
of global emerging market debt as a major asset class

The global corporate debt market comprises all publicly traded
debt tnstruments other than those 1ssued by governments and supra-
national agencies Within this market, the US corporate debt market
Is estimated to be the largest single component in terms of value of
instruments outstanding, currently estimated at $2 75 tnllion {Source
Merrill Lynch) The European corporate debt market 15 estimated to be
approximately half this size ($1 4 tnlhon of instruments outstanding
(Source Merrill Lynch)) but has experienced faster growth in recent
years, driven by the introduction of the Euro (which facilitated the
development of a hamogenous debt capital market in Europe), the
trend of growing disintermediation of the banking system from the
credit process, and an increase in leveraged buyout actmity (which has
been significantly funded through the debt markets) In addition,
strong demand for fixed income instruments from habity-drven
nvestors seeking yield in a low interest rate environment has been an
important growth driver Given the comparable size of Gross Domestic
Product of the EU and the US, we believe that In the medium to
fong term, the European corporate debt market wilk canunue to
expenience strong growth, similar to that witnessed in the US
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Emerging markets have histoncally accounted for only a small part of
the global secunties markets, with investor demand being dampened
by bmited 1ssuance and liquidity, insufficient data quality and the
significant volatility in the asset class However, following a number
of major financial cnises during the 1990s {the most significant of
which was the Russian default crisis of 1998), volatility in the asset
class has steadily reduced, credit quality has improved and
diversification has increased across the asset class in terms of the
total number of 15suing countries and corporations These trends
have been sustained by rocbust domestic economic growth, the
gereral adoption of floating forewgn exchange rates and mereased
foreign exchange reserves, all of which have driven the upward
momenturmn 1n ratings  The resutting growth In the asset class has
also been enhanced by the increasing 1ssuance of securnities
denominated in local currencles

Market performance in 2006-07

As a specialist fixed income credit asset manager, the assets we
manage are predominately exposed to the global credit markets With
the exception of the initial concerns surrounding the US sub-prime
mortgage market which sudfaced in the spring of 2007 and then
receded until the summer, credit market conditions were relatively
benign throughout the financial year High yield and emerging market
indices recorded high single-digi/double-digit returns and investment
grade indices were also in positive terrtory

The indices against which we benchmark our flagship long-only
funds recorded the follawing returns during the financial year

Long-only flagship funds index returns %
@om Ewo Corporatestnden 103%
Mernll Lynch European Currency High Yield Constrained Index 803%
JP Morgan EMBI Glebal Divarsified Index 13 40%
AP Morgan GBI-EM Broad Dversitied USD Unhedged Index 22 03%
50% JPM GBI-EM Global Dwersified Index 50% JPM GBI-EM Broad

Dwersified YSD Unhedged Index * 5 49%

*since nception on 30 November 2006

The bemgn conditions were supported by

Continuing steady growth in the global economy, particularly
outside the US, and

A generally accommodative stance taken by the US Federal
Reserve throughout the penod

Market performance since June 2007

It has been well documented that credit markets have experienced
significant disruptions durning July and August 2007 Our views on
these events are set out in {he Chief Executive's review on page @

Regulatory environment

Existing regulatory relationships

BlueBay Asset Management pk is authonsed and regulated by the
Financial Services Authonty ("FSA") in the UK It also has an EU
investment services passport to provide cross-border services into
other EEA States it 1s registered with the US Securities and Exchange
Commussion {“SEC") in the United States as an investment adviser
It 15 the promoter, investment manager and principal sales agent

of BlueBay Funds, a SICAV which 1s subject to supervision

by the Commussion de Survelllance du Secteur Financier {(*CSSF )

in Luxembourg Finally, BlueBay Asset Management plc and its
subsidiary, BlueBay Asset Management fapan Limited have both
been registered as investment advisers with the Kanto Local Finance
Bureau In Japan

Regulatory developments

On 1 January 2007, the EU Capital Reguirements Directive (* CRC™)
came Into force in the UK This introduced new rules for the
calcutation of base capital, fixed overhead, market risk, credit nsk
and operational risk requirements Firms were given the option to
defer certain elements of the new credit nsk and operational risk
requirements to 1 January 2008, including calculation of operational
nsk requirement based on an Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment
Pracess ("ICAAP*} In conmjunction with our external professional
adwisers, we are carrying out a project to prepare for the new rules
effective from 1 January 2008 We expect this will not result in any
significant change In our overall regulatory capital requirements
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Figure 1 Investor analysts by investor type (2006-2007)

2006

-

2007

(S

Source BlueBay Asset Management plc

1 Instrutional

2 Fund of funds
3 Pewvate Clent 5% 5%
4 Distribution/White Labelling and ather

2006 2007
51% 60% |
29% 24%

15% 11%

On 1 November 2007, the Markets 1 Financial Instruments Directive
("MIFID") will be implemented throughout the EU replacing the
current Investmeni Services Directive ("ISD”) In comunction with our
external professional advisers, we have carried out an assessment of
the impact of this new directive on our business and a project to
prepare for its implementation

During the course of the year, we set up a surte of funds designed for
distribution into the USA We anticipate that a number of potential
investors into these funds will be “Employee Benefit Plans” subject
to Employment Retirernent Income Secunty Act (“ERISA”) legistation
1n the US Where the investors which qualify as "Employee Benefit
Plans” represent more than a given proportion of an investment
fund's total assets, the fund becomes subject t0 ERISA legislation
and consequently the investment adwiser to that fund must meet the
requirernents of a Qualif:ed Professional Asset Manager (" QPAM' }
In conjunction with our professional advisers in the US, we have
ensured that we meet these QPAM requirements

in August 2006, BlueBay was informed by the FSA that, as part of
thetr general momitoring of the asset management industry, BlueBay
would be assigned to a supervision team which will visit the
Company at a future date

Strategic objectives and highlights of 2007

We believe we are a leading prowder of European and emerging
market debt asset management products This has been achieved by
combining asset class specialisation with product breadth Recent
developments tn the asset management Industry have favoured the
growth of specialised asset managers over the mare traditional
generalists We believe it i1s difficult to excel in a wide range of
disparate investment chsciplines and that focus on a narrower range
of asset classes produces superior returns We therefore provide
clients with products within the asset class of credit with a range of
different nisk-return profiles from absolute-return onented long/short
funds to principal-protected fong-anly fund dervatives

BlueBay's financral objectives are to maximise growth 1n revenues,
profits and earnings per share over tme Dunng the course of the
financial year, revenues increased 43 8% to £109 2 milion, profits
before tax increased by 66 2% to £51 & million and diluted earnings
per share increased from 15 8 pence in 2006 to 18 5 pence 1n 2007

In order 10 continue to meet these objectives, BlueBay will focus on
the following drivers AuM growth (with particular focus on the
components of growth and product/assel mix), fund performance,
business rsk management, fee levels, cost control and earnings quality

Growing AuM

BlueBay tntends to grow its AuM through a cambination of scaling
existing products, faunching new flexible and innovative ones and
expanding the Group’s distribution reach both geographically and
by sales channel Duning the course of the year, total AuM increased
by 88 5% to $13 1 biflion The growth i the long-only products
was the most pronounced, tncreasing by 116 6% over the year to
$5 & bilion Long/short AuM increased by 76 1% 1o $4 9 billion

Cn 2 April 2007 BlueBay launched rts first new long/short funds since
2003, the BlueBay Multi-Strategy Funds and by 30 June 2007, these
new funds had atiracted $653 million In AuM During the financial
year 2007-08, we expect to add a convertible bond investment
management capability to our platform starting with a convertible
arbitrage compartment in the new BlueBay Mulu-Strategy Funds
Over the medium to long term, we may consider, subject to mnvestor
demand and the identification of suitable personnel, expansion into
one ar more additional adjacent asset classes

BlueBay's fund investors are primarnly institutional clients making

up 60% of BlueBay's AuM as at 30 June 2007 (up from 51% as at

30 June 2006) with fund of funds chents making up 24% (down from
29%),), private chents remained at 5% and distnbutonAwhite labelling
and other 11 % (down from 15%) (see figure 1) By geographical
range Europe accounted for 68% of BlueBay's AuM as at 30 fune
2007 (down from 73% as at 30 June 2008), Asiz/Ausiralia accounted
for 19% (up from 13%) and the US accounted for 10% {down from
13%) (see figure 2)
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Figure 2 investor analysis by geographical region (2006-2007)

2006 2007
a | o“ 2006 2007
1 Europe 3% 68%
2 Asiz/Australa 13% 19%
3Us 13% 10%
4 Middle East/Africa 1% 2%
5 Other 0% 1%

Dehivering fund performance

BlueBay maintains a strong focus on fund perfarmance by continuing
to pay paruicular attention to the hinng and retention of top
investment professionals, the rigorous management of portfolio nsk
and prudent strategy capacity management During the course of the
year to 30 June 2007, the blended return net of fees on the BlueBay
longsshort funds was 10 4%, shghtly ahead of our budgeted rate of
10% All of our long-only flagship funds generated excess returns
over their benchmarks varying from 111 basis points to 687 basis
points during the financial year The BlueBay European Credit
Cpporturuty Fund cur flagship structured fund produced an annual
return of 13 8% over the financial year

Managing bustness rnisk

BlueBay maintains a strong focus on risk management The Directors
believe that robust nsk management, along with good fund
performance, wilt be a key determinant of the Company’s success
over time The key risks facing 8lueBay are described in the Business
Risk section on page 19 A more comprehensive review of BlueBay's
approach to nsk management 1s included in the Risk Management
and Internal Control section on pages 46 to 48

Maximising fee levels

BlueBay seeks to maximise fee levels on its products and believes
that this will be a result of both performance and a focus on
attractve mandate margins, particularly on its long-cnly platform
BlueBay sntends to continue 1ts pohcy in relation to s long/short
funds of charging a 2% annual management fee and a 20%
performance fee on all assets raised from unrelated parties Within
its long-only business it continues 1ts policy of only discounting for
size (subject to satisfactory mimmum fee levels) For the year to

30 June 2007 management fee yields on all long-only products
were 62 basis pomtis, in line with the 61 basis points recorded for
the year to 30 June 2006 BlueBay also seeks to promote the
proportion of its funds sold in fund dervatve format In relation
to stand alone structured products, BlueBay seeks to maximise fees
by remaining an opportunistic, rather than a programme, 1ssuer of
product During the course of the financial year, BlueBay launched
a new structured fund, the BlueBay Emerging Market Opportunity
Fund

Controlling costs

BlueBay intends to continug its firm-wide focus on cost control, with
the goal of improving operating margins over time to a medium-
term target of 50% In order to do this, it wll focus on the three
main components of Its cost base perfarmance-based compensation
costs, non-performance based compensation costs and non-
compensation costs and will seek 1o manage the former in relation
to performance fees and the latter two i relation to management
fees Performance-based compensation costs are those which are
hinked directly or indirectly to investment performance Due tc a
combination of the mechanics of the bonus deferral scheme and
competitive pressures In the market for top investment professionals,
BlueBay expects this wifl increase over time from the current level of
42 8% of performance fees Non-performance based compensation
costs and non-compensation costs are expected 1o decrease as a
percentage of managemeant fees as the business continues to scale

Enhancing earnings gquality

BlueBay intends to further target continued improvement over time
In the quality of 1ts earnings We believe that earnings quality

15 a function of performance fee dependency, performance fee
volatility and mandate term BlueBay therefore focuses on the
reduction of its performance fee dependency over time (as a
function of the intended scaling of its long-only and structured
product businesses), continuing to target low volatity, nsk-adjusted
returns within its long/short fund business and to maximise the
proportion of its funds sold in siructured format In the financal
year 2007, performance fees as a percentage of total fee revenuyes
dropped to 44 2% from 51 1% In the previous financial year

At BlueBay performance fees are predominately generated by the
long/short funds The volatility of the blended returns on these funds
continued to be low at 3 3% leading to a blended Sharpe Ratio of
2 9 By 30 June 2007, the structured products AuM total had
increased by 64 8% over the previous year to 32 6 billwon

Non-finanaal business drivers

There are three key non-financial drivers of the business, the grewth
of the Assets under Management (which includes components of
growth and product/asset class mix), fund performance and the
effective management of business risk
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Figure 3 AuM growth by product
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Assets under Management

AuM grawth

During the course of the financial year, AuM increased by $6 1 billion
to reach $13 1 bill'on at 30 June 2007 All products contributed 1o
this mcrease with long/short increasing by $2 1 billion to $4 9 billion,
long-only increasing by 33 0 billion to 35 6 billion, and structured
products increasing by $1 0 billion to $2 6 bilion (see figure 3)

Componrents of AuM growth

Of the increase n AuM of $6 t billon dunng the financial year
2007 net subscriptions contributed 35 0 bilhon while net fund
perfarmance contributed $1 1 billion The tables below prowide the
breakdown of net subscriptions Into gross subscriptions and gross
redemptions Subscriptions and redemptions record the gross
movements Into and cut of the funds managed by BlueBay as
recorded by the transfer agents or custodians N¢ adjustments have
been made to reflect switches of investments between investment
tunds managed by BlueBay

Dec 04 Jun 05 Dec 05 Jun 06 Dec 06 Jun 07 |

AuM growth in long/short funds for years ended 30 June as indicated

2007 2006

sm $m

Beginring of peniod AuM 2,804 1,853
Subscriptions 2 411 1177
Redemplions (645) (499)
Net subscriptions 1,766 678
Het fund perfermance 368 273
End of penod AuM 4938 2,804

b} Long-only Funds

Of the $3 0 bilhon increase in long-only AuM, $2 5 billion arises
from net subscriptions and $0 5 bitfion from net fund performance
2007 saw the introduction of twe new long-only sub-funds, (the
BlueBay Emerging Market Select Band Fund and the SIM BlueBay
Emerging Market Local Currency Bond Fund}, and five new
segregated mandates

AuM growth in tong-only funds for years ended 30 June as indicated

2007 2006

AuM growth in BlueBay funds for years ended 30 June as indicated $m Sm

2007 2006 Beginning of pericd AuM 2,574 705
$m m

Beginning of period AuM 6,959 3,022 Subscnptions 2939 1 950

Redemptions {449) {179}

Subscriptions 6429 4296  Net subscriptions 2,490 1,771

Regemptions (1353) {(778)  Net fund performance 511 98
Net subscniptions 5,076 3,518

Net fund performance 1083 439 End of perigd AuM 5,575 2,574
End of penod AuM 13,118 6959

a) Long/short Funds

Of the $2 1 billion increase in long/shoart AuM net subscriptions
contributed $1 8 billion and net fund performance 30 3 bilhion

In Apn! 2007, BlueBay launched its first new long/short funds since
Navemnber 2003 The BlueBay Multi-Strategy Funds, which invest in
a number of sirategies across the two sub-asset classes, closed the
year with net subscriptions of $646 milhon
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BlueBay's AuM by product/sub-asset class mix as at 30 June 2007

—E:Fapagn - - Er‘n—ergmg—__ T Subtotals
Carparate Market by praduct
debt debit bne
Product Lines $m m §m %
Long/shert funds
BlueBay Global Credit Fund 298 - 298 23%
BlueBay Value Recovery Fund 2820 - 2,820 215%
BlueBay Ernerging Market Total Return Fund - 1167 1,167 §5%
BlueBay Multi-Strategy Funds 400 253 653 50%
Total long/short funds 3.518 1,420 4938 377%
Lorg-only funds
BlueBay Invesiment Grade Bond Fund 285 - 285 22%
BlueBay High Yield Bond Fund 1246 - 1246 95%
BlucBay Emerging Market Bond Fund - 1300 1,300 95%
BlueBay Emerging Market Locat Currency Bond Fund - 621 621 4 7%
SIM BlueBay Emerging Market Local Currency Bond Fund - 610 610 4 1%
BlueBay Emerging Market Select Bend Fund - 127 127 09%
1531 2.658 4,189 3N 9%
Segregated accounts 1202 184 1386 106%
Total long-only funds/praducts 2733 2,842 5575 42 5%
Structured products
Fund denvatives linked to fong enly and long/short funds 285 1141 2026 154%
Struciured funds 429 150 579 44%
Total structured products 1,314 1,291 2,605 19 8%
Subtotal by sub-asset class 7,565 5,553 13,118
Sub-asset class share of total 57 7% 42 3% 1000%

¢} Structured products
Cf the $1 0 billion increase in structured products AuM, net

subscriptions contnbuted $0 8 bilkon and net fund performance
$0 2 billon 2007 saw the launch of a new structured fund, the
BlueBay Emerging Market Opportunity Fund and several new fund

derwvatives products

AuM growth in structured products for years ended 30 June as indicated

2007 2006

$m $m

Beginning of penod AuM 1.581 465
Substnpnons 1078 1168
Redemptions {259) {99)
Net subscriptions 819 1,069
Net fund performance 203 47
End of period AuM 2,605 1.581

Product and sub-asset class mix
The breakdown of our AuM between European corporate debt
progducts and emerging market debt products 5 dlustrated by the

table above

The ratio of the sub-asset class mix for European corporate debt and
emerging market debt was 58/42 as at 20 June 2007 comparad to

651/39 as at 30 June 2006

Fund performance
a} Long/short funds

For the financial year to 30 June 2007, the annual returns net of fees
were 15 8% for the BlueBay Emerging Market Total Return Fund

9 7% for the BlueBay Value Recovery Fund (US$ share class) and 0 4%
for the BlueBay Global Credit Fund Durning their first three months
since launch, the BlueBay Multi-Strategy Fund and the BlueBay Multi-
Strategy PLUS Fund generated returns net of fees of 2 1% and 2 4%
respectively The blended long/short annual return was 10 4% which 1s
sightly ahead of the budgeted return rate of 10 0%



BlueBay Asset Management plc
Annual Report 2007

18

Business Review continues

Fund performance for peniods indicated

fFerformance (%)

Anaualised Annualised
Year ended since volatlity since Risk
Product Fund 30 June 2007 mnception inception ratiox’
Long/short'  BlueBay Global Credit Fund o4 77 40 12
BluaBay Emerging Market Total Return Fund 158 146 62 18
BlugBay Value Recovery Fund 97 141 42 25
BlueBay Mult-Strategy Fund B3 83 26 11
BlueBay Multi-Strategy PLUS Fund 94+ 94 39 10
Long-only* BlueBay Investmen. Grade Bond Fund 3t 51 24 25
index_Boxx Euru Corporatey 20 3 24
Alpha 11 15
BlueBay Emerging Market Bond Fund 1490 169 58 22
Index JP Morgan EMEBI Global Diversified 114 131 59
Alpha 26 38
BlueBay Emerging Market Locat Currency Bond Fund 289 183 82 16
Index_JP Morgan GBi-EM Broad Diversified USD Unhedged 220 133 70
Alpha 69 49
BlueBay High Yield Bond Fund 93 167 32 13
Index Merrnl) Lynch European Currency High Yield Constrained 80 129 42
Alpha 13 g
BlueBay Emerging Market Select Bond Fund 14 9** 149 48 21
Index 50% JPM EMBI Global Diversified and
o . __50% JPM GBI-EM Broad Dwersified USD Unhedged 97 87T _3e
. Alpha o . o 52 52 e
Structured B - T T T T
Products _ BlueBay European Credit Opporiunity Fund e 138 137 e 19 .56
Notes

All perfermance and risk data shown on a net of fees basis (*annualised since inception date 1/4/07)
All performance and nisk data shown on a gross of fees basis {(**annualised since mception date 30/11/06)
 Risk Ratios
Long only The information ratic measures the added return per unit of added nisk
tong/short and The Sharpe ratio 15 the risk-adjusted measure which is calculated using standard deviation and excess return to determine reward per unit risk
structured products Stendard dewauon indicates the volaubity of a portioho 5 1o1al return as a measure against s mean performance

b} Long-only funds

For the leng-only flagship funds the relative returns for the year to
30 June 2007 were all ahead of their benchmarks The relative
returns for the year were 111 hasss points ahead of the index far the
BlueBay Investment Grade Bond Fund, 259 basis points ahead of the
index for the BlueBay Emerging Market Bond Fund, 125 basis points
ahead of the index for the BlueBay High Yield Bond Fund, 687 basis
points zhead of the index for the BlueBay Emerging Market Local
Currency Bond Fund and 520 basis paints ahead of the index for the
BlueBay Emerging Market Select Bond Fund

¢) Structured products

Fund Dervatives comprise a large proportion of our structured
products platform The returns generated on each of these funds
clasely murrors the returns of the related flagshup langsshort or long-
only fund on which each 1s based The perfarmance of the fund
denvatives has therefore been covered in the paragraphs above

In our Structured Funds, which makes up the smaller piece of
Structured Products, the BlueBay European Credit Opportunity Fund
generated an absolute return of 13 8%
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Business risk

In common with all other asset management firms, BlueBay faces a
number of business risks which are actwely managed The principal
risk areas which we seek to manage are investment risk, employee
risk and operational risk

Investment risk

Poor investment performance 1n the funds that we manage could
result n a reduction in the management and performance fees that
we earn and ult:rmately in a reduction of cur AuM This s a
fundamental nisk to our business which we actively manage by

Recruitment and retention of highly talented portfolio managers who

wheleheariedly embrace our investment approach of generating
attractwe nsk-adjusted returns with an absolute return mentality
The establishment of an active and robust Investment process

which combines a top-down approach guided by the Investment

Commuttee with in-depth bottom-up ¢redit analyses performed

by asset class specialists to create optimised portfolio construction

and investment decisions
An independent team which provides sophisticated nisk analyses
to the portfolio managers and the Chtef Investment Officer

Employee risk

We are dependent for our success on our abibity to attract, retain
and motivate the highest quabty industry professionals We believe
that the three following ingredients are crucial in the management
of our employee nsk

Competitive, performance-based compensation structures
The remuneration of all our investment professionals 1s highly
correlated with fund performance In addition a proportion of

bonuses are awarded in the form of shares of funds managed by

BlueBay which vest over a three year deferral period We believe
this ensures that the interests of employees are closely aligned
with those of investors in BlueBay funds

Widespread employee share ownership At the present
tme employees and Directors of BlueBay have an :nterest in
approximately 58% of its shares Although this percentage (s
likely to decline over time, we remain committed to ensurning
that employees retain a meaningful interest in BlueBay’s 1ssued
share capital We intend to enable our primary Employee
Benefit Trust to purchase shares from the market in order to
make future equity awards All permanent UK based employees
on the payrolt on 31 January 2007 had interes{s in BlueBay
equity

A collegiate working environment BlueBay has established a
distinctive, friendly working environment based around a small,
centralised management team and an equity-driven incentive
culture, such that given our size and specialisation we believe
BlueBay has become a blue chip employer of choice for ambitious
professionals

Operational risk

Since the inception of BlueBay, we have taken the approach that in
order to manage operational risk effectively, a fast growing business
operating In broad and complex markets needs the underpinning of
a high quality operational infrastructure We believe the key
ingredienis to this are

The recruitment, retentton and motivation of high quality
infrastructure professionals

The implementation of a modular IT environment which scales
as the business grows in size and complexity

The contnual review and upgrading of internal conirols and
procedures

For further detail on our approach to risk management refer to the
section entitled ‘Risk Management and Internal Controls” on pages
46 to 48
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] Figure 4 Fee revenue trend
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Financial business drivers

Summary of results

During the year, total fee revenues mncreased 43 8% to £109 2
million Total administrative expenses increased by 25 5% to £58 6
milhon leading to an increase In operating profit of 66 7% to £505
milion After exceptional items, finance income and expense and tax,
profit increased by 62 7% to £35 2 millien

The following table 15 based on the income Statement contained 1n
the Financizl Accounts section of this report on page 61 The report
has been restructured to present the information in a format regularly
used by BlueBay's Management Team to assess the financial
performance of the Group

Summary Income $tatement

For the year ended 30 June

2007 2006
£m £m

Met management feey 616 312

Performance fees 452 388
Total fee income 109 2 76 0
Other net operating income/expense {0 1) 10

Total operating Income 109 1 770

Non-perfarmance based compensation expenses (22 0} 16 7}
Performance based compensation expenses (20 B} {18 4}
Total compensation expenses (42 B} {35 1)
Total non-compensauon related expenses {16 0) {1 6}
Total administration expenses {58 6) {456 7)
Qperating profit before exceptional items 505 30 3

Exteptional items an -

Operating profit after exceptional items 494 303

Net financing incorme 22 08

Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 516 311

Taxation (164) [CE]
Profit for the year attributable to ordinary

equity shareholders 352 216

Key Financial Drivers

The key financial drivers of the business are, the growth in net
management fees, performance fees and the management of our
operating margins

Growth (n net management fees

BlueBay continued to experience strong growth in net management
fees dunng 2007 which increased by £23 8 million or 64 0% to

£61 0 milion {2006 £37 2 miflion)

Net management fee income has outsirippad performance fee
income for the first time, mainly as a result of the continuing strong
growth In AuM, particutarly in long-cnly products (see figures 4 and
5) We expect net management fees will continue to represent a
growing proportion of toial fee income In years to come

Net management fees by product are analysed as indicated

For the year ended 30 June

2007 %+ 3006 % 1005 %
Product £m £m £m
Long/short 393 64 4 280 753 1389 a57
Long-only 129 211 51 137 09 54
Structured products 38 145 41 10 i5 89
Tota) net management fees 610 372 16 3

*percentage of to1al ret management fees

Over time, the share of total net management fee revenue generated by
long-only and structured products has, as ndicated by the table above,
ncreased Ve expect this trend to continue over the coming years

Management fees on long/short products are charged at 2% per
annum on all assets attributable to unrelated parties Certain share
classes which are only eligible to a defined group of related parties
{mainly Directors and employees), do not attract management {or
performance) fees The management fee yields on all other long/short
products remain at 200 basis points As a resul; we expect this yietd
will decline shghtly over time as investments by Directors and
employees increase
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The management fees chargad on long-only and structured products
are more vaned ranging between 30 and 175 basis points,
depending on factors such as sub-asset class, share class and the
levels of rebates offered Fee vields on long-only and structured
products are closely managed for signs of erosion The average
management fee yield on cur long-only progucts 1s stable at 62 basis
points for the year to 30 June 2007 (year to 30 June 2006 61 basis
points} The average management fee yield on our structured products
for the same penod increased to 86 basis points {2006 80 basis
points) The improvement is mawly attributable to a change in
products and sub-asset class mix

Management fees are reported net of rebate payments on long-only
and structured products (which are contractually-agreed fee discounts
for large investments) and of expense cap reimbursements (which 1
where BlueBay reimburses a fund for the excess of its administrative
expenses over a pre-determined maxmum level} These revenue
deductions amounted to £3 & million or 5 6% of gross management
fees (2006 £1 3 million or 3 3%)

Performance fees

Performance fees conttnue to grow with an increase of £9 4 million
or 24 3% to £48 2 million (2006 £38 8 millon} Performance fees
are charged on all long/short funds, and structured funds
Performance fees combined with lower management fees are also
oftered on long-only funds as an alternative to the more usual
management fee only fee structures

Performance fees are generated predominantly by our long/short
funds which represented 95% of the overall performance {ee
revenues in the year to 30 June 2007

Figure 5 Net management fee trend by product i
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Performance fees by product are analysed as indicated
For the year ended 30 June
2007 2006 2005

Product fm £m £m
Long/short 460 379 232
Leng-only 09 07 03
Structured products 13 Q2 00

Total performance feas 48 2 338 23 5

BlueBay aims to reduce 1is dependency on performance fees over
time, with performance fees as a percentage of total fee revenues
dropping to 44 2% in financial year 2007 from 51 1% in the
previous financiat year

Operating margins

During the financial year 2007, BlueBay's adminustrative expenses
have increased by £11 9 million or 25 5% with total compensation
costs increasing by £7 6 million or 21 £% and non-compensation
costs increasing by £4 3 milkon or 37 3%

Compensation expenses are split between those which are linked
directly or indirectly to investment performance (performance-based
compensation costs) and those which are not {(non-performance
based compensation costs) The former are compared to performance
fee revenues and the latter to the management fee ravenues

During the financial year, the rauo of performance based compensation
to performance fees Improved 1o 42 8% from 47 3% in the previous
financial year This improvement is solely attributable to the expansion of
the bonus deferral programme to a wider group of employees Under
International Financial Reporting Standard 2 — Share-based payment

(" IFRS 2"), the deferred bonuses are charged to the Income Statement
aver the performance and vestng period rather than in the year in
which the performance 1s generated The matuning of this deferral
programme will generate a deteniaration of this ratio In years to come
Performance-based compensation arrangements are reviewed on an
annual basis in hght of competitive pressures for talented professionals
These reviews could result in changes to the ratio over time
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During the financial year, the ratio of non-performance based
compensation 1o nel management fees improved to 36 1% from
45 0% In the previous year Thss tmprovement partly reflects the
expansion of the bonus deferral programme but also reflects the
increastng scale of the business We expect this ratso will continue
10 1mprave over time

During the financial year, the ratio of non-compensation costs 1o net
management fees improved to 26 2% from 31 3% n the previous
year Within these expenses, the two most sigrificant increases were
attnbuiable to an increase in traik commissions paid 10 distributors
and an increase In oCcupancy costs, in anticipation of the relocation
of the London office to new premises at the end of calendar year
2007 We expect this ratio will continue to smprove over time with
the increasing scale of the business

The Group's operating margin before exceptional items increased to
46 2% (2006 32 5%) Part of this improvement s due o the impact
of the deferred bonus programme and part is due 10 iImprovements
due to the scaling of the business

The process of Listing in Novernber 2006 resulted in one-off
expenses far the Group, amounting to £2 2 milllon In accordance
with International Accounting Standard (“1AS”) 32 Financial
Instruments Disclosure and Presentation and the Companies Act
1985 some of these expenses were charged ta the Income
Statement (£1 1 milhon} as an exceptional item whilg the remaining
£1 1 milkon were written-off against the share premium account

Capital and capital management

sigmificant movements in shareholders' eguity

As part of the preparation for Listing, the Company's share capital
was re-arganised in order to produce 100 new ordinary shares for
each of the pre-existing A, B, C and D shares For further details
refer to note 21 of the Financial Statements

The Listng of the Company constituted a disqualification event for
the options granted under the Enterprise Management Incentive
("EMI”) scheme Those employees who held such options were

given the possibility of exercising their optiens in order to preserve
the favourable tax treatment that 15 granted to such schemes
Almost all employees chose to exercise their options which led to an
increase 1n the share capital and share premium

The exercise of these options gave rise to a tax credit based on the
difference between the exercise price of each option and the market
value of the resulting share at the time of Listing Almost all of the
Group's tax charge of £16 4 million was offset by this tax credr,
leading to an increase in retained earnings of an equivalent amount

tn the Financial Statements prepared for the year ended 30 June
20086, subscriptions for ‘D’ shares made by certain employees had
been classified as kabikties {long term debt — based on cash setiled
share-based payments) due to the obhgation that rested with the
Group 1o repurchase the shares at cost from any employee who was
to forfert hus or her shares upon the terrnination of their employment
with the Company In circumstances where they qualified as a ' bad
leaver” During the course of the year, the terms of these
subscnpuions were modified so that any forferited shares would be
repurchased by a self-funded Employee Benefit Trust, without
recourse to the Group for funding In the Financial Statements for
the year ended 30 June 2007, these habities have bean raclassified
as share capital and share premium

In anticipation of the launch of its Share Incentive Plan (“SIP }in
January 2007, BlueBay funded the Plan Trustee to subscribe for
shares in the [PO in November 2006 The shares acquired were
sufficient to satsfy all of the grants made by the SIP in January
2007 These shares, as well as those shares acquired by the two
Empfoyee Benefit Trusts ("EBT" ) on forferture by departing
employees, are disclosed as Own Shares and deducted from the
Group's shareholders' equity base on consalidation

Durning the financial year, the Group recognised an after tax profit of
£35 2 million and paid dividends of £14 4 million, leading to an
increase in retained earnings from £12 5 mulhion at 30 June 2006 to
£49 6 milien at 30 June 2007
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Caprtal management policy

BlueBay intends to use Its capital prmanly to support the growih

of the business and to provide 1t with a cushion to shield it from
adverse market conditions In order to determine its primary capital
requirements, BlueBay uses multi-year financia! models to determine
the capntal requirements of s ant:cipated growth We also develop
a number of potential adverse scenanos n order to determ:ne their
effect on vanious financial measures, including the Group’s capital
base This enables us to deterrmine the amount of the caprital that
should be retained in the business for prudential purposes

Once this primary objective has been met, we intend to use avallable
distributable reserves for purpeses such as paying dividends to
shareholders, funding our eguity incentivisation programme and
providing seed capital for new funds

It 15 the mtention of the Directors to recommend to the Annual
General Meeting the payment of a dwidend of 6 0 pence per share
1o all shareholders on the register as at 26 October 2007 in respect
of the year ended 30 June 2007 In future years, the Directors intend
to pursue a progressive dividend policy which takes into account the
profitability of the business, its capital requirements and an
appropriate level of dividend cover Over time, the current high levels
of employee share ownership may be reduced as same employees
choose to sell shares when their lock-up periods expire BlueBay
intends 1o continue 1o operate a culture n which equity 15 widely
held by employees In order i enable 1t to make new awards of
equity to exising and future employees without issuing new shares
on every such occassion, BlueBay will be commencing a programme
to fund its primary Employee 8enefit Trust to buy shares in the
market

Regulatory capital

On 1 January 2007, the Capital Requirements Directive { 'CRD")
came Into force in the UK for all credit institutions and mvestment
firms regulated by the Finanaial Services Authanty We implemented
the calculations for the new base, expenditure and market nsk

requirements and took up the option to defer the caleulation of the
new credit nsk requirernent untl 1 January 2008 At 30 June 2007
BlueBay had Tier 1 capital of £41 9 mullon which provided excess
requlatery capital of £20 2 million using the new rules and £17 8
milien using the old rules

As noted above, we will be implementing the calculauons for the
second phase of the implementation of the CRD on 1 January 2008

Cash flow

Our business continues to be cash generative The cash posiuon at

30 June 2007 was £51 5 million, an increase of 104% over the previous
year end As the Group Cash Flow Statement shows on page 64

of the Financial Statements, cash generated from cperating activities
increased by 111% during the year to £56 1 millon Corporation tax
paid dunng the year declined from £7 8 million in the year to 30 June
2006 to £5 & mitlion in the year to 30 June 2007 manly as a result of
the tax credit generated by the exercise of EMI options by employees
at the time of Listing

The cash used for investing activities was mainly used far the purchase
of units In funds managed by BlueBay for £10 milhon as required by
the bonus deferral programme

The cash used for financing activities was mainly used for the payment
of dwidends to shareholders of the private company of £14 4 million

Returns to shareholders

Total share return s measured as the change in value of a share plus
the value of the dividends paid, assuming that the dwvidends are
reinvested 1in the Company's shares on the date on which they were
paid Since the Company has not yet paid a dvidend {ollowing
Usting, the total share return of +65% reflects only the change in
share value since the shares were placed on the Main Market for
Listed securises at 300p This cormnpares to a return on the FTSE 250
of +6% for the same peniod
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Business Review continued

Profit distnbution

To the extent they are not needed for on-going investment in the
business and to provide a prudential capstal cushion as descrebed
above, BlueBay intends to use its retained earnings as follows

Dividends

As a private company, BlueBay paid out almost all of its distributable
reserves 1o Its shareholders The dividends of £14 4 milhon recognised
in the Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2007 were all
pad out beiore BlueBay was admitted to the Official List At the time
of Listing we said that we intended to distribute between one quarter
and one half of net profits by way of dwvdend and that any final
dwidend declared for the year to 3¢ June 2007 would only be in
respect of that period of the financial year duning which BlueBay had
been listed In respect of the results for the year ended 30 June 2007,
the Board has recommended a total final dividend of £11 4 million,
equivalent to 6 0 pence per share to the Annual General Meeting
("AGM "} which represents approximately 32 4% of the profit after
tax generated far the financial year and 38 8% of retained earnings
generated since Listing Subject to sharehglder approval, the dvidend
will be paid on 23 November 2007 to shareholders on the register on
26 October 2007, the ex dwidend date beng 24 Qciober 2007

Other uses

As we explained above, we feel 1t 15 essential that share ownership

s widely distnbuted amongst employees and that key professionals
retain mearungful interests in BlueBay s equity We ntend, therefore,
1o provide financing to qur pnmary Employee Benefit Trust in order to
enable t to purchase BlueBay's shares tn the market that can provide
the basis for direct and indirect equity awards to employees over the
coming years We also believe 1t 1s important for the Group to retain
the flexbility to prowide seed capital to new funds, if necessary

Accounting standards and policies

The Board and Audit Committee review and update, where
appropriate, the Group's accounting policies and disclosures The
Group’s poncipal accounting policies are detailed in the Financial
Statements section on pages 56 1o 60 The preparation of the
Financial Statements in accordance with IFRS requires management
to exercise 1ts judgement in the process of applying the Group’s
accouniing pohcies The areas where a higher degree of judgement
or complexity anse or areas where assumptions and esumates are
sigruficant are estimating the fair value of share-based payments,
the valuation and amortisation of intangible assets, estimating the
future liabihity for bonuses and other employee incentive schemes
and the review and provisioning of its surplus premises reguirements
For further detall refer to page 57 in the Financial Statements
section
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Board of Directors

Hans-Jorg Rudloff

Non-Executive Chairman'??

Hans-Jorg Rudloff, aged 66, was appainted Chairman of the
Company on 3 July 2001 Hans-iorg s also Chairman of the Executive
Committee of Barclays Capital He 15 also Vice Chairman of Novartis,
15 a Board member of Thyssen-Bornemiza Group and Rosneft QJSC,
sits on the Advisory Board of Landeskreditbank Baden-Wurttemberg,
and 1s a member of the Berrat of Energie Baden-Wuttemberg

Terence Eccles

Non-Executive, Senior Independent Director' 2%

Terence Eccles, aged 61, was appointed non-executive senict
independent director of the Company upon the Company’s listing

on the London Stock Exchange He 1s currently non-executive
director of The Paragon Group of Companies PLC He was formerly
Vice Chairman of JPMorgan Cazenove, having previously been Vice
Chairman of Investment Bankmg at JPMoergan Chase, following the
merger between Chase Manhattan and JPMorgan He started his career
at JPMorgan in 1570 and has worked in JPMorgan’s London, New York
and Hong Kong offices During his carear, he has advised on numerous
transactions, spacialising in the European financial services industry

Tom Cross Brown

Non-Executive, Independent Director 12 2

Tom Cross 8rown, aged 59, was appointed non-executive directar
of the Company upon the Company’s listing on the London Stock
Exchange Until 2003, he was Chief Executive Officer of ABN AMRO
Asset Management and pnor to joining ABN AMRO Asset Management
in 1997, he was Chief Executive Officer of Lazard Brothers Asset
Management He 15 currently non-executive Chairman of Pearl
Assurance plc, National Provident Life Limited, NPI Limuted, London
Life Limited and Just Retirement {Holdings) Plc He 15 also a non-
executive director of Pearl Group Limited and of Artemis Alpha
Trust plc, and a director of PA T Pensions Lumited

Hugh Willis

Chief Executive Officer

Hugh Willis, aged 47, 15 one of the co-founders of the Company and
has been a director and Chief Executive Officer of the Company since
nception He spent eight years at IPMorgan, latterly as Co-Head of its
European Credit Arbirage Group He has subsequently held seror
positions within the Global Credit Arbitrage Group of Kleinwort Benson
and the Fixed Income Management Grougs of both Banca della Swizzera
ltaliana (BS)) and Damwa Secunties Trust and Banking {DSTB), London

Mark Poole

Chief Investment Officer

Mark Poole aged 46, 15 one of the co-founders of the Company and
has been a director and Chief Investment Officer of the Company
since inception He spent several years at Credit Suisse First Boston
and JPMorgan, latterly as Co-Head of 1ts European Credit Arbitrage
Group He has subsequently held senior positions within the Global
Credit Arbitrage Group of Kleinwort Benson and the Fixed Income
Management Groups of both BS| and DSTB

Nick Wilhams

Chief Financial Officer

Nick williams aged 51, was appointed Chief Financial Officer of the
Company in October 2001 and an executive director of the
Company on 1 November 2006 Prior to this he spent 15 years at
Goldman Sachs, latterly as Chief Financial Officer of Goldman Sachs
Asset Management (Europe) He previously served as Chief Financial
Officer and was a member of the Management Committee of
Goldman Sachs & Co Bank, Zunch He qualified as a chartered
accountant with Ernst & Young

Alex Khein

Chief Operating Officer

Alex Khein, aged 38, 1s Chief Operating Officer of the Company
with responsibility for Operations, IT Risk and Performance, Treasury
and Structured Products and was appointed an executive director of
the Company on 1 Novermber 2006 He joined the Company In June
2004 as Head of Structured Products hefore taking up the role of
Chief Operating Officer in October 2005 Previously he spent seven
years at Morgan Stanley where he was an executive director within
the Securitized Products Group

' Member of the Nomination Committes

* Member of the Audit Committee

# Member of the Remuneration Committee
*Committee Chairman
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Directors’ Report

The Directors submit their report together with the audited
Financal Statements for the year ended 30 June 2007
Directors’ responsibilities are set out on page 51

Principal activities and business review

BlueBay Asset Management plc s the parent company of an
independent asset management group which provides invesiment
management services to institutions and high net worth individuals
The Company was admiited to the Official List of the UK Listing
Authonty and to trading on the mam market of the London Stock
Exchange on 22 Navemnber 2006 This s BlueBay's first Annual
Report as a public hmited company

A review of BlueBay's business during the financial year 2007, likely
future developments and the information which fulfils the Business
Review requirements is contained n the following sections of the
Annual Report, which are incorporated into the Directors’ report
by reference

Charrman’s Statement on pages & and 7

Chief Executive’s Review on pages 8 and 9

Business Review on pages 11 to 24

Principal nisks and uncertainties on pages 45 to 48
Corperate Responsibility Report on pages 49 and 50
Disctosure of information to auditors on page 51

Results and dividends
The profit attnbutable o equity holders for the year ended 30 June
2007 amounted to £35 2 million {2006 £21 6 midlion)

The Directors recommend a final dividend in respect of the pencd
post Listing of 6 0 pence per ordinary share Subject to shareholder
approval at the AGM, the propesed dmidend will be paid on

23 November 2007 1o shareholders on the register on 26 October
2007, the ex dwidend date being 24 Octaber 2007

During the financial year, the Company paid £14 4 million
dwidends to shareholders on the register prior to Listing

Annual General Meeting

The Company’s AGM will be held at 11 00 am on Wednesday
14 November 2007 at Sofitel St James, & Waterloo Place, London
SWI1Y 4AN

Capital structure

On 1 November 2006, written resclutions of the Company were
passed such that in advance of the Company’s re-registration as a
public imited company 0 cannection with the apphcation for Listing
and to trading on the tondon Stock Exchange, a bonus Issue

of shares was authorised to be made to the "A’, "B’ and ‘D" class
shareholders at a ratio of 9 new equwalent shares of 1 pence each
for each ‘A, 'B' or "D’ share held Further, the nominal value of the
'C' shares was Increased frorn 1 pence each to 10 pence each

On 1 Novernber 2006 written resolutions were passed that the authonsed
A, 'R, 'CCand D shares would at a future date pnor to Listing be
split into ordinary shares of 8 1 pence each and subseguently
consolidated into one class of ordinary shares of 0 1 pence each

On 6 November 2006, amendments were made to the ‘D’ share
Subscription Arrangements As a result, the ‘D shares have been
reclassified as equity in accordance with |AS 32

On 17 November 2006, conditional dealings in the crdinary shares
(as unhsted secunties) of the Company commenced on the London
Stock Exchange

On 22 November 2006, immediately prior to Listing the written
resolution passed on 1 November 2006 was invoked and each ‘A,
'B", 'C" and ‘D share was split into erdinary shares of 0 1 pence each
and consalidated 1nto one class of ordinary share of 0 t pence each

On 22 Novemnber 2006, Listing became effective and unconditional
dealings in the shares of the Company commenced The Company
has one class of shares, ordinary voting shares with a nominal value
of 01 pence each The authonised share capital at the time of Listing
was 250,000,000 shares of 0 1 pence each The issued share capiial
was 190,310,000 ordinary shares of 0 1 pence each No new
ordsnary shares were issued prior to or at Lisuing The issued share
capttal as at 30 June 2007 was 190,372,500 ordinary shares
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The Company’'s shares are held subject 1o the terms of the
Company's Articles of Association There are no restrictions on the
holding, transfer and voting of shares which are not contained in the
Artcles of Association, a copy of which s avalable to shareholders
on request from the Company Secretary

The Company does not anticipate an increase in 1ts authonsed share
capital except to the extent as required In order to satisfy the
exercaising of options under the Unapproved Share Cption Plan

Own shares

Dunng 1he year, the number of own shares purchased by employee
trusts and share sncentive plans was 1,085,275, at a cost of

£1 2 milion (2006 i) The Group also disposed of 38,512 shares
realising proceeds of £155,000¢ Own shares are held by employee
trusts and share incentive plans for the purposes of satisfying certain
equity-based awards where shares have not vested unconditionally
to employees of the Group

The Company also holds own shares through its arrangements with
a number of employees who have subscribed for shares which have
not vested unconditionally Under the terms of each subscription,
the shares are held in a nominee account on behalf of each
employee until such shares are no longer subject to foreferture

The number of own shares held under such arrangements was
£9,587,000 (2006 49,610,000} Appleby Trust {Jersey) Lirnted has
waived ts entitlemeant to receive dividends from the Company in
respect of shares held to meet future award requirements under the
Company's employee benefit arrangements

Substantial shareholdings

As at 10 September 2007 the following voting interests in the ordinary
share capital of the Company, disclosable under the Disclosure and
Transparency Rules of the FSA (which replaced Part Wt of the Comparies
Act 1985 wath effect from 20 January 2007} had been notified to the
Company being that of Pershing Keen Nominees Limited (36 57%),
Strand Nominges Limited (21 00%), Shinser Bank, Limited (5 25%),
Lehman Brothers International (¢ 99%), Janus Capital Management LLC
(3 74%) and Artemis Investment Management Ltd (UK) (3 61%)
Pershing Keen Nominees Uimited hold 36 57% as nominee in relation to

certan of the Company's employee benefit schemes and within this
holding three employees of the Cempany, Gina Germane Alberto
Francioni and Simon Treacher, each have discloszble interests In 3 15%
of the ordinary share capital Interasts of the Directors are set out in the
Remuneration Report on page 42, and include those shares held by
Strand Nominees on behalf of certain executive direciors

Details of the Directors’ interests in the share capitat of the Company
and details of Directors share options are set out in the Ramuneraticn
Report For further details refer to pages 40 to 45 of the
Remuneration Report There have been no changes in the Directors’
share interests between 30 June 2007 and the date of this report

Directors

During the year the composition of the Board was re-organised Two
new executive directors, Nick Williams and Alex Khein were
appainted to the Board on 1 November 2006 On Listing two new
non-executive directors, Tom Cross Brown and Terence Eccles were
also appointed Prior ta Listing, the Board received and accepted
resignations from two non-executive directers, Roger Jenkins and
Mark Miltello Hugh Willis and Mark Poole remain executve direciors
and have entered into new service agreements and Hans-Jorg Rudloff
also remans as Chairman under a new letter of appointment As a
consequence of the Combined Code on Corporate Governance and
the Articles of Assoaigtion, Hans-Jorg Rudloff, Terence Eccles, Tom
Cross Brown, Hugh Willis, Mark Poole, Nick williams and Alex Khein
will retire at the next Annual General Meeting and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-appointment The Nomination Committee and
the Board recommends to the shareholders the re-appointment of all
seven directors retiring at the meeting and offernng themselves for re-
appointment, on the hasis that they are all effective Directors of the
Company and demonstraie the appropriate level of commitment in
their respective roles

The names and biographical details of the Directors of the Company
are given on pages 26 and 27 As at 30 June 2007, the Board
comprised four executive directors and three non-executive directors
(including the Chairman) There have been no changes to the Board
since that date
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Directors’ Report cominues

Directors’ interests and indemnity arrangements

At no ume dunng the year did any Director hold a matenal interest
In any contract of significance with the Caompany or any of 1ts
subsidiary undertakings other than service contracts between each
executive director and the Company and letters of engagement
between each non-executive director and the Company

The Company maintains apprepriate directors and officers hability
insurance and has entered into a deed poll of indemnity in favour
of the executive and non-executive directors The Directors also have
the benefit of the iIndemnity provision in the Company's Articles

of Association These provisions, which are qualifying third party
indemnity prowvisions as defined by s 309A of the Companies Act
1985, were in force throughout the year and are currently in force
Details of Directors’ remuneration, service contracts and interests in
the shares of the Company are set out In the Remuneration Report

Company Secretary

lames Brace, the Company’s General Counsel, was appainted as
Company Secretary on 13 July 2007 The position was previously
held by Nick Williams, executive director and Chief Financial Officer

Auditors

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (*Pw(C ") have indicated therr
willingness to continue 1n office and a resolution will be proposed
at the AGM ta reappoint them as auditors of the Company and
to authonse the Directors to determine their remuneration for the
current year

Employees, political and chantable donations

The Groups polkies in relation to employees and details of the
Group’s charitable donations in the year are included in the
Corporate Responsibifity Report set out on pages 49 and 50

No poluical donatiens or contributions were made or expenditure
incurred by the Group during the year (2006 nily

Credit payment policy

It 1s the Group’s policy to honaur all of its contractual commitments
and this includes paying supphiers according to agreed payment
terms Average creditor days at 3Q June 2007 were eight days
(2006 13 days)

By Crder of the Board

W

James Brace
Company Secretary
24 September 2007
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Corporate Governance Report

The Board is accountable to the Company’s shareholders for
sound corporate governance and 1s committed to ensuring
the integrity of the business, maintaining 1ts ethical values
and continuing the high degree of professionalism across
the Company The Board considers that during the relevant
period 1t has applied the principles of the Combined Code
(2003} on Corporate Governance, apart from as described in
the relevant paragraphs below

The Company’s ordinary shares were admitted to the Oificial List of
the UK Lisung Authornty and to trading on the main market of the
London Stock Exchange on 22 November 2006 and the Company
became a member of the FTSE 250 on 16 March 2007 This is,
therefore, the first year in which the Company has been required

to apply the Listing Rules of the Financial Services Authority (*FSA")
and to include a statement of corporate governance in its Annual
Report relating to 1its comphance with the principles and provisions
set gut In Section 1 of the Combined Code (2003} on Corporate
Governance (the "Code ), on the bas:s that the Company 5 a
"smaller company” as defined by the Code This statement includes
a description of how the Company has applied those principles since
22 November 2006 and whether or not the Company has compled
with those provisions throughout the remainder of the financial year

This report covers the peniod from 22 November to 30 June 2007
Throughout this penod the Company has applied the principles of
the Code, with the exception of the departures discussed in the
relevant sections below The Board 1s commutted to achieving and
maintaining the high standards of corporate governance required
following Listing

The role of the Board

The Board 15 responsible to sharehclders for creating and delivering
sustainable long-term shareholder value through strong leadership,
financial performance and the approval of the Company's strategic
objectives It 1s also raspansible for ensuring that adequate rescurces
are made avallable to ensure these objectives are met and for ensuring
that management maintains systems of internal control which prowide
assurance of effective and efficient operatiens, strong internal financial
controls and compliance with applicable law and regulations The
Board fulfils 1ts duties to the Company’s shareholders either by means
of direct intervention or by delegating its respensibilities to Board
Committees or 10 the Management Committee

The composition of the Board

As at 30 June 2007, the Board compnised of four executive directors
and three non-executive directors, of whom two are considered
independent for the purposes of the Code For its inmial phase as

a public company, the Board deemed that its composition was
appropriate, having regard to the size, nature and stage of development
of the Company the integnty of the Chairman and the independent
non-executive directors and the experience and skills which they
bring to their respective duties The composition of the Board
complies with the provisions of the Code in that a smaller company
should have at least two independent non-executive directors

The Board also considers it appropriate to appoint an additional
independent non-executive director during the course of the
financial year 2007-08 it 15 Intended that upon appointment the
additional independent non-executive director will become a member
of the Audit, Remuneration and Nomination Committees

The profiles of the Directors are on pages 26 and 27

The rales of Chasrman and Chief Executive are distinct and separate
The Chairman, Hans-jorg Rudloff, has been charman of the
Company since July 2001 and 1s responsible for leading the Board
and ensuring its effectiveness The role of Chief Executive 15 held by
Hugh wWillis, one of the co-founders of the Company, who has been
a Durector and the Chied Executive since its inception in 2001 He Is
respensible for the executive management of the Company which
includes the formulation of the Company’s strategy for buillding
shareholder value over the long term

Terence Eccles 1s the Company’s senior independent non-executive
director and was appainted to the Board in November 2006 Heis
available to shareholders if they have concerns which have not or
cannot be resolved through normat channels with the Chairman or
Chief Executive

The Board considers that Terence Eccles and Tom Cross Brown are
independent non-executive directors as none of the factors implying
lack of independence, as set out In the Code apply

Where Directors have concerns that cannot be resolved about
running the Company, these are recorded in the Board meetings
No such concerns were recorded dunng the pencd
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The Chairmans other significant commitments are described under
Board of Directors on page 26 There have been no maternal changes
to such commitments dunng the pernod and these comrmitments are
not considered to impact his duties on the Board

Appointment to the Board

Since Listing, no changes have been made to the structure of the
Board Nick Williams and Alex Khein were appointed as executve
directors on 1 November 2006 At the date of Listing, Terence
Eccles and Tom Cross Brown were appointed as independent non-
executive directors The changes to the Board which took efiect on
Listing were approved by the Board before Listing and therefore
before the formation of a Nomsnauon Committee The members of
the private company Board identified and recommended 2all the new
directors having evaiuated the balance of skills, knowledge and
experience required of the Directors

Prior to the re-organisation as a result of Listing, the private company
Board compnised five members, Hugh Wills and Mark Poole as
executve directors, Roger Jenkins and Mark Militello as non-executive
directors who were respectively the representative directors for
Barclays Bank PLC and Shinser Bank, Limited, and Hans-Jorg Rudloff
as a non-executwve director and Charman of the Board Both Roger
Jenkins and Mark Militello resigned from the Board on 1 November
2006 as part of the re-organisation of the Board prior to Listing

The appointments of the non-executive drrectors are terminable without
entitlement to compensation (and without notice, In accordance

with the Articles of the Company} although it 1s envisaged that the
appointments will be for an mutial term of no more than three years
The terms and conditions of each appointment will be made available
for tnspection at ihe first AGM to be held on 14 Novemnber 2007

Independence

Prier to therr appointment potential non-executive directors are
subject to a review to assess ther independence and to confirm that
they have no other relationships that nmight affect their judgement
To avoid potential conflicts of interest, non-executive directors are
expecied 1o inform the Chairman before taking up any additional
external appotntments

Board meetings

The Board held three meetings dunng the year ended 30 June 2007
The Board is collectively responsible for setting its own agenda At
each Board meeting, the Chief Executive provided a review of the
business and its performance and the Chief Financial Officer prowided
a review of the financial position of the Company The range of topics
discussed during the period under review included, for example, the
strategic development of the Company, the approval and review of
new business, regulatory and corporate governance Issues alang with
discussion of the resouraing and administrative 1ssues of the Company,
the approval of the change in premises for the London office and the
approval of the intenm Financial Statements

Attendance at the Board and Board Committee meetings since
22 November 2006 to 30 june 2007 s set out In the table below

Nominatlon Audit Remuneration

Board Committee Committee Committee

Mectings held 3 0 1 2
Hans-Jorg Rudloff 2 0 1 2
Terence Eccles 2 0 1 2
Tom Cross 8rown 2 0 0 1
Hugh Willis* 3 na na n/a
Mark Poole* 3 na n/a na
MNick Withams* 3 n/a n/a nfa
Alex Khein 3 n/a nfa n/a

* The executve directors are not members of the Board committees

Any director who was unable to attend a Board meeting recewved
appropnate and tmely information in advance of the meeting In
order that their views could be taken into consideration The Board
considers that 1t has witnessed a penod of transition since Listing
and has been able to achueve a reasonable number of Beard
meetings Howevey, the Board intends to icrease the frequency of
meetings and expects Directors to atiend all meetings, unless there
are excegtional arcumstances which prevent them from doing so

After the year end, two further Board meetings were held, one in
July 2007 and one in September 2007, with two further meetings
scheduled before the end of the calendar year 2007
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Corporate Governance Report cninues

The Company Secretary 1s responsible 1o the Board for ensuring
Board procedures are followed and compliance with rules and
regulations applicable to the Company

Ttme commitment

The Board considers that the seven month period from 22 November
2006 to 30 June 2007 1s an insufficent ume scale 1o assess satisfactory
time commitment of its Chairman and independent non-executive
directors Please refer to the section on Board effectiveness below for
further detail

Information to the Board

To enable the Board to discharge 1ts duties effectively, all Directors
receve appropriate and timely information in advance of Board
meetings All Cirectors receive monthly updates on the finangial
performance of the Group and 1ts Assets under Management

All Directors also receive copies of the minutes to pringipat
Committee meetings, copes of proposed press reteases for review
and comment before publication including the quarterty trading
statements and updates to changes in or development to
compliance and requlatory matters

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary and may seek independent professional advice, if necessary,
at the Company s expense

On appoiniment 1o the Board Company marketing hiterature and
financiat reports are made avallable to & new Dwector

The appointment and removal of the Company Secretary 15 3 matter
for the Board as a whole following recommendation of the
Nomination Committee

Insurance and indemnfication

The Company maintains appropriate directors and officers hatility
insurance and has entered 1 to a deed pall of indemnity in favour of
the Directors

Charrman’s Committee

The Chairman intends to meet exclusively with the non-executive
directors of the Company at least ance a year The first meeting will
take place pnor to the first AGM to be held on 14 November 2007

Board effectiveness

The Board considers that seven months is an nsufficent time scale
to fully assess the effectiveness of the Board, its Committees and

the indwvidual Direciors The Board anticipates that the formal and
ngorous perfarmance evaluation required by the Code to be
completed annually, will be undertaken before the end of calendar
year 2007 The Board considers that each Director has continued to
perform effectively and demonstrated sufficient commitment {0 their
respective roles for the purposes of re-election as a Director at the
next AGM

Board Committees

The Board formally delegates certamn responsibilities 1o Committees by
way of written terms of reference The three principal Committees are
the Audit, Remuneration and Nominaticn Committees Detalls of each
principal Committee, s membership and terms of reference are
summansed below together with details of significant actwties
undertaken durng the year The Directors receve copies of the minutes
to all the Comnuttee meetings The Code requires that the Audit
Committee members should be independent non-executive directors

tn order to provide continuity between the pre and post-IPO Board
structures, during the period the Chairman has been a member of the
Audit Committee In view of the progress made by the Company and
in canformity with the Code, the Charman stood down from the Audit
Commitiee on 14 September 2007

Shareholder relations

During the year, the Chief Executive and Chief Financial Cfficer
met and made presentations to institutional mvestors, analysts and
prospective shareholders Feedback frem these meetings was given
o the Board The sentor independent non-executive director 15 also
available to meet institutional shareholders if requested

The first AGM since Listing 1s due to be held on 14 November 2007
and the Board and the Chairman of each of the pnncipal Committees
welcome the opportunity to answer questions put forward to them
by shareholders of the Company The Annual Report and Accounts
and the notice of the AGM will be sent to shareholders at least 20
waorking days prior to the date of the mesting

The Company maintains a corporate website www bluebayinvest com
which contains a wide range of information on the Company,
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including press releases and published financial information and also
details on the net asset values of the funds it manages

Re-election

The Board confirms that the Directors subject to re-glection in the
next financial year, namely Hans-Jarg Rudloff, Terence Eccles, Tom
Cross Brown, Hugh Willis, Mark Poole, Nick Wilhiams and Alex Khein,
continue to perform effectively and demonstrate commitment to ther
respective roles

Going concern

The Dwrectors are satisfied that the Company has adequate resources
to continue 1n operational existence for the foreseeable future and
accordingly continue to adept the gotng concern basis in preparing
the Financial Statements

Internal control

The Board has overall responsibility for the Company’s systems of
internal control and nisk management Please refer to the Risk
Management and Internal Control report on pages 46 to 48 for
further detail

Whistle-blowing measures

In accordance with the FSA rules the Cornpany has had a whistle-
blowing policy in place for a number of years This enables stalf to raise
concerns about pessible mpropneties relating to the Company's
operations The Code requires the Audit Commuttee to review the
adequacy of the Company's whistle-blowing arrangements  This review
was conducted after the financial year, on 14 September 2007, when
the Committee found the arrangements to be satisfactory

Regulation

The Company 15 authorised and regulated in the United Kingdom by
the FSA The Company is registered as an investment adwiser with
the US Securities and Exchange Commussion ang with the Kanto
Local Finance Bureau (Financial Senaces Agency) (in japan

The Company also provides financial services (but does not have a
physical presence) In various EU states but as these services are
provided on a cross-border basis and the Cempany does not have a

physical presence 1n an EU state other than the UK, it 15 only subject to
the rules of these vanous EU states to a imied degree having obtaned
the appropnate European investment services “passport” This passport
derives from the pan-European regime established by the Investment
Services Directive (“1SD" ) which regulates the provision of investment
services throughout the EEA The 15D 1s due to be replaced by a new
Directive, the Markets in Financial Instruments Directive which waill
come into force in the UK on 1 November 2007

The Company 15 the Promoter, Investment Manager and Principal
Sales Agent of the BlueBay Funds and is subject to supervision by
the Comrmssion de Surveillance du Secteur Financier in Luxembourg

The Board 1s committed 1o achieving and maintaining the high
standards of corporate governance required following Listing

By Order of the Board
James Brace

Company Secretary
24 September 2007
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Nomination Committee Report

This Nominatron Committee Report sets out the role of
the Nomination Committee, 1ts membership and what it
considered during the year This is the first Annual Report
of the Committee since Listing on 22 November 2006

Role of the Committee

The purpose of the Nomination Cornmittee 15 1o consider, and
make recommendations to the Board concerning its composition,
proposed appointees and whether any vacancies that may anse
should be filled

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include the
following

1o review regularly the structure, size and composition of the
Board {including the skills, knowledge and expenence) and make
recornmendations to the Board with regard to any changes,

to identfy, nominate and recommend for the approval of the
Board, approprate candidates to fill Board vacancies as and when
they arise,

to evaluate the balance of skills, knowledge and expenence on
the Board and, in the light of this evaluation, prepare a
description of the role and capabilities required for a particular
appointment,

to satisfy (tself with regard to succession planning that processes
and plans are in place with regard to both Board and semor
management appointments,

to review annually the time required to fulfil the role of
Chairman, senior independent director and each non-executive
director and use performance evaluation to assess whether each
non-executive director has devoted sufficient time to their duties,
to recommend the re-election (or not} by sharehelders of any
director under the retirement and re-election prowvisions in the
Company’s Articles of Association

to make a statement in the Annual Report about its actmvities and
the process used for appointments and explain If external advice
or open advertising has not been used,

to make available its terms of reference upon request and display
them on the Company's website, and

10 ensure that on appointment to the Board, non-executive
directors receive formal written terms of appointment

Composition of the Committee

The Nomination Committee was farmed on Listing and as at
30 Jjune 2007 comprises non-executive directors Terence Eccles
{Chairman), Hans-Jorg Rudloff and Tom Cress Brown

Meetings

The Ccmmittee was not required to meet formally during the period
22 November 2006 to 30 June 2007 Meetings were conducted
after the period on 13 July and 14 September 2007

When required, the Committee will receve information from senicr
management and external sources as necessary to enable It to carry
out its duties and responsibilities effectively |
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Audit Committee Report

This Audit Committee Report sets out the role of the Audit
Committee, 1ts membership and what 1t considered during
the year This is the first Annual Report of the Committee
since Listing on 22 November 2006,

Role of the Committee

The Board has delegated to the Committee responsibility for
overseeing the financial reporting and internal ¢ontrol of the Group
and for maintaining an appropnate relationship with

the Group’s auditors The main role of the Committee 15 to
encourage and safeguard the highest standards of financial
reporting integrity, nsk management and internal contrel In doing
this the prnincipal responsibilities of the Committee include

reviewing the form, content and integnty of the Group and
Company’s Financial Statements,

monitoring and reviewing the effectiveness of the external and
nternal audit functions,

recommending to the Board the appointment, reappointment or
removal of the external auditors

reviewing the adequacy and effectiveness of the Groups internal
controls and risk management systems, and

reviewing and monitoring the Group's ethical standards,
procedures for ensuning complance with regulatory and financial
reporting requiremeants and its relationship with the relevant
regulatory authorives

The terms of reference of the Commuiitee (as updated from time to
time) are avallable on our wehsite at www bluebayinvest com and
from the Company Secretary at the registered office

Composition of the Committee

The Audit Commuttee was formed on Listing and as at 30 June
2007, comprised the independent non-executive directors

Tam Cross Brown (Chairman) and Terence Eccles, together with
Hans-Jorg Rudloff

Tom Cross Brown 135 considered by the Board to have recent and
relevant financial expernience

Hans-Jorg Rudloff ceased to be 3 member of the Audit Commuttee
on 14 September 2007

Report on the Committee’s activities

Meetings

For meetings and attendance refer to the table on page 33 of the
Corporate Governance report Tweo meetings were held after the
year end one in July 2007 and one in September 2007 at which all
members were present

To assist the Commuttee in fulfilling us role, the following senior
executives and functional heads were nvited to attend the above
Commuttee meetings Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Offecer, .
Chief Qperating Officer, Complance Qfficer and the General !
Counsel The Company's external auditors, PwC, were also !
represented at the above meetings and presented reports on their

acivities

It 1s proposed that during the year commencing 1 July 2007, the
Committee shall meet separately on no less than two occasions with
the Group’s external auditors and with the Group's outsourced internal
audit function service prowiders, with no executive management
present This wall provide an opportunity for the external and internal
auditors 1o raise matters of concern in confidence

The Committee has a formal programme of ssues which it covers
during the year This programme 1s {ormulated by the Committee
Chairman and the Company Secretary and 1s designed to ensure
that all matters that fall within the Commuttee s remit are reviewed
at the appropnate time

The pnnopal issues considered during 2007 were

the intenim and annual Financial Statements for 2007,

the external audit plan for 2007,

the Group’s miernal audit plans for 2007 and 2008,

the Group’s nsk management process, including key nisks facing
the Group,

the appropniateness of the accounting policies used in drawing
up the Group's Financial Statements

the external auditors’ year-end report, and

the performance, ndependence and objectivity of the external
auditors, including a review of non-audit fees
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Other issues

As well as the agreed schedule of issues the Commuttee also
received reports and presentations on vanous subjects connected
principally with the control environment in the Group These
included presentations on the Group’s compliance with applicable
regulations and developments thereto during the period The
Committee also intends to consider, the implications for the Group
of the implementation of the Markets in Financial Instruments
Directive and Capital Requiremenis Directive

The Board confirms that the ongoing pracess for identifying, evaluating
and managing significant risks has been in place for the period under
review and up to the date of approval of the Annual Report and

that this process accords with the Guidance on Internal Control (the
"Turnbull Guidance”) published In September 1999 and revised iy
Qctober 2005

The Board also acknowledges that the system of internal control is
designed to provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against
matenal misstatement or loss

The Cede requizes the Board to conduct an annual review of the
effectiveness of the system of internal controls covering all material
controls The inihizl phase of the Board's review was completed on
14 September 2007, with the remainder to be completed before the
end of calendar year 2007, being mn addition to the Board's regular
review of the ongoing process of identifying, evaluating and
managing nsks Where necessary, the Board confirms that action
has been taken {o remedy any significant failings or weaknesses
identified from its review of the effectiveness of the internal control
system The Board notes that there are no significant problems
disclosed in this Annual Report

Non-audit services and auditor independence

The Commuttee 15 formulating a policy covenng the prowision of non-
audit services to the Group by the external auditors This policy will be
finahsed for adoption by the Committee befare the end of calendar
year 2007 and thereby enhance further the governance around the
provisicn of such senvices and provide a clear and transparent

framewaork to ensure the objectvty and independence of the external
auditors Under the proposed policy the provision of any serwice which
might lead to a conflict of interests will not be parmitted unless other
possible providers are themselves conflicted In such excaptional cases
the Audit Committee must approve each service and approval will only
be given where the Committee s satisfied that appropriate measures
are In place to manage or mitgate any potential conflict of interest
There were no such occurrences in 2007

The palicy also includes rules in relation to the approval of contracts
for non-audit services which do not present a possible conflict of
interest The external auditors are also reguwired to confirm annually
that their firm, partners and staff are independent of the Group

In 2007 the value of non-audit services provided by Pw(C to Group
companies was £0 8 milion

The Committee also considered the reappointment of PwC as
auditors, taking into account the results of the auditor assessment
process, the gquality of work undertaken and the level of audit fees
The Committee concluded that 1t was appropriate to recammend
the reappointment of the auditors and that this recommendation
be put to shareholders at the next AGM

The Committee 15 satisfied that the external auditors remain
independent

Committee evaluation

The Board considers that seven months s an insufficient time scale to
fully assess the Audit Committee’s effectiveness A full performance
evaluation will take place before the end of the 2007 calendar year

Support to the Committee

The Commuttee received information and support from management
dunng the year to enable 1t to carry out 1ts duties and respansibiiities
effectively

The Committee has access to external independent advice at the
Group's expense
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Remuneration Report

This remuneration report sets out the Company’s overall
remuneration policy and gives details of the compensation
arrangements for executive and non-executive directors
for the period from 22 November 2006 (following Listing)
to 30 June 2007 It also sets out the membership of the
Remuneration Commuttee (“the Committee”) and its role and
remit The report has been prepared on behalf of the Board
and will be put to an advisory vote of the Company's
shareholders at the AGM to be held on 14 November 2007

Role of Committee

The role of the Committee 15 to review and approve the remuneration
strategy and policies of the Company It 1s respansible {or setting the
remuneration of all executive directors and for determining the level
and structure of remuneration for senior employees

Composition of the Committee

The Commitiee was formed on Listing and as at 30 Jung 2007,
compnsed two independent non-executive directars Terence Eccles
{Chairman) and Tom Cross Brown Hans-Jarg Rudloff is alse a
member No changes were made to membership of the Committee
for the period of this report Members of the Group’s Management
Committee may attend the meetings by inwitatton The Code
recommends the Remuneration Committee should comprise at
least three members who should ali be independent non-executive
directors This recommendatton 1s amended in the Combined Code
(2006) which allows the Chairman of the Board to be a member
of, but not to charr, the Commuttee if he or she was considered
independent on appointment as Chairman The Committee accepts
that, as the Chairman of the Board 15 3 member of the Comimittee,
currently t does net comply wath the Code for this inital short
reporting period  The Commuttee will be comphant for the next
reporting period when the Combined Code (2006) comes into force

During the course of the year, Herbert Smath LLP assisted the Commuitee
In the design and documentation of the vancus compensation schemes
that it has adopted Herbert Smith LLP was appointed by the Company
and acted as legal advisors to the Company In regards to the Enghsh
and US law for the wnitizl public offering transackton The Company has
also retained Herbert Smith LLP for general legal advice

For the current compensation year, the Commuittee 15 considering
retaining the services of a specialist compensation consultant

to provide adwice on the design and structure of future equity
Incentivisation plans, taking into account both the competitive
environment for high calibre employees and market expectations

Meetings
During the period following Listing up untsl the end of the financial
year the Committee met On two 0Ccasions

Remuneration policy

The Committee recognises that the Group’s key assets are its
employees In order to attract, motivate and retain the very best
employees in a highly competitive market, 1t 1s essential for the
Committee to develop an appropriately tallored remuneration
strategy which s inked to the attamment of a combination of
indivdual, team and corporate goals The Committee has adopted
the following principles in desigrung the Group’s remuneration
strategy The Committee aims to provide a high proportion of total
compensation in the form of variable compensation in either cash
or deferred bonuses It does not helieve it 15 appropriate to establish
any maximum percentage of salary payable by way of bonus The
Comrmuttee seeks to hmit the growth in fixed compensation by
operating a salary cap of £100,000 per annum which apples to
almost all employees and was extended on a voluntary basis to all
the executive directors at the time of Listing Furthermore limited
benefits schemes are made available 1o employees on a fully
contnibutory basis only [n order to align the interests of employees
and shareholders, the Commitiee has adopted a goal of universal
employee share ownership

Key developments in financial year

During the course of the financial year, two new incentivistaion
schemes were iImplemented and an existing scheme expanded to
a wtder group of employees

A Share Incentive Plan (“SIP") which 1s approved by Her Majesty's
Revenue and Customs {"HMRC ), which 1s open to all employees
including executive directors The Plan comprises free shares,
partnership shares and matching shares Free shares were offered
to all permanent UK ermployees as of 31 January 2007 Any of
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these employees could also purchase partnership shares and for
those that did, the Company offered them further matching
shares In a ratio of two matching shares for every partnership
share purchased Please refer to the SIP in the audited section
of this report for further information

A scheme for the award of ether Restncted Shares or Share
Options, which 1s open to all employees exciuding executive
directors Shares awarded to employees under this scheme will be
purchased from the market and wili not result in the issue of any
new shares

For the 2005 annuai compensation round, the BiugBay bonus
deferral programme was implemented for the first time for a small
number of employees For the 2006 compensation round, the
Committee expanded the bonus deferral programme to a wider
group of employees including all executive directors Under this
programme, appraximately one third of each bonus in excess of
a given threshold 1s awarded on a deferred basis and invested in
shares of funds managed by the Company The shares vest over
a three year period

Please refer to sections {e) and {t) of the significant accounting
policies on pages 57 and 59 for further details on the accounting
treatment of these compensation schemes

Service contracts

The executive directors entered into new service agreements with the
Company with effect from the date of Lsting The service agreements
do not have a fixed term but provide for termination on the expiry

of not less than nine months’ notice by either party to the agreement
The service agreements contain no contractual entitlement for the
executive directors to De paid any fixed amount of bonus or any fixed
provision for termination compensation

During the year to 30 June 2007, Hugh Willis and Nick Wiliams held
directorships sn several of the funds with which the Company has
Investment management agreements and for which the nght to
remuneration was waived

Non-executive directors are appointed by the Board At the date of
Listing, Hans-Jorg Rudloff, Terence Eccles and Toms Cross Brown
enterad In to new letters of appointment with the Company The

appointments of the non-executive directors are terminable without
entitlement to compensation (and without notice 1n accordance
with the Articles of the Company) although 1t 1s envisaged that the
appointments will be for an intial term of no more than three years
The terms and conditions of each appeintment will be made
available at the AGM 1o be held on 14 November 2007

Elements of the compensation package

Salaries and fees

In the period keading up to Listing, Hugh Willis and Mark Poole were
each paid a salary of £260,000 per annum Durnng the same penod,
Nick Williams and Alex Khein were each paid a salary of £120,000 per
annum Following the Listing, all four executive directors agreed to a
voluntary reduction of their annual salaries to a standard £100,000 per
annum (see figure 6}

Fees for the Chairman are set at £75,000 per annum and £50,000
per annum for the remaining non-executive directors

Discretionary bonuses

tn common with most of the financial senices industry, the Company
operates an annual compensation cycle which broadly coincides with
the calendar year, where all bonuses are accrued and paid on a
calendar year basis The bonus poc! available for payment to the
executive directors 15 wholly dependent on the profitability of the
Company and has the potential to be a significant element of

their total compensation All executive directors participate in a
management bonus pocl which is determined as a percentage

of pre-tax profits before deduction of the management poc!

The allocation of the pool amongst the participants 1s determined
by the Commuttee Al executive directors participated in the 2006
bonus deferral programme described above and therefore two thirds
of their bonus entitlernents were paid in the form of cash bonuses
and the remaining third was deferred and invested in shares of one
of the long/short funds managed by the Company The shares vest
over a three year period whereby the executive director can choose
to have the shares vest at the end of the three year period (referred
to as the bultet plan) or have the shares vest evenly over the three
year vesiing penod (referred to as the amortising plan) Vesting is
not conditional on meeting pre-set performance cntena
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Remuneration Report cnued

* Figure 7 Shareholder return

“commencement of conditional trading  Source FTSE 250
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Benefits

The executive directors are not entitled to any benefits and they do
not participate in the Company's pension arrangements The
Company operates a defined contnbution pension scheme to which
the Company does not contribute

Share incentive plan

The executive directors were eligible to participate in the SIP that
was offered to all permanent UK-based employees in January 2007
goth Mick Willlams and Alex Khemn participated in the plan They
each purchased partnership shares up to the maximum allowed by
the SIP and were awarded matching shares and free shares Both
Hugh Willis and Mark Poole waived their entitlerenss under the
Plan

Stock and option awards

Except for the SIP described above, no new stock or option awards
were made to any of the executve directors during the course of the
financial year

Frior to this financial year, certain options were granted to executwe
directors and senicr management as Enterprise Management
Incentive options {"EMI options™) under the prowisions of sections
527 — 541 of and schedule 5 to the Income Tax (Earnings and
Pensions) Act 2003 ('EMI options ) Any options that are not EMI
options are " Unapproved Options”™ The EMI gptions and Unapproved
Options were granted on the terms that, in connection with an PO,
these opuions could be exercsed regardless of the vesting schedule All
EMI options i refation to the executive directors at the ume of hsting
were exercised on Listing Un-exercised Unapproved Options vest as
follows 25% on or after each 30 January 2007, 30 January 2008,
30 January 2009 and 30 January 2010 The Unapproved Options

i relation to executive directors will lapse to the extent they are

not exercised by the tenth anniversary of the date of grant, being

26 April 2016 Vesting 15 not conditional on meeting any pre-set
perfarmance cntena

Performance graph

The performance grach {figure 7) compares the Company's total
shareholder return performance against the FTSE 250 Index The
FTSE 250 comprises the 250 medium sized quoted companies by
market capitalisation not covered by the FTSE 100 1t has been

chosen because 1t 15 a widely recognised performance comparison
for medium sized UK companies

Figure 7 shows the growth in value of a hypotheuical £100 invested
in the Company's ordinary shares on 17 Nevember 2006% compared
with the FTSE 250 index for the same pericd

Directors' interests in ordinary shares

30 June 2007
Ordinary shares

30 June 2006*
Ordinary shares

Beneficial interests
Executive directors®

Hugh Willis? 23,380 000 32 480 00D
Mark Poote? 23,380 000 32 480 000
Nick Williams 3,001 861 2100000
Alex Khein 6,001,861 5000 0G0
Non-executive directors

Hans-Jérg Rudloff® 286 667 -
Terence Eccles 16,000 -
Tom Cross Brown 33333 -

Notes

a As at 1 July 2006 or date of appointment If later Information represents hofdings
restated to reflect the ssue of bonus shares and the share capital re-organisation
n connection with Listing

b Rans-)brg Rudloff has an economic interest in 1 000 Q00 ordinary shares
{previously classified as D Shares) which has not been included in the above
information

c in addition to the sbove each of the executve directors 15 deemed to have an
interest in all shares heid by the BlueBay Asset Management plc Employee Benefit
Trust as potental beneficanes of the trust

d 20 000 000 of the ordinary shares im which each of Hugh willis and Mark Poole
are interested are held by Strand Nominees Limited

The market price of the Company's shares at the end of the financial
year was 495 0 pence The highest and lowest daily closing share
price during the period of this report following conditicnal trading
was 568 25 pence and 315 0 pence respectively

There have been no changes 1o the Directors’ wnterests i ordinary
shares between 30 June 2007 and the date of this report

* Represents the date that BlueBay commenced condinenal trading on the main
market of the London Stock Exchange Unconditional trading commenced on
22 November 2006
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Audited section of Remuneration Report

Directors’ emolurments

The emoluments {not including deferred fund awards and deferred
share awards on pages 43 to 45) of the Directors of the Group In
raspect of the perod for which they were in office in the relevant
year comprised

Deferred compensation schemes

Directors’ rights to fund awards

The executive directors had the following nghts 1o deferred cash
awards under the deferred compensation scheme

Rights held Rights Rights Rights
Annual as at granted held as at granted as

Salary/ cash 2007 2006 thuly during the 30 June Bt 10 Sept vesting
£'000 fees bonus®  Total  Total Shares 2006 year® 2007 2007 date
Executive directors Executive directors
Hugh Willis 167 1992 2,159 1510 Hugh Willis - - - - 31 Jan 2008
Mark Poole 167 £992 2159 1510 - - - - 3t jan 2009
Mick Williams® 68 382 450 - - 18679 18 679 - 31Jan 2010
Alex Khein* 68 1091 1,159 —
Non-executive directors Mark Poole - - - - 31 Jan 2008
Hans-18rg Rudlotf 46 — 46 — - - - — 31 Jan 7009 |
Terence Eccles® 30 - 30 - - 18 679 18,679 - 31Jan2010
Torn Cross Brown! 30 - 30 -
former directors Wick Withams® - 1,194 1,194 - 31 Jan 2008
Roger Jenkins® - - - - - 1,194 1,194 - 31 Jan 2009
Mark Militello® - - - - - 1,194 1194 - 31 Jan 2010
Fotal 30 June 2007 576 5,457 6,033
Total 30 June 2006 520 2 500 3020 Alex Khein - - - - 31 Jan2008
Notes - - - - 31 Jan 2009
a Balances represent cash banuses pard i financial year 2007 in relation 1o -~ 10235 10235 = 314an2010

calendar year 2006 Notes

Bonuses In relation to executive directors which have been accrued in the
Financial Statements but not paid for the penod 1 January 2007 to 30 June
2007 {a descniption of whach 1s given on page 41) amounted to £4 019 000
of which £1 340,000 has been deferred as per the bonus deferral programme
The percentage aliocation of the bonus pool to each executive director will be
determined by the Remuneration Committee at the end of calendar year 2007
Nick Wilbarns and Alex Khein were appointed 1o the Board as executive direciors
with effect from 1 November 2006

¢ Hans-lrg Rudloff was not remunerated pnor to Listing Remuneration
commenced with effect from 22 November 2006

Terence Eccles and Tom Cross Brown were appointed to the Board as non-
executive directors with effect from 22 November 2006

Roger lenkins and Mark Miltello respectively the representative directors far
Barclays Bark PLC and Shinsel Bank, Limited tesigned from the Board with
effect from | November 2006

No ¢ash benefits, benefits in kind or termination payments were made in
respect of the penod each Director was in office in the relevant penod

a All fund awards were invested in the same BlueBay managed fund The shares
were purchased at $100 00 per share

b Nick Willams has opted for the amortising plan whereby the shares vest evenly
over three years rather than at the end of the three year vesting penod

fund awards are investments in a range of BlueBay mnvestment funds

and as such provide the executive directors with a personal interest

in the performance of the funds managed by the Group Fund

awards are rnights to deferred jund shares and do not give rise to any

immediate entitlement on grant The "nghts granted during the

year" refer to awards made in respect of the 2006 calendar year

These nghts are subject to forferture and the deferred fund share

awards are not accessible for a minimum of 12 months from

allocation The nght to the award on vesting 1s not conditional on

achieving any pre-set performance criteria '

The bonus deferral programme 15 only available to employess of the -
Group and 15 therefore not available to the non-executive directors
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Audited section of Remuneration Report wntinues

The executive directors’ nghts to shares under option

Numbger of shares

Rights Rights Rights Qption
granted exercised Held at granted price of Earliest Latest
Date of Held at duning dunng 30 June 10 Sept  outstanding exercise EXEFOISE Exercise
Scheme grant 1 July 2006 year year 2007 2007 rights date date date
Executive directors
Hugh Willis* Eivit 211205 900 D00 - 900,000 - - - - - 211108
Mark Poole® EMI 2112905 900 D00 - 900 000 - - - - - 211106
Nick Wilharnse« EMI 211205 900,000 - 900 000 = - - - - 2111906
UAQ 270406 1000000 - — 1000000 - 22 2ép 300107 26416
Alex Khain - - - - - -
Notes

2 Hugh Withs and Mark Poole exercised all of their EME options on 21 Novernber 2006 at an exercise price of 28 53 pence The market price on the date the rights were
exercised was 331 50 pence giving a gamn of £2 726 730 1o Hugh Willis and a gamn of £2 726 730 to Mark Poole The exercised opuons are subject to forfeiture

provisions

b Nick Williams exerased all of his EMI cptions on 21 November 2006 at an exercise price of 1541 pence The market price on the date the rights were exercised was
33156 pence gving a gain of £2 844 810 The exercised options are subject to forfeiture provisions
c Nick Willlams  EMI and Unapproved Options were granied prior to his appointment to the Board

Directors’ rights to shares under option

These nghts to shares do net give nse to any iImmediate entitlernent
on grant and are subject to forfeiture provisions All options were
granted before Listing and as such the right to exercise the EMI

and Unapproved ("UAO") options are not conditional on achieving
pre-set performance critena The exercised £MI options vest
unconditicnally as follows 25% on or after each of 22 November
2007, 22 November 2008, 22 Novemnber 2009 and 22 November
2010 No additional options were granted to executive directors
after 30 June 2007 to the date of this report

Un-exercised unapproved options vest as foliows 25% on or after each
30 January 2007, 30 lanuary 2008, 30 Januaty 2009 and 30 January
201C The unapproved options in relation to executive directors will
lapse to the extent they are not exercised by the day before the tenth
anniversary of the date of grant, being 26 Apnl 2016

The market price of ordinary shares at 30 June 2007 was 495 00 pence
On 17 November 2006, BlueBays ordinary shares were placed on
the main market for listed securities of the London Stock Exchange
at an offer price of 300 00 pence per ordinary share The range

during the period following conditionaf trading to 3G June 2007
was 315 00 pence to 568 25 pence per ordinary share The
closing market price of ordinary shares on 10 Septernber 2007
was 365 75 pence

Equity settled share award scheme (formerly ‘D" shares)
The executive directars had the following nights to equity settled
share awards

Awarded Lapsed/ Outstanding
Outstanding during Transferred forfeited at 30 June
at 1 July 2006 year n year*  inyear 2007

Executive directors
Hugh wilks 2,480 000 - - - 2480,000
Mark Poole 2,480 000 - - - 1450000
Nick Willams 2100 00Q - - - _ 2100000
Alex Khein 6 000 000 - - - 6000000

Notes

a No shares vested uncondrtionally during the penad
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The executive directors were eligible to purchase shares which were
subject to forfeiture provisions and only vest unconditionally as
follows 25% on or after each of 22 November 2007, 22 November
2008, 22 November 2009 and 22 November 2010 The farr value of
shares on subscription was 23 68 pence

Share incentive plan
The executive directors had the following nghits to free and
matching shares

Matched Shares Free and
Free and Free Shares Shares transferred Matched
Matched Shares granted granted In year Shares held
held as at  during the during the as at 30
1 July 2006 year® year” June 2007

Executive directors
Hugh Willis¢ - - - — -
Mark Poole - - - - -
Nick Whlliams - 745 144 - 1489
Alex Khein - 745 744 - 1,489

Notes

a The iree shares award for grant date 31 January 2007 1s a maximum of £3,000
worth of shares The share price at grant date was 402 25 pence

b The share pnce for the matching share award at grant date
31 January 2007 was 402 25 pence

¢ Hugh Willis and Mark Poole wawved their right to free and matching shares under
the SIP

The SIP 15 an HMRC approved plan which offers eligible emgloyees
(including executive directars), a way to acquire shares in the
Company with possible tax advantages to the employee

Free shares are awarded to eligible employees at no cost Matching
shares are awarded at a ratio of 2 to 1, based on partnership shares
purchased by the employee The partnership shares have an imiial
subscription of £1,500 or 10% of annual salary, if less The nights to
free shares and matching shares are not conditional on achieving a
performance criteria but are subject to forfeiture provisions and must
be held and remain in trust for at least three years from the date on
which the nght was acquired Dwidends are automatically reinvested
and must be held and remain 0 trust for three years from the date
of reinvestment

Approved and signed cn behzlf of the Board
Terence Eccles

Chairman, Remuneration Committee
24 September 2007
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Risk Management and Internal Centrol

Figure 8 BlueBay's investment process

Investment Committee

Risk Management

Non-Security Speafic (top down inputs}

Emerging Market Debt Portfolio
Management {long-only and long/short)

European Corporate Debt Portfolio
Management (long only and long/short)

Secunty Specfic (bottom-up inputs)

Execution & Financing

Credit Research

Source BlueBay Astet Management plc

The Board places a high prionity on a strong nsk management
culture within the Group, The Board recogmises that risk 1s
inherent in the Group's business and the markets in which

it specialises Effective nsk management and strong internal
controls are therefore central to the Group’s business model

The tone of BlueBay's internal control environment 1s set through

A clear defintion of management and staff responsibilities, with
reporting lings incorporating segregation of duties,

Recrurtment procedures to ensure that BlueBay recrunts anly staff
of appropniate calibre and background,

Transaction processing functions that focus on timely processing
and recording of investment transactions, including the
maintenance of consistent records and accurate reporting of
holdings to clients,

Active and professionally-staffed compliance and nsk
management teams, and

The encouragement of a culture of openness and mutual trust
between colleagues

The Board 15 ultimately responsible for the nsk management process
at BlueBay This responsibility 1s pnimarily fulfilled by two of its sub-
commuttees the Audit Comrmtiee, which is responsible for the
oversight of the risk management process and {or assessing its
effecuveness for BlueBay and the Management Commuttee, which i3
respansible for the identification, assessment and management of nsks

The Management Committee relies on the support provided by two
internal commuttees 1o assist 1t in carrying out 1ts responsibilities

The Investment Committee which 1s responsible for reviewing
the investment strateqies of each of the portfolio management
teams

The Compliance and Contral Committee which s responsible for
BlueBay's operational sk management processes and nternal
control framework

Investment risk

One of BlueBay's key corporate objectives 15 to generate strong nsk-
adjusted investment performance over the term of the credit cycle
The investment process 15 designed to help us to meet this objectve
(see figure 8)

The investment process combines a series of top-down inputs
with bottom-up secunty specific analysis The top-down inputs
are provided through the Investment Committee, which comprses
all senigr porifolo managers and the Chief Investment Officer

It meets on a regular basis to formulate a common view on the
macro-economic backdrop and market conditions against which
8lueBay makes 1ts investment decisions Each of the portfolio
management teams comprises a number of dedicated credst analysts
who are sub-asset class specialists

Portfolio nsk management

Overalt responsibility for pertfolio nsk rests wath the Chief Investment
Officer who retains responsibility for setting portfolio risk targets,

in conjunction with the Investment Committee and senwor portfolio
managers

Each portfolio management team is responsible for ensunng s
pertfolio 15 in compliance with fund tnvestment restrictions 7o assist
them in this task, the investment restricions which govern positions
n secunties and relate to the majority of the portfolio’s investment
transactions are programmed into BlueBay's portfolio management
system, the Charles River Compliance Master (the "Portfolio
Management Systern”)

Portfolio managers onginate orders but do not execute trades This s
done by the trade execution desk, an independent team made up of
dedicated traders with specialised market knowledge by asset class
The execution team receives orders which are then traded in the
market The segregation of the portfolio management and trade
execution functions 1s an integral part of BlueBay's risk management
policy

When a portfolio manager enters an investment order in the
Portfelio Management System, the system runs a compliance check
on the order before efectronically passing it to the BlueBay trade
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execution team I the executed order were to bring a portfoho
holding ¢lose to an investment limit, the Portfolic Management
System would i1ssue a warning which the portiolio manager has
to overnde in order to transmit the trade to the execution team

If the executed order were to cause a breach of an investment
restriction, the Portfolio Management System woutd issue an alert
which the portfolio manager would be unable to overnde and
transmission of the order to the trade execution team would be
prevented Qccasienally, there are circumstances where an alert may
be justifiably overridden, however, this can only be carried out by
a member of the Compliance team A few investment restrictions
cannot be programmed into the Portfolic Management System
50 porifollo managers review these orders manually prior to
transmitting them to the trade execution team The Compliance
team carries out a full review of alt Investment restrictions in all
portfolios on a post-trade basis

Market risk management

Risk 15 measured by calculating the sensitmity of every trade or position to
changes in the relevant nisk factors On a daily basis, a set of standard
nsk reports 15 produced and distnbuted to the portfolio management
tearns and the Management Commuttee These dally nsk reports
include sensitivities to relevant rnisk factors, an assessment of overall
value at nsk (*VAR ) and the VAR contribution of every position and

a range of historical and customised stress tests Cn a regular basis

the results are back tested in order to validate the nsk figures

Independent nisk monitonng 1s ¢arnied out by the Risk and
Performance team The team uses RiskManager®, an application
developed by the RiskMetrics Group™ RiskManager models every
instrument as a function of underlying nsk factors, 1 e nterest rates,
credit spreads, FX rates, equity prices and (implied} volat:hties

Liguidity risk management

Fund hquidity nisk s managed by monitonng the amount of available
cash held in each fund on a daily basis and targeting an amount
that 1s deemed to be sufficient to cover the cash needs of the

funds including margin payments and potential redempticns under
stressed market conditions without being forced to liquidate assets

Counterparty credit nisk management

BlueBay funds only enter into over-the-counter (*OTC") derwvative
transactions with highly rated institutions with which they have
signed International Swap Dealers Association {"ISDA") Master
Agreements Each counterparty has been approved by BlueBay's
Chief Investment Officer and the Compliance Officer and each new
counterparty requires the approval of both the Chief Investment
Officer and Compliance Officer before a trade with that counterparty
may be executed BlueBay periodically assesses concentrations of
credit nisk with particutar counterparttes, by taking into account
current exposures and potential future exposures due to changes

in market rates

Operational nsk

The Group’s Comphance and Control Cormnmittee Is responsible for
identifying the major nisks to which the Group Is exposed and for
developing cost-effective policy proposals 1o manage those risks
The Commuttee 1s responsible for developing and refining BlueBay's
internal control policies and procedures The Committee comprises
the senior infrastructure managers, the head of the trade execution
desk, the Compliance Officer, the Chief Operating Officer and s
chaired by the Chief Financiat Officer During the course of the
financial year, the Committee carried out three major initiatives

Review and update of the Group's risk register This s a
document which identifies all the main business risks of the
Group, assesses the impact and habilities of a nsk event and
analyses the effects of nisk mitigants This review was carried

out by a team compnsing internal resources and operational

risk experts sourced from KPMG

Review and update of the Group’s internal control procedures In
the UK, asset managers’ internal control procedures were typically
reviewed by external reporting accountants in accordance with

the framework set out by the Financial Reporting and Audit Group
("FRAG") n Audit 4/97 - FRAG 21/94 (revised) 1ssued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in €ngland and wWales
("ICAEW"} This framework has now peen replaced by a new

ane set out i AAF 01/06 also 1ssued by the ICAEW which applies
to all reporting periods starting on or after 31 March 2007 :
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Risk Management and Internal Control e

This new framewoerk reguires asset managers to comply with
significantly more demanding internal controt procedures
BlueBay has taken this opportunity to review and improve its
internal contral environment n arder 1o meet the new standard
Review and update the Group's comgpliance manual and
procedures During the financial year, BlueBay designed a suite
of funds targeted exclusively for distribution in the US These
have been designed to accommodate taxable and non-taxable US
investors, including those which are subject to ERISA legislation
This grompied a review of the BlueBay comphance manual to
accommodate the additional US compliance requirements The
BlueBay compliance manual 15 updated on a regular basis to
reflect changes in applicable legislation and regulations

Compliance

In addition to maintaining the investment restrnictions for each
mandate in the Portfolio Management System, the department
performs a monitanng role foqusing on procedures and controls

m place to ensure compliance with applicable legal and regulatory
standards The compliance arrangements which are designed

to promote comphance with regulations are set out in BlueBay's
compliance manual The compliance manual incarporates the code
of ethics which includes policies on personal account dealing, gifts
and entertainment and insider trading policies All staff are required
to sign an undertaking that they are familiar with and wall comply
with the compliance manual

The key responsibilities of the Compliance Team are

Ensuring that business is conducted in accordance with FSA and
other applicable regulations,

Ensuring that investment mandates are managed tn accordance
with applicable regulaiions and mandate restnictions,

Reviewing and monitoring changes in regulations and laws and
ensuring communication of relevant changes 1o the business
units,

Providing traintng sessions on regulatory requirements

Assisting 1n the resolution of rule breaches and client complaints
and following up to ensure that controls are amended 10 prevent
recurrence, angd

Serving as the pnmary contact with external regulators

Disaster recovery and backup procedures

The Company operates a robust disaster recovery platform that s
tested twice a year In the event of a local disaster, or fatlure to gain
access to the Company's current location, SunGard Availability
Services are contracted to provide workspace for the Company’s
use The Company currently has several methods of server and

data recovery 1n place which vary depending on the nature of the
event This includes an off-site high avallability facility which hosts
replicated senvices for core servers and trade systems Back-up
servers for the Company's file server, email and core trading systems
are resident at the high availability site

The Company has uninterruptible power sources at head office for
all desktops, servers and communications equipment The Company
backs up its servers at the end of each working day

Internal control reviews FRAG/AAF

The Company appointed PwC as reporting accountant for the

FRAG 21 report (issued by the Financial Reporting and Audit Group)
for the nine months to 30 March 2007 As noted above, the FRAG
(internal controls review) regime has been replaced by the Audit and
Assurance Faculty 01/06 {"AAF 01/06") internal control reporting
framework For the year starting on 31 March 2007 and ending on
30 March 2008, the Group intends to commussion Pw(C to carry out
a review 1n accordance with this new framework

Audit Committee

On hehalf of the Board, the Audit Committee confirms that it has
underiaken an intial review of the effectiveness of the systems of
internal control In existence in the Group for the year ended 30 June
2007 and has taken account of matenal developments since the year
end This process will be completed before the end of the calendar
year 2007 to the standard required by the Turnbull Guidance
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Corporate Responsibility Report

The Board and management of BlueBay recognise that
through its actions, the Company has an impact on 1ts people,
1its marketplace, the community and the environment We
believe that as a result of this impact, we have responsibihity
to behave in ways which reflect our core values

The way in which we discharge this responsibility will reflect on our
reputation We pnide ourselves In the reputation we have established
We are keenly aware that failure to lve up to our core values may
damage that reputatien and that, ence lost, it s very hard to regain

Employees

In order to be successful In our business, we need to recrut the very
best professionals 1n the marketplace to fill each and every one of
the positions we have at BlueBay We arm to continue to recruit and
retain the most accomplished piofessionals in the marketplace We
recrust our employees based solely on professional ability, objective
cntena and without regard to any possible discnminatory factors
We have a dwverse workforce and as at 30 June 2007, we employed
185 people from more than 20 nationalities in a ratio of 2/3 male,
1/3 female We operate user frnendly employment policies airmed

at promoting equal opporturties and tackling and preventing
harassment or discrimenation These policies are available on our
intranet 1o all employees, workers and contractors

Our chents glace a high level of trust In us and we recognise both the
responsibility this brings and the resulting demands on our people
Hawing grown the business rapidly we acknowledge that to continue to
be eriective we must provide the necessary support and development
Consequently our employees receive appropriate traiming to ensure
they are developing therr professional abilities  Going forward we

wilf continue to focus on professional skills traiming together with
mentonng and talent management programmes In addition, we
believe that an integral component of employee development 15
encouraging constructive feedback coupled with a requirement that
all employees have agreed objectives To achieve this we have shvays
operated an annual appraisal system and for several years we have
also undertaken mid year reviews We consider that these tools enable
employees to identify therr strengths and the behaviours they need to
address in order continue to atiain therr potential

It 15 important for all of us to participate in the success of the
Company and this 1s demonstrated by the fact that almost all
permanent employees have direct or indirect stakes in the Group
We consider [ong-term commitment to the Group should be
recognised and rewarded and we have extended our practice of
offering part of the annual discretionary bonus award 10 be taken in
the form of deferred fund share awards which vest over several years

We are committed to providing our employees with a congen:al
waorkplace We feel it 15 crugial for us to maintain a collegiate
working atmosphere based on mutual respect for all, regardless of
the position a person has within the Company We believe that our
corporate culture 1s an important aspect of our success and that 1t
Is best mamntamed by staying together When 1t became clear that
our current Londen office would ne longer accommedate all of our
employees, we looked for alternative premises that would enable
us all to stay together Similarly, in anticipation of the growth of our
New York office, (which engages in sales, chent service and research
activities), we have secured the lease of additional office space
directly adjacent to the current office

We recognise aur health & safety obligations t¢ everyone who

either works in or visits our premises Hugh Willis, Chief Executive is
responsible for health & safety and he 15 assisted by an external fully
qualified professional Cur comprehensive health 8 safety policy is
avalable on our intranet in kne with recent legisiation we operate a
non-smoking palicy in our office and our policy on the intranet offers
gurdance 1o employees Although we carried out an extensive health
and safety review duning the early part of 2007 we will undertake
another once we have moved to our new London location

Marketplace

We believe that the interests of our business are best served by
establishing a reputation for reliably doing what we say we will

do and being as transparent as s commercially sensible to enable
people to check our assertians for themselves We regularly respond
to due diligence questionnarres and invite prospective clients to inal
due diligence wisits which will typically cover both the investment
process and the operational infrastructure Many existing clients
conduct regular follow-up due diigence visits
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Corporate Responsibility Report contiued

We have eslablished a substantial chent relations team in our Londen
office with additional resource in both cur Tokyo and New York offices
In addition to day-to-day client servicing, these teams ensure that
clients recewve regular investment reporting, hold client review meetings
and ensure that informaticn s available via our secure client extranet
site The wider team also have responsibility for ensunng the Group
website 15 maintained They produce Group and product Iiterature and
publication of our penodic investment publications (eg “Wavelength™)
setting out the Group's views on various aspects of the credit markets
We are always keen 10 receve feedback

We welcomed the improvement in the standard of internal control
review Introduced by the Institute of Chartered Accountants i
England and Wales n their new AAF 01/06 standard which replaced
the old FRAG 21 standard We commissioned KPMG to carry out a
gap analysis of our control environment against this new standard
which has resulted in a number of contral iImprovements in our
organisation We invited Standard & Poors ("S&P") to review and
rate our long-only funds and three of our flagship funds now have
an S&F rating, two of which are AA and one of which 15 AAA

As a fixed income credit asset manager, we invest predominately
bonds and loans rather than equities As a result, our ability to
influence the management of the companies in which we nvest s
typically significantly more Iimited than it would be for an equity
investor Nevertheless, we recognise that there 1s a growing number
of investors who want their investments to be made on a socially
responsiple basis During the course of the year, we have worked
closely wath one of our clients to develop the concept of an "ethical”
alternative to one of cur funds, which excludes investments in
certain companies and industrnies at the request of the chent

Community

As we grow in size, we have become increasingly aware of our
impact on the wider community We asked all our employees if
they would like to nominate a charity to which we could make
a corporate donation In 2006-07, we made a combined
contnibution of £100 000 to three charties which focused on
disadvantaged children and which, in our cpinion, had a good

record of channelling most of the denations they receive through
to their beneficiaries These were the National Society for the
Prevention of Cruelty to Children (NSPCC), Save the Children and
the National Children’s Homes

We sponsor those employees that wish (¢ particpate in the annual
Chase Corporate Challenge where monies are raised for the Sports
Aud charty

During the course of 2007-08, we will continue to look into
opportunities to enable the Group and its employees to contribute
to the wider community

Environment

We have become increasingly aware of the negative iImpact economic
activity may have on the environment We are committed to kmiting
and ultimately reducing the impact of our business on the environment

Gur move to a new bullding in Lendon opens up a number of
opportunities for us The redevelcpment of the building was completed
in 2007 and it complies with the highest bullding environmental
standards in the UX In order to fit cut the inside of the bullding to
meet our business requirements, we selected a contractor based on a
tender process where environmental credentials were one of the critical
selection cnteria The contractor we have selected 15 widely recognised
for its environmental practice and in a recent development for the UK
Department for Environment, Food and Rural Affarrs (Defra) the
contractor receved an ‘ Excellent” rating under the S8uitding Research
£stablishment Environmental Assessment Method (BREEAM)

For the ongeoing operation of our business, we are actively looking
at ways in which we can reduce our consumgtion of energy In the
select:on of cleaning contractors, we are aiming to source supphers
who can provide us with more effective ways of recyching office
waste Al the time of writing 1115 a litle too early to describe
specific intiatives, however, we anticipate we will have more 1o
report 1n our next Annual Report
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Directors’ Responsibility Statement

The following statement, which should be read in coryunction
with the report of the independent auditors, I1s made with a view
to distinguishing for shareholders the respective responsibilities
of the Directors and the auditors in relation to the Annual Report
and the Financial Statements contained within

The Duectors are respensible for preparing the Annual Report

and ensunng 1t gives a true and fair view of the state of affairs

of the Group at the end of the financial year and of the results for
the year in accordance with applicable UK Jaw, United Kingdom
Accounting Standards and those International Financial Reporting
Standards (iFRS) adopted by the EU The Directors have responsibility
for ensuning that the Group keeps proper accounting records
which enable them to ensure the Financial Statements comply
with the Companies Act 1985 They are also responsible for taking
reasonable steps to safeguard the assets of the Group and to
prevent and detect fraud and other irregulanties

The Directors remain satisfied that the Group has adequate resources
1o continue in tusiness and, accordingly, that the Financial Statements
should be drawn up on a going concern basis Further, appropriate
accounting pelicies consistently apphed and supported by reasonable
and prudent judgements and estimates have been used In the
preparation of these Financial Statements and apglicable accounting
standards have been followed These policies and standards, for
which the Directers aceept responsibility, have been discussed

with the auditors The Directors having prepared the Financial
Statements, have requested the auditors to take whatever steps

and to undertake whatever inspections they consider appropriate

for the purpose of giving therr repert

Disclosure of information to auditors

Each Director has responsibility for ensuring that, as far as he s
aware there 1s no relevant audit information of which the auditors
are unaware, and that he has taken all the steps that he ought to
have taken to make himsalf aware of any relevant audit informaticn
{that 1s, relevant to the preparation of the auditars’ reports) and to
establish that the Group’s auditors are aware of that information
This confirmation is given and should be interpreted in accordance
with the provisions of section 234ZA of the Companies Act 1985

Other disclosures

Pages 28 to 30 inclusive contain the Directors’ Report and pages 40
to 45 inclusive contain the Remuneration Report, both of which have
been drawn up and presented in accordance with and in reliance
upon applicable English Company Law, and the habilities of the
Directors In connection with those reports shall be subject to the
limitations and restrictions provided by such law

The statement from the Chairman and the Chief Executive on pages
610 7 and 8 to 9 respectively and the Business Review on pages 11 to
24, which form part of the Directors’ Report, contain certain forwarg-
tooking statements with respect to the financial condition, and results
of, operations and businesses of the Group These statements and
forecasts involve nsk and uncertainty because they relate to events and
depend on circumstances that may occur in the future There are a
number of factors that could cause actual resulis or developments to
differ materially from those expressed or impfied by these forward-
looking statements and forecasts Forward-looking statements and
forecasts are based on the Directors’ current view and information
known to them at the date of this report The Directors do not make
any undertaking to update or rewse any forward looking statements,
whether as a resuit of new information, future events or otherwise
Nothing i this document shoutd be construed as a profit forecast

The Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2007 are included
in the Annual Report 2007, which 1s published in hard copy form and
made available on the Group's website The Directors are respensible
for the maintenance and integrity of the Annual Report on the Groups
website in accordance with UK legislation governing the preparation
and dissermination of Financial Statements It should be noted that
information published on the Internet is accessible in many countries,
some of which have different legal requirements relating to the
preparation and disserrination of financial Statements The work
carned out by the auditors does not involve consideration of these
matters and, accordingly, the auditars accept no respensibility for any
changes that have occurred to the Financial Statements since they were
inwally presented on the website

By Order of the Board
#orne—
James Brace
Company Secretary
24 September 2007
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of BlueBay Asset Management plc

We have audited the Group and Parent Company Financial Statements {the “Financial Statemenis”) of BlueBay Asset Management plc for
the year ended 30 June 2007 which compnse the Group Income Statement, the Group and Parent Company Balance Sheets, the Group and
Parent Company Statements of Changes in Equity, the Group and Parent Company Cash Flow Statements and the related notes These
Financial Statements have been prepared under the accounting policies set out therein We have also audited the information in the
Directors’ Remuneration Report that 15 described as having been audited

Respective responsibihities of Directors and auditors

The Direciors’ responsibilities for prepaning the Annual Repenrt, the Directors’ Remuneration Report and the Financial Statements in accordance
with applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Unton are set out in the Directors”
Responsibtlity Statement

Qur responsibiity :s to audit the Financial Statements and the section of the Directors” Remuneration Report to be audited in accordance
with relevant legal and regulatory requirements and International Standards on Auditing (UK and trefand) This report, including the opimion,
has been prepared for and only for the Company’s members as a body in accordance with Section 235 of the Companies Act 1985 and for
no other purpose We do not, in gving this epinion, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other persen 10 whom
this report 1s shown or into whose hands 1t may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing

We raport to you our opinton as to whether the Financial Statements give a true and fair view and whether the Financial Statements and the
section of the Directors” Remuneration Report to be audited have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1885 and,
as regards the Group Financiat Statements, Article 4 of the 1AS Regulation We also report to you whether in our opinion the information
given in the Directors' Repert 1s consistent with the Financial Statements

In addition we report to you If, in our opinion, the Company has not kept proper accounting records, If we have not recewved all the
information and explanations we require for our audst, or if informatien specified by law regarding Directars’ remuneration and cther
transactions s not disclosed

We review whether the Corporate Governance Statement reflects the Company’s compliance with the nine provisions of the Combined
Code (2003) specified for our review by the Listing Rules of the Financial Services Authority, and we report if 1t does not We are not required
te consider whether the Board s statements on internal control cover all nisks and controls, or form an opmion on the effectiveness of the
Group's corporate governance procedures or its nsk and control procedures

We read other information contained in the Annual Report and consider whether it s consistent with the audited Financial Statements

The other information comprises only the Directars’ Report, the unaudited section of the Directors’ Remunerat:on Report, the Chief
Executive’s Review, the Chairman's Statement the Business Review and the Corporate Governance Statement We censider the imphcations
for cur report if we become aware of any apparent misstatements or matenal inconsistencies with the Financial Statements Our
responsibilities do not extend to any other information

The maintenance and integrity of the BlueBay Asset Management plc website § the responsibility of the Directors, the work carned out by
the auditors does not involve consideration of these matters and, accordingly, the audstors accept no responsibility for any changes that may
have occurred to the Financial Statements singce they were nttially presented on the website

Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of Financial Statements may differ from legislation in other
Jjunsdictions

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) issued by the Auditing Practices Board

An audtt includes examunation, on a test basis, of ewidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the Financial Statements and the
section of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgments made
by the Directors in the preparation of the Finanaal Statements, and of whether the accounting policies are appropniate to the Group’s and
Company’s arcumstances, consistently appled and adequately disclosed

We planned and performed our audit so as 1o abtawn all the information and explanations which we considered necessary i order io provide
us with sufficient ewidence to give reasonable assurance that the Financial Statements and the section of the Directors’ Remuneration Report
to be audited are free from matenai misstaterment, whether caused by fraud or other trregulanity or error In forming our gpinion we also
evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the Finanaial Statements and the section of the Directors’ Remuneration
Report to be audited
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Opimnion

in our opinion

= the Group Finanoial Statements give a true and fair view, 10 accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union, of the state of the
Group's affairs as at 30 June 2007 and of its profit and cash flows for the year then ended,

=¥ the Parent Company Finanaal Statements give a true and fair view, in accordance « sith IFRSs as adopted by the European Union as
appled in accordance with the prowisions af the Companies Act 1985, of the state of the parert company’s affairs as at 30 June 2007
and cash flows far the year then ended,

< the Financal Statements and the section of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited have been properly preared i, accardance
with the Campanies Act 1985 and, as regards the Group Financrat Statements, Article 4 of the 1AS Regulation, and

< the infarmat on given in the Directors' Repert 1s consistent with the Financial Statements

X fiwskiAaneloopm LLP

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
Lendon

24 Septerber 2007
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Significant accounting policies

BlueBay Asset Management ple ("the Company”) 1s a company incorporated in the United Kingdom under the Compantes Act 1985
The Group Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2007 compnise the Company and its subsidiaries (" the Group™)

The significant accounting policies are summarised below These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented

a) Basis of preparation

The Group Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS") and relevant
International Financial Reporting Interpretations Commuittee (*IFRIC*) interpretations 1ssued by the International Accounting Standards Board
{"t1ASB"} as adopted by the European Unian {("EU") and with those parts of the Companies Act 1885 apphicable to companies reporting
under IFRS

The Group Financial Statements have been prepared under the histoncal cost convention, except for the measurement at fair value of
derivative financial instruments and certain financial assets that are held at farr value through profit or loss

b} Basis of consolidation

The Group Financial Statements incorporates Financial Statements of the Company and entities controiled by the Company (its subsidiarnies)

prepared to 30 June each year Control exists when the Company has the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity

50 as to obtain benefits from its activities The Financial Statements of subsiciaries are included in the Group’s Financial Statements from the
date that control begins to the date that control ceases

The subsidiaries of the Company arg

BlueBay Funds Management Company S A
BlueBay Asset Management Japan Limited
BlueBay Asset Management USA LLC

The Group's Employee Benefit Trusts are also consolidated in the Group s Financial Statements
All intra-group transactions and balances are eiminated in full on consolidation
Neither the Directors nor shareholders have the power to amend the Financial Staterments after i1ssue

¢) Changes n accounting policies and disclosures
IFRIC interpretations and amendments to existing standards that became effective during the year have been applied by the Group These
amendments have not had a matenial iImpact on the Financial Statements or acceunting policies

d) New IFRS standards and interpretations not apphed

The followang {FRSs and interpretations were avaitable for early apphcation but have not been apphed in thase Finanaal Statements The
Group has assessed the impact of these new standards and interpretations and has concluded 1t 1s not likely ta have a significant impact on
the Group's results

{1 IFRS 7 ‘Financial instruments disclosure’ and an amendment to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements’ on capital disclosures were
ssued by the 1ASB in August 2005 and are required to be adopted by the Group for reperting 1n its financial year ended 30 June 2008
This new standard and the revision to IAS 1 add further quantitative and gualitative disclosures i relation to financial instruments and
how an entity manages its cap:tal resources

(1) IFRS 8 Cperating segments was issued In November 2006 and, if adopted by the EU, will be required to be adopted by the Group for
reperting in 4ts fimancial year 30 June 2010 The new standard adopts a management approach under which segmental information 15 to
be disclosed on the same basis as that used for internal reporting purposes

(}IFRIC 8 ctanifies that transactions within the scope of IFRS 2 'Share Based Payment’ include those in which the entity cannot speafically
identify some or all of the goods and services recewved

(WIFRIC 9 clanfies that an entity should assess whether an embedded derivative 1s required to be separated from the hast contract and
accounted for as a dervative when the entity first becomes a party to the contract Subsequent reassessment 15 profubited unless there 1s
a change In the contract terms, in which case 1t 1s required

() IFRIC 10 Interm Financial Reporting and Impairment’ refers to impairment losses recognised in a previeus nterim pened in respect of
goadwill ar an investment in an equity instrument carned at cost should not be reversed in subsequent periods

()IFRIC 11 Group and Treasury Share Transactions’ addresses if certain transactions should be accounted for as equity-settled or cash-
settled under the requirement of IFRS 2 It also addresses share-based payment arrangements that involve two or more entities within the
same group
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e) Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of the Financial Statements requires management to make estimates and assurnptions that affect the reported amount of
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities 1f 1 the future such estimates and assumptions, which
are based on management's best judgement at the date of preparation of the Financial Statements, deviate from actual arcumstances, the
onginal estimates and assumptians will be modsfied as appropriate in the period in which the circumstances change The areas where a
higher degree of jJudgement or complexity anse, or areas where assumptions and esuimates are significant to the Group Financial Statements,
are discussed below

(1 Estimating the fair value of share-based payments
Prior to hsting, the Group had been required to make vanious valuation assumpttons in order to account for share-based payments These
are explained fully in note 19

(i) intangible assets
The valuation and amortisation perods of intangible assets on acquisition, such as computer software, and the impairment testing 's based
on value in use calculations prepared on the basis of management's assumptions and estimates of future cash flows and discount rates

(i) Staff costs
An estimate of the future lability for bonuses znd other emoloyee incentive schemes s included in staff costs

(v} Surplus premises
The Group penodically reviews its premises requirements and makes provisions where necessary If the Group has no current need for
premises to which the Group 1s already contractually committed under the terms of an operating lease agreement The calculation of any
required provision reguires significant judgement, as the Group needs to estimate the provision based upon discounted future cash
outflows due to be paid under the lease less any potentizl cash inflows from sub-letting arrangements that the Group 15 able to
negotiate These cash flows are then discounted for the remaining lease period In estimating these cash flows, the Group consults with
external advisers In the relevant location to understand the potential to sub-let the premises, the rental rates which could be achieved and
the potential ameunt and time pened of any leasehold inducements which may need 10 be offered to successfully secure a sub-tenant

f) Presentation of exceptional items

The Group has shown exceptional items separately on the face of the Income Statement The Group defines exceptional 1tems as those
material items, by wvirtue of thewr size or nature, which the Group considers should be presented separately in order to aid comparability
between penods

d) Segment reporting

A business segment 1s a group of assets and operations engaged in providing services that are subject to risks and returns that are different
from those of other business segments The principal activity of the Group 1s the provision of investment management services The busmness
segments are the primary reporting segments As the Group only operates In one business segment, no additional business segmental
analysis has been shown

A geographical segment is engaged in providing services within a particufar economic environment that are subject to risks and returns that
are different from those of components operating in other economic environments The Group operates in Eurcpe, Asia and North Amenca
The analyses by geographicat segment are based on the location of the customer This 1s the location where the fund product entities are
registered, or segregated chent accounts are domiciled, from which fee income 15 earned

h) Intang:ble assets
Computer software licences acquired are capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the specific software
These ¢osts are amortised using the straight line method over their estimated useful lives

Costs assocrated with developing ar maintaineng computer software programmes are recognised as an expense as incurred Costs that are
directly associated with the production of identifiable and unique software products controlled by the Group, and that will probahly generate
economic benefits exceeding costs beycnd one year, are recognised as intangible assets Direct costs Include software development and
assoviated contractor costs

Computer software development costs recognised as assets are amortised on a straight fine basis over their estimated usefuf lives The assets’
residual values and useful hves are reviewed, and adjusted 1f appropriate, at each balance sheet date An asset’s carrying amount is written
down immediately 10 1ts recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount 1s greater than its estimated recoverable amount

The following useful lives have been determined for the intangible assats acquired during the year

Computer software licences 3-5 years
Software development costs 5 years
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Significant accounting polices cnunued

1) Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipment 15 shown at cost, less subsequent depreciation and impairment Cost includes expenditure that 1s directly
attributable to the acquisition of the assets Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
a5 appropnate, only when 1t 1s probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the
item can be measured reliably All other repair and maintenance expenditures are charged to the Income Statement during the financial
period in which they are incurred

Depreciation (5 calcutated using the straight ine method to allocate the cost of each asset to its res:idual value over 1ts estimated useful hfe
as follows

Leaseheld improvernents 3-5 years
Furniture, fixtures and fittings 3 years
Information and communication technalogy equipment 3-5 years

Major renovations are depreciated over the remasning useful life of the related asset or to the date of the next major renavation, whichever
15 s500ner

The assets’ residual values and useful lves are reviewed and adiusted if appropnate at each balance sheet date An asset's carrving amount
is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the assets carrying amount Is greater than its estmated recoverable amount

Gains and losses on disposals are determimed by companng the disposal proceeds with the carrying amount and are included in the Income
Statement

1 Investments

() Classification
All Group investrments are classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss These include the financial assets ongmally
purchased as part of "deferred compensation awards” on behalf of employees and shown on the balance sheet, see note 13 Assets in
this category are classified as current assets if they are expected to be realised within 12 months of the balance sheet date

{11) Measurernent
Purchases and sales of investments are recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset
Investments are initially recogmised at far value plus transaction costs Investments are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows
from the investments have expired or have been transferred and the Group has transferred substantially ali the nsks and rewards of
ownership Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of financiat assets and liabifities at fair value through profit or loss are
included in other operating income 1n the Income Statement in the period in which they arise

k) Derivative financial instruments

() Dervative financial instruments and hedging activities
The Group uses derivative financial instruments to reduce exposure to foreign exchange risk and does not hold or 1ssue denvative financial
instruments for speculative purposes The Group does not designate any derivatives as hedging instruments Dervatives are, therefore,
inially recognised at fair value on the date on which a dervative contract 1s entered into and are subsequently remeasured at their fair
value The resulting gains or losses are recognised immed:ately in the income Statement Derecognition of dervative assets and liabihities
occurs on the expiry date of the dervative contract

(1} Financial nsk factors
A gualtative analysis of the finanaal nisks facing the Group, 15 provided in the Risk Management section to this Annual Report

[} Trade receivables

Trade recevables are recognised mitially at fair value less provision for impairment A provision for impairment of trade recewables 1s
established when there 1s objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the origenal terms of the
receivables The amount of the provision 1s the difference between the assets' carrying amounts and the present value of therr estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the effective interest rate The amount of the provision Is recognised n the Income Statement

m) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents compnse cash on hand, deposits held on call with banks and other short-term, highly higuid investments with
ernginal matunties of three months or less

n) Liability for share-based payments
Liabities in respect of histonic “share-based payment transactions”, which were cash-settled, are shown at their fair value at the balance
sheet date in accordance with IFRS 2
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o) Provisions
Prowisions for costs, such as legal claims, are recogrmised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past

events, it is more likely than not that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obfigation, and the amount can be reliably
estimated

p} Income recognition

(1) Revenue
Revenue compnses the far value for the provision of services, net of any value added tax, rebates and discounts and after the elimination
of sales within the Group Revenue 1s recognised as follows

(a} Performance fees — are calculated by reference to the appreciation in the nat asset value of the relevant fund during the performance
period In accerdance with IAS 18, performance fees are only recognised cnce they can be rmeasured reliably The Group can only
reliably measure performance fees at the end of the performance period as the net asset value of the relevant fund could move
significantly, as a result of market movements, between the Group’s balance sheet date and the end of the performance penod

(b) Management fees — which include all non-performance related fees, are recagnised in the period in which the services are rendered

{ir) Interest income
Interest Income 1s recagnised on a time-proportion basis using the effective interest method When a recewable s impaired the Groun
reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being the estimated future cash flow discounted at the ongmnal effective interest
rate of the instrument, and continues unwinding the discount as Interest income

q) Fair value estimation
The farr value of quated finanaial assets 1s based on curent bid prices

The fair value of unlisted financial assets (investments in the funds) 1s based on the net asset valuations of the funds at the balance sheet
date

r} Distribution agreements

The Group operates a number of distribution agreements Comrmission payments made 10 intermedaries for ongoing services under these
distrbution agreements are charged to the Income Statement in ihe period tn which they are incurred There are no arrangements where
commission payments are not for ongomg services

s) Leases
Leases where the lessor retains substantially all the nsks and benefits of ownership of the asset are classified as operating leases All the

Group's leases are operating leases and the rental charges are included in the Income Statemant on a straight {ine basis over the term of the
fease

As lessee, costs under operating leases are charged 10 the Income Statement in equal amounts over the periods of the leases Incentives
recewved {0 enter into leases are amortised on a straight line basis over the term of the lease

t} Employee benefits

{it Pension costs
The Group operates a defined contribution scheme Employees may contribute directly to this scheme The Group makes no contributions
to the scheme and there 15 therefore no cost in the Group accounts

) Share-based compensation
The Group operates equity-settled, share-based compensation plans These are explained in note 19 of these Financial $tatements
The fair value of the employee services received in exchange for the share awards and options granted 15 recognised as an expense
The total amount to be expensed over the vesting penied s determined by reference to the fair value of the shares and options
awarded/granted At each balance sheet date, the Group revises its esimates of the number of options that are expected to become

exercisable It recognises the impact of the revision of onginal estimates, if any, in the Income Statement, and a corresponding adjustment
to equity

{m) Deferred compensation plans
The Group also operates deferred compensation plans under which a portion of an employee’s bonus 1s Invested 1n one of the funds
managed by the Group The fair value of the employee services receved in exchange for the awards in the funds 15 recognised as an
expense The total amount to be expensed cver the vesting penicd s determined by reference to the fair value of the awards, remeasured
at each reporting date until the settlement date is reached The fair value of the awards equates to the fair value of the underlying
investment in the nominated fund entity at the settlement date
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Significant accounting policies cwnuned

{m) Profit-sharing and bonus plans
The Group operates non-contractual bonus pools based on formulas that take into consideration either Greup profitability or its
performance fee revenues, on a calendar year basis The formulas are reviewed and approved annually by the Remuneration Commitiee
At the end of the financial year, the Group recogrnises a hability for bonus pools accrued but not yet paid

u) Foreign currency translation

{1} Functional and presentation currency
Items included In the Financial Statements of each of the Group's entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (“the functional currency”) The Group Financial Statements are presented 1n Great British
Pounds {* GBP"), which 1s the Company’s functional and presentation currency and the currency in which the majonty of the Group*s
assets, habilites ang funding s denominated

{u) Transactions and balances
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the relevant Group entity’s functional currency using the exchange rate prevalding at the
date of the transactions, or where 1t 1s more practical a Group entity may use an average rate for the week or month for all transactions
1n each foreign currency occurning dunng that week or meonth {as long as the relevant exchange rates do not fluctuate significantly)
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the transiation at period end exchange
rates of monetary assets and labilities dencminated in foreign currencies are recognised In cther operating income or losses In the Income
Staterment

(1) Group companies
The results and financial position of all the Group entities {none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that have a
functional currency different from the presentation currency are translated into the presentation currency as follows

{a) assets and habilibies for each balance sheet are translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance sheet,
{b) Income ang expenses for each income statement are translated at average exchange rates for the relevant accounting periods and
{c} all resulting exchange differences are recognised as a separate component of equity

v} Deferred tax
Deferred tax 15 provided in full, using the hiabiity method, on all taxable and deductible temporary differences at the balance sheet date
between the tax bases of assets and labilties and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes

Deferred tax assets and labilties are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset 5 realised or the
hability 15 settled, based cn tax rates {and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it 1s probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences can be utihsed

w) Dividend distnibution
Cvidend distributions to the Company's shareholders are recognised in the Group's Financial Statements in the period 1in which the dividend
is paid or approved by the Company's sharehclders

x} Share capital and share premium
Crdinary shares are classified as equity Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction {rom the share premium account

y} Own shares
Employee trusts have been established for the purposes of satisfying certain equity-based awards The holdings of these trusts include shares
{own shares) that have not vested unconditionally with employees of the Group

Own shares are held fer the short term to meet future award requirements and are recorded, at cost, as a deduction from equity These are
shown separately on the face of the balance sheet with the intention to offset against retained earnings in the future
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Group Income statement ror e year enced 30 June 2007

2007 2006
Note £000s £000s
Revenue 1 109,191 75,958
Other operating income 4 249 1,035
Other operating expenses 4 {343} -
Administrative expenses 2 (59,719) {46,706)
Operating profit 48,378 30,287
‘Operating profit before exceptional items 50,476 30,287
Exceptional items N - 3 (1,008} -
Operating profit 49,378 30,287
Finance income 6 2,244 816
Finance expense 6 () (41)
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 51,616 31,062
Taxation 7 (16,448} (0,443}
Profit for the year attributable to ordinary equrty shareholders 23 35,168 21,618
Earnings per share *
Basic g 250p 18 Op
Diluted 8 18 5p 15 8p
Memo
Dividends pad n the pericd 9 14,398 13 800

The notes on pages 65 to 82 are an integral part of these Group Financial Statements

All Group operations during the financial periods were continuing operations

X SEE ERRATuUM
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Group balance sheet asa 30 e 2007

2007 2006
o Note £000's £000 s
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment ti 2554 2,838
Intangiole dssets 12 1,747 1525
Deferred 1ax assel 17 6,731 631
Non-turrent receizables . ) o o 99 1218
Total non-currentassets . e MR 6212
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 14 35,71 33,130
Current tay asset 84 -
Derwvatve financial mstruments 18 2 246
firarcal assets 13 13876 3,674
Cash and casn_equivalents B ) A5 A _51530 25,215
Total current assets - _ 101,265 60 265
Total assets 112,396 66,477
Liabilities
Non-current habtlities
Deferred tax lability 17 - 17
Ttade ana other payables 16 6,353 1,347
Liabt 1ty for snare-nased payments 20 - 12,018
Total non-current habilttes e . 6393 13,482
Current habilities
Trade and o*her payables 16 18,367 19,084
Current tax hab hues L o o B 77 i 5,334
Total current habiities e ~ 18,444 22,418
Total hiabilities 24,797 37,900
Shareholders’ equity
Share capital 21 150 12
Shdre premium 23 31,55 15,58/
Retained garnngs 23 49,634 12,531
Owh shares 22 (101%) -
Orner reservas 23 o Lizs 447
Total shareholders® equsty o o 87,599 28,577
Total liahtlities and shareholders’ equity 112 396 66,477

Thrie notes on pages 65 1o 82 are an ntegral pat of these Group Ninanaiat Statements

The Financal Stetements on payes 56 1o 82 were approsed by the Board of Directors and authonsed for 1ssue on 24 Seprernber 2007 ang

signed onits behalf by

Director Hugh Willis Eirector Nick Williams

Y
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Group statement of changes in shareholders’ equity

Share Share Retained Own Other

capital  premium earnings shares reserves Total

£000's £000s £000's £000s £000s £000's
Balance at 1 July 2006 12 15,587 12,531 - 447 28,577
Currency translation adjustments - - (12) - - (12)
Share-based payments - - - - 687 687
Deferred tax on share-based payments - - - - 6.006 6,006
Deferred income tax - - - - 16 444 16,444
Net income/{expense) recognised directly in equity - - (12) - 23,137 23,125
Profit for the year - - 35,168 - - 35,168
Dvidends _ . e - (14,398 - - (14398
Total recognised income for the year - - 20,758 - 23,137 43,895
Reclassification of debt as equity (note 20} 50 11,268 - - - 12,018
Exarcise of share gptions 20 5,234 - - - 5254
Bonus Issue {note 21) 108 (108) - - - -
IPO costs (note 3) - (1,130) - - - (1,130)
Purchase ot own shares by Employee Benernt Trust - - - (270} - {270)
Purchase of own shares for Share Incentive Plan - - - {900) - (300)
Oisposal of own shares for Share Incentive Plan - - - 155 - 155
Deferred tax asset wtiised - - 16,350 - {16,350} -
Transfer between reserves - - {4) - 4 -
Balance at 30 June 2007 190 31,551 49,635 {1,015) 7,238 87 599

Share Share Retained Own Other

caprtal premium earnings shares reserves Totat

£000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's
Balance at 1 July 2005 12 15,587 4,714 - 20,313
Currency translation adjustments - - {2) - - (2)
Share-based payments - - - - 81 81
Deferred tax on share-based payments - - - - 366 366
Net income/(expense) recognised directly in equity - - (2) - 447 445
Profit for the year - - 21,619 - - 21,619
Cividends - - {13,800) - - {13,800)
Total recognised income for the year - - 7,817 - 447 8264
Balance at 30 June 2006 12 15,587 12,531 - 447 28,577

The notes on pages 65 to 82 are an integral part of these Group Financial Statements
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Group cash flow statement ro e year endzd 30 sune 2007

2007 2006
Note £000’s £000s

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations 24 56,118 26,545
Carporation tax paid (5,564) (7,830)
Exceptional items 3 (1,0658) -
49 456 18,715

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (1,348) (2.476)
Purchase of intanqible assets {550) (1,000)
Purchase of current financial assets {10,199) (3,462)
sale of current financialassets - 246 =
— (11.851) (6,938)

Cash flows from financing activities
Cash recewved for cash-settled share-based payments 20 - 12,018
Proceeds from 1ssue of ordinary shares 5254 -
Furchase of own shares by Employee Benefit Trust 22 (270} -
Purchase of own shares by Share Incentive Plan 22 {900} -
Sale of own shares by Share Incentive Plan 22 155 -
IPC costs written off against share premium 3 {1,130 -
Dividends paid g {14,398) {13 800}
(11,289) {1,782)
Net increase 1n cash and cash equivalents 26,316 9,995
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 25215 15,220
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 15 51,531 25,215

The Group did not have any overdrafts repayable on demand at the end of each accounting period

The notes on pages 65 to 82 are an integral part of these Group Financial Statements
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Group notes to the financial statements

1 Segmental reporting

(2} Primary format - business segment

The Group has one distinguishable business segment, that being the provision of iInvestment management services This 15 considered by
management to be the Group's primary segment The result of that business segment is therefore disclosed in these accounts in the primary
statements on pages 61 to 64

Revenue can be broken down as follows

2007 2006

£000 5 £000's
Net management fees 60,950 37,156
Performance fees 48,241 38,802
Total revenue 109,191 75,958

(b) Secondary format ~ geographical segments
Althcugh the Group’s pnncipal offices are located 1n London, investment management fees are generated in the junisdiction either where
fund product entities are registered or where clients who mandate the Group through segregated accounts, are domiciled

2007 2006
£000's £000s
Segment revenue
Eurape
Luxembourg 12,573 5,081
Qther Europe 4,409 1,461
The Americas
Cayman islands 92,209 69,416
United States of America - -
Total segment revenue 109,191 75,958
Segment assets
Europe
Luxembourg 2,807 1,321
Other Eurgpe 2,056 1,115
The Americas
Cayman Islands 28,665 27,324
United States of Amenca - -
Total segment assets 33.528 28,760
Capital expenditure and (ntangible assets
Europe
Luxembourg - -
Qther Europe 1,803 3,245

The Americas
Cayman Islands - -
United States of Amenca 62 266
Total capital expenditure and intangible assets 1,865 3511
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Group notes to the financial statements cnunued

2 Administrative expenses

2007 2006
£000°s £000s
The following 1tems have been included In agministrative expenses
Staff costs (note 5) 42,521 35,065
Depreciation {note 11} 1,212 665
Amortisation {note 12} 328 137
Loss on disposal of property, ptant and equipment (note 11) 254 174
Loss on disposal of intangible assets (note 12) - 155
Other operating lease rentals payable
— Property 1,614 541
- Computer software 343 293
Net foreign exchange differences recognised (54) 1,292
Audit and non-audit fees 2007
UK Overseas Total
N, — £000's fo00s _ £000%
Audtt fees for the annual Financial Statements 125 - 125
Year-end audit services to the subsichanes of the Company - 18 18
Other services pursuant to legislation m - 11
Taxation services 151 18 169
Othersevices . ... . .. 54 . - . 514
Total fees 961 36 997

Included within the current year audit fees 1s an amount of £24,000 which was paid 1n 2007 but related to the 2006 audit

Cther services pursuant to legislation in 2007 include £49,000 for the audit of the Financia! Reporting and Auditing Guideline 21 {“FRAG
21"}, £58,000 for the review of the intenm financial informatian under the Listing Rules of the Financial Services Autheority and in
accardance with 1AS 34 Intenm Financial Reporting” and £4,000 in raspect of the annual requlatory audit

Taxation services include comphiance services such as tax return preparation, transfer pricing work and adwvisory services

Other services include compliance and general advice of £61,000 and reporting accountant's fees relating to the IPO of £513,000 Of the
total fees of £513,000, £375,000 was written off against the share premium account (note 3)

Audit and non-audit fees 2006

UK Overseas Total

£000%s £000’s £000's

Audit fees for the annual Financial Statements 63 - 63
Year-eng audit services to the subsidianes of the Company - 6 6
Cther services pursuant 1o legislation 60 - 60
Taxation services 28 - 28
Cther services 188 - 188
Total fees 33% 6 345

Other services in 2006 inclede £55,000 for the audit of the Financial Reporting and Auditing Guidelne 21 (“FRAG 21”) and £5,000 for the
audit of the annual regulatory return

Qther services 1n 2006 comprises work relating to the conversion to IFRS of £150,000 and iisting services of £38,000

In accordance with Tech 6/06 Disclosure of auditor remuneration 1ssued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales,
comparative audnt fee analysis has been recategonsed
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3 Exceptional 1items

The Group has identified IPO costs as an “exceptional item” In accordance with the Group accounting policies on page 57 to these Fnancial
Statements The Company listed on 22 November 2006 In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, costs totalling £1,1306,000
were written off against the share premium account Further costs of £1,098,000 were charged against the Income Statement within
adrministrative expenses

4, Other operating iIncome and expenses

2007 2006
£000's £000's
Other operating income ncludes the following items
Fair value gains
Gains on dernvative financial instrumants - 824
Investments at fair value 249 211
Total other operating income 249 1,035
Other operating expenses include the following items
Loss on dervative financial instruments {343) -
5 Staff costs
2007 2006
£000's £000 5
Wages and salarnies 37,158 30,857
Social secunty costs 4,676 4,027
Share-based payments 687 81
Total staff costs 42,521 35,065

The Group aims to atiract, motwate and retain high calibre executives by rewarding them with competrtive salary and benefit packages,
which may be hnked ta the creation of long-term shareholder value Salary ranges are established by reference to those prevailing in the
employment market generally for executives of comparable status, responsibility and skills All employees are eligible for an annual
discretionary bonus In additian to cash bonuses, the Group operates varnous non-cash ramuneration schemes

(1) Long-term share-based ncentive schemes
These schernes are described in full in the audited section of the Remuneration Report

(1} Deferred compensation schemes

The Group operates a deferred compensation programme  Under the ierms of this scheme the Group has purchased shares in various funds
of which a Group company acts as investmeni manager The shares in the funds purchased are held in the name of a nominee company for
the benefit of selected employees The shares are subject to certain forfarture provisions

Wages and salanies include all amounts paid to employees, salaries, cash bonuses, deferred compensation and share-based payments These
costs include Directors’ remuneration which can be found within audited section of the Remuneration Report and ferm part of these
Financial Siatements

The average number of persons employed by the Group duning the year was as follows

2007 2006
Asset Management 47 39
Sales and Marketing 29 19
Administration and Finance 75 41

Total average number of employees 151 99
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6. Finance tncome and expense

2007 2006
£000s £000's
Finance income
Interest on cash and cash equvalents 2,198 780
Interest on rent deposits 46 36
Total finance income 2,244 816
Finance expense
Interest payable {6) {41
7. Taxation
Analysis of charge in perniod
2007 2006
e . __£000s £000s
Current tax
UK corporation tax on profits for the year 16,444 8,375
Adjustments to tax charge in respect of previous periods 63 126
Foreign tax 155 47
Total current tax 16,662 9,548
Deferred tax {note 17)
Ongination and reversal of temporary differences (12} (42}
Adjustments n respect ¢of previous periods 64y -
tFRS 2 share-based payments credit (126) {63}
Foreign tax (21 -
Adjustments in respect of change to future tax rate 9 -
Total deferred tax (214) (105)
Total tax expense 16,448 9,443

The tax on the Group's profit before tax differs from amounts that would anse using the theoretical effective UK tax rate applicable to profits

of the Group companies as follows

2007 2006
£000°s £000s
Profit on ordinary activities before tax 51,616 31,062
Profit on ordinary activities multiphed by rate of corporation tax in the UK of 30% (2006 30%) 15,485 9,319
Effects of
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 81 101
Depreciation in excess of capital aflowances 381 77
Caprtal items in revenuye 200 -
Exceptional items 329 -
Share-based payments {126) (63)
Adjustment in respect of previous period (1} 126
Adjustment in respect of foreign tax rates 54 18
Adustments in respect of changes to future tax rates 9 -
Qther 36 (135)
Total tax expense 16,448 9,443
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8 Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share 15 calculated by dividing the earnings attnibutable to ordinary shareholders for the relevant period by the number of
ordinary shares in existence less the weighted average number of own shares, after retrospectively taking into account the restructuning of

the Company's share capital as described in note 21

Diluted earnings per share 15 calculated as for basic earnings per share with further adjustments to the weighted average number of ordinary

shares 1o reflect the effects of all dilutive ordinary shares

There are no differences between the profit for each financial year attributable to equity holders used In the basic and diluted earnings per

share calcutations

The reconciliation of the figures used i calculating basic and diluted earnings per share 15 given below

2007 2006
Total Weighted Total Weighted
number average number average
{thousands) {thousands} {thousands) {thousands}
Number of shares at 1 July 2006 {(and 1 July 2005) 120,000 120,000 120,000 120,000
Issue of shares 20,763 12 547 - -
Shares reclassified trom debt (note 20) 49,610 49,610 45,610 14,935
Number of shares at 30 June 2007 (a2nd 30 June 2006) 190,373 182,157 169,610 134,935
Shares owned by employee trusts (785} (311) - -
Shares owned by Share Incentive trust (261} (167} - -
Shares neld in nominee account on hehalf of employees (note 22) {69,587} (40,714) (49,610) {14,935)
Basic number of shares 119,740 140,765 120,000 120,000
Shares owned by employee trusts 785 511 - -
Shares owned by Share Incentive trust 261 167 - -
Shares held in nommee account on behalf of employees {note 22) 69,587 40,714 49610 14,935
Employee share options 8.670 8,083 28,400 1,829
Dilutive number of shares 199,043 190,240 198,010 136,864
Earnings attributable to equity holders of the Group 35 168 35,168 21,619 21,619

The wewghted average number of shares used for the calculation of earnings per share has retrospectively been adjusted to take account of
the impact of the nine for one benus 1ssue of shares on 1 November 20086, the recognition of equity shares that were previcusly classified as

a hability and the share split which took place on 22 Novemnber 2006 (note 21)

9 Dividends
2007 2006

£000's £00Q's
Declared and paid during the year
Equity dividends and ordinary shares
1st intenm dwdend £0 06 (2006 £0 03) 10,177 3,600
2nd Intenm dividend £0 03 (2006 £0 01) 4,221 1,200
3rd Internim diadend il (2006 £0 03) - 3,000
4th Intenm dividend for 2007 nid (2006 £0 06) - 6,000
Total 14,398 13,800

The Directors have recommended a final dvidend of 6 O pence n respect of the year ended 30 June 2007

No final dwidend was proposed as at 30 June 2006

Divmdends per share have been adjusted to reflect the changes in the Company’s restructunng of its share capital, as descnbed in note 21

Of the total dwvidends declared and paid of £14,398,100, £4 198 100 was paid on shares which are classified as own shares, as described in

note 22 (2006 nif)

10 Finanaal nsk management

A gualtative analysis of the financtal risks, which include credit, market and higuidity nisks, facing the Group 1s provided 1n the Risk

Management section to this Annual Report
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11 Property, plant and aguipment

Furniture tnformatien and
flxtures communication
Leasehold and technology
improvements fittings equipment Total
£000's £000s £000s £000s
Cost
At 1 July 2006 1,904 663 1,779 4,352
Additions 756 90 469 1,315
Disposals (31 - {7) (317)
Currency translation difference (14) (5) (24} {43)
Reclassification - 4 (4) -
At 30 june 2007 2,336 758 2,213 5,307
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 July 2006 326 315 873 1,514
Depreciation charge 668 179 465 1,312
Disposals (57) - {6) (63)
Currency transiation difference (3) m {6) {10}
Reclassficavon . - LSS £ B
At 30 June 2007 o o 934 494 1325 2733
Net book amount as at 20 June 2007 1,402 264 888 2,554
Furniture tnformation and
fixtures communication
Leasehold and technelogy
mprovements fittings equipment Total
£000's £000's £000's £000's
Cost
At July 2005 703 305 1,110 2,118
Additions 1,456 365 670 2,491
Disposals (252) - - (252)
Currency translation difference (3) {1) (n {5)
At 30 june 2006 1,804 669 1.77¢ 4,352
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 July 2005 134 21 584 §29
Depreciation charge 27 104 290 €65
Cisposals (78) - - {78)
Currency translation difference (1 - (1) (2)
At 30 June 2006 326 315 873 1,514
Net book amount as at 30 June 2006 1,578 354 906 2,838

The property leases have been classified as operating leases in these Financial Statements, In accordance with 1AS 17 At 30 June 2007 and
2006, none of the above assets were held under finance leases

A thorough review of the useful economic ves of property, plant and equipment was undertaken 1in May 2007, in hght of the new leases
taken on the premises at Grosvenor Street Following this review, the remaining useful economic life of leasehold improvements at the
Group’s exsting Head Office premises in Times Place was shortened to eight months, with effect from 1 May 2007 There was no change to
the remaining useful ecanomic life of furniture, fitures and fittings and information and communication technology equipment, as the
Group currently plans on utilising such assets in its new prermises

if these changes n the remaining useful economic life of leasehold improvements had not been applied, the depreciation charge in the year
would have been lower by £221,000, with a corresponding impact on the results for the year for both the Group and the Company



BlueBay Asset Management plc
Annual Report 2007

71

12 Intangible assets

Licences and
development costs

£000's
Cost
At 1 July 2006 1,700
Additions 550
At 30 june 2007 2,250
Amortisation
At 1 July 2006 175
Amortisation in the year 328
At 30 June 2007 503
Net book amount as at 30 June 2007 1,747

ticences and
development costs

} L L o ____fo0os
Cost

At 1 July 2005 1,947
Additions 1,018
Disposals e 1,266)
At 30 June 2006 o T ) .0
Amortisation

At 1 July 2005 1,149
Amortisation in the year 137
Disposals (1111)
At 30 june 2006 175
Net book amount as at 30 June 2006 1,525

All amerusation charges in the year are included in the notes 1o the Income $tatement
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13 financal assets

2007 2006
£000's £0007s
Fair value through profit or loss

At 1 July 2006 and 2005 3,674 -
Additions 10,454 3,674
Disposals (252) -
At 30 June 13,876 3.674

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include the following
2007 2006
£000s £000's
Investment in funds 13,876 3,674

Financial assets held at fair value are designated as such upon initial recognition The fair values of the investments in funds are determined

by using the net asset valuation of the funds at the balance sheet date

These investments arg held in relation to the ‘deferred compensation scheme’ which 1s discussed in more detail in note 5 Financial assets of

£3 674,000 have been reclassified from non-current assets to current assets in 2006

The Group has partially hedged against the foreign exchange exposure of its current financial assets (note 18) The carrying amounts of the

Group's financial assets are denominated in the following currencies

2007 2006

. U L', < 3 B __1000%s

Us dollar 9,061 270

Eure 4,815 3,404

Total 13,876 3,674

t4 Trade and other receivables

2007 2005

£000's £000°s

Amounts owed by related parties (note 25) 31,472 28,601

Other trade recewvables 1,269 386

Prepayments and accrued income 3,030 2,143

Total amounts falling due within one year 35 771 31130
Amounts falling due after more than one year

Rent deposit 99 1,218

Total amounts falling due after more than one year 99 1,218

Credit nsk with respect to trade receivables 1s concentrated on amounts owed by related parties These related parties are funds sponscred

and managed by the Group The Directors believe no credrt nsk provision 1s required
The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and ather recevables are at ther far values

All non-current recevables are due within five years from the balance sheet date
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14 Trade and other receivables continued
Trade and other receivables are denominated in the following currencies

2007 2006
£000's E000's
Sterhing 1,931 1,075
UsS dollar 21,276 19,917
Euro 12,513 10118
Japanese yen 51 20
Total amounts faling dus with:in one year 35,771 31,130
Sterling - 1,696
Japanese yen 98 153
Total amounts falling due after more than one year 93 1,849
15 Cash and cash equivalents
2007 2006
L L 00 £000's
Cash at bank and in hand 1,531 ,me
Short-term bank depostts . __ ... _ 50000 __ 24200
Total cash and cash equivalents 51,531 25,215

The effective interest rate on short-term deposits was 5 49% (2006 4 35%}) and these deposits have an average maturity of one day

Cash and cash equivalents are dencminated in the following currencies

2007 2006
£000's £000's
Sterling 50,192 24,542
US dollar 726 3N
Euro 560 307
Japanese yen 49 §5
Other 4 -
Total 51,531 25,215
16 Trade and other payables
2007 2006
£000's £000's
Trade payables 304 322
Amounts owed to related parties (note 25) - 154
Other tax and social secunty payable 560 318
Other creditors 2,857 1,863
Accruals 14,646 16,427
TJotal trade and cther payables due within one year 18,367 15,084
Amounts faling due after more than one year
Accruals 6,353 1,347
Total amounts due after more than one year 6,353 1,347

The Directors cansider that the carrying amount of current trade and other payables are at thewr fair values
Amounts falling due after more than one year relate to costs accrued as part of the Group's deferred compensation plan £1,347,000 of
costs accrued at 30 June 2006, which were previously disclosed as current llabifities, has been reclassified as non-current habilites to reflect

the penod in which they vest

Gther accruals totalling £2 386,000 have been reclassified from other creditors to accruals at 30 lune 2006
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16 Trade and other payables continued
Trade and other payables are denorminated in the following currencies

2007 2006

£000°s £000's

Sterling 8,920 8,209
US dollar 6,668 7,430
Euro 2 655 3,350
Japanese yen 124 95
Total trade and other payables due within one year 18,367 19,084
Sterling 297 -
Us Doltar 3,328 140
Euro 2,728 1,207
Total amounts due after more than one year 6,353 1,347

17 Deferred taxation
Deferred tax 15 calculated in full on temperary differences under the liability method using a tax rate of 28% (2006 30%)

The movement on the deferred tax account 15 shown below

2007 2006

o e o _____£000s  f000s

At 1 July (148) (43}
fncome Statement credit (214) (105}
At 30 June (362) (148}

Deferred tax assets have been recognised in respect of all tax losses and other temporary differences giving rise to deferred tax assets where
it 15 probable that these ameounts wili be recovered

Deferred tax assets and habilities are only offset where there 1s a legally enforceable nght of offset and there 1s an intention to settle the
balances net The movements in deferred tax assets and habilities (prior to the offsetting of balances within the same junsdiction as

permitted by 1AS 12} during the penod are shown below

(a) Deferred tax assets

Temporary

differences

£000s

At 1 July 2006 631
Deferred tax asset utilised (16,350}
Deferred tax on share-based payments taken to equity 6,006
Deferred income tax taken to equity 16,444
At 30 June 2007 6,731
Temporary

differences

£000's

At 1 July 2005 137
Income Statement creditf(expense) 128
Credit taken to equity 366
At 30 June 2006 631

The deferred tax Income tax credited to equity during the year 15 as follows

2007 2006

£000°s £000°s

Share option scheme 22,450 366

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on the tax deduction avalable to the Company through the exercise of share options dunng the year

Deferred tax assets have been recognised where the tax deduction in the current year has exceeded the current taxable profits The
recognition of the deferred tax asset 15 based on the probabiity that the Company will derive taxable profits in the future
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17 Deferred taxation continued

{b) Deferred tax habilities

Temporary

differences

£000's

At t July 2006 (117)

Income Statement credit{expense) 117

At 30 June 2007 =

Temporary

differences

£000 s

At 1 july 2005 (94)

Income Statermnent creditfexpense) (23)

At 30 June 2006 {(117)
18 Dernivative financial instruments

2007 2006

Assets Liabilities

e e e e £000°s o E000S

Forward foreign exchange contracts 3 246

Forward foreign exchange contracts are used to hedge expected future US Dollar and Euro fee receivables The contracts are set to expire on
the date the recevable falls due Gans and losses made on forward foreign exchange contracts are fair valued through the proft and loss
agcount The notional principal amounts of these outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts are nil (2006 £7,899,122)

Forward foreign exchange contracts are zlso used to partially hedge against the foreign exchange exposure of its tnvestments held as
financial assets under the deferred compensation scheme (see note 5) The contracts are set to expire on the date that such investments vest
unconditionally with the employee The notional principal amounts of these outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts are €31 385,655

(£933,919) {2006 ), with a maturity date of 1 February 2010

The forward foreign exchange contracts used to hedge foreign currency nsk and fianciaf assets are held 2t fair value through profit and loss

19, Share-based payments

The Group seeks to faciditate significant equity ownership by management and employees, principally through schemes which encourage and

assist the purchase of the Group' shares

During the year, £687,000 was charged to the Income Statement in respect of equity settled, share-based payment transactions (2006
£81,000) This expense was Dased on the fair value of the share-based payment transactions on grant date All of the expense arose under
employee share awards made within the Group's share-based payment schemes Detats of these schemes, including calculations of fair values
of options and awards can be found in the Remuneration Report on pages 40 to 45 of this Arnual Report ang are summansed as follows

i) Enterprise Management Incentive (EMJ) option award scheme

Options granted under the Enterprise Management Incentive option award scherme qualified as Enterprise Management Incentive options
under the provisions of sections 527 — 541 and Schedule 5 of the Income Tax (Earnings & Penstons) Act 2003 All awards were granted on
19 December 2005 Selected employees were eligible to particpate Certain tax reliefs ansing under the EMI award scheme would have been
lost if the related options had not been exercised at Listing and as a result, 20,700,000 options under the EMI award scheme were exercised
at that time As a condition of exercise, the Company required the holders of the EMI options to enter inte an agreement not to sell ther
resulting shares for a period of up to four years following Listing (althcugh 25% of these ordinary shares become available for sale on each
anniversary of the date of exercise of the EM! options) 75,000 EMI options were not exercised at Listing and they therefore reverted to
unapproved options and are exercisable in accordance with the vesiing schedule applicable to such options

{(n) Unapproved Option award scheme

The Group has a second option award scheme not approved by HMRC, where selected employees were ehgible to participate Awards
granted were all made prior 1o Listing  Awards were granted on or around 27 March 2006 in the previous financial year and further awards
on 20 July 2006 and 19 Qctober 2006 during the current financial year None of the Unapproved Options were exercised at Listing In
general terms, prawiding an optionholder remains an employee of the Group, options may be exercised in accordance with a vesting
schedula as follows 25% on or after each of 30 January 2007, 30 January 2008, 30 January 2009 and 30 January 2010 All "Unapproved”

options expire on 30 January 2015
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19, Share-based payments continued

The fair value of share options are calculated using the “Black Scholes” model, taking into account the effect of both financial and
demographic assumptions Financial assumptions include the future share price velatility, desvidend yield, risk-free interest rate, and the best
estimate outcome of non-market based performance conditions Demographic assumptions include forferture and early vesiing behaviours
that are based upon historic observable data The fair values per option and award granted durning the year, and the assumptions used in the
calculations, are as follows

Unapproved QOption Unapproved Option

Award Scheme Award Scheme

Grant dates 20 July 2006 19 Qctober 2006
Farr value underlying share at grant £0 1151 £0 1956
Weighted average exercise price £ 2853 £0 2853
Options awarded during the year 600,000 2,150,000
Average vesting pencd (years) 20 18
Expected share price volatiity 19 7% 199%
Cwdend yield 4 1% 41%
Risk-free rate 51% 53%
Expected option life 3 6 years 3 6 years
Nuinber of options eapected to vest 512,900 1,837,800
Average fair value per option grant_ _£01120 . fo2145

All optien awards during the year were made prior to Listing

The expected share price volatility 15 based on histoncal volatility over the last two years of FTSE All-share Financials Index, adjusted by a
factor to gve a single stock volatiity The expected Iife 15 the average expected periad to exercise The nsk-free rate of return 15 the GBP
swap curve for the term, consistent with the assumed option life

The fair value share price at grant date has been calculated using an earmings multiple approach based on comparable quoted companies
making vancus adjustmenis The main adjustments considered were fund concentration, earnings variability, private company, minerity
heldings and vating nights

Movements in the number of share options outstanding granted under the EMI option award scheme and the Unapproved Option award
scheme are as follows

2007 2006
Weighted Weighted
average average
Number of exargse Number of exercise
options price options price
Share options outstanding at 1 July 28,400,000 £0 2525 57,700,000 £0 2269
Granted 2,750,000 £0 2853 28,400,000 £0 2525
Forfeited (775,000} £0 2772 (5,350,000) £Q 2291
Cancelled - - (52,350,000) £0 2267
Exercised (20,762,500) £0 2531 — -
Share options outstanding 30 June 9,612,500 £0 2586 28,400,000 £0 2525

The following share options granted were exercised duning the financial year

Share pnice at

Scheme Number exerased Exercise price Exerase date exercise date
Edl 1,800,000 £0 1541 21 November 2006 £3 32
EMI 6,900,000 £02226 21 November 2006 £3 32
EMI 12,000,0C0 £028%3 21 November 2006 £3 32
Unapproved 37,500 £0 2853 28 March 2007 £4 10
Unapproved 12,500 £0 2853 26 Apnl 2007 £4 55
Unapproved 12,500 £0 2853 01 May 2007 £4 57

Total 20,762,500
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19 Share-based payments continued
The share options outstanding at the end of the year have exerase prices and expected remaining lives as follows

2007 2006
Weighted Weighted
average average
HNumber of expected Number of expected
options remaining life options remaining life
Option exercise price

£0 1541 - - 1,800,000 4 6 years
£0 2226 4,100,000 3 6 years 11,100,000 4 6 years
£0 2853 5,512,500 3 6 years 15,500,000 4 6 years

Total 9,612,500 28,400,000

() Share award scheme
During 2008, the Group's selected senior emplayees were permiited to subscribe for shares Additional details are included In note 20

{iv)Share incentive plan (“SIP")

The Group SIP1s an HMRC approved plan which allows employees, including Directers, 10 acquire shares in the Company The scheme s
open to UK based employees and provides free shares from the Group to each participating employee, based on an award of £3,000 worth
of shares per employee The Group alsc provides free shares that match the employee purchase up to a maximum of £1,500 per annum in
the ratio of two to cna At Iisting, the Group purchased 300,000 shares at a weighted average share price of £3 00 (2006 nil) in order to
satisfy such shares awards

The far value of the shares 1s measured on the grant date and spread over the period duning which the employees become unconditionally
entitled to the underlying shares The fair value of the shares granted 1s taken to be the market price at the date of award The amount
recognised in the Income Statement 15 adjusted to reflect the expected and actual number of shares that vest

Pursuant to these plans, the Group awarded 176,109 ordinary shares to employees (2006 nlil) at a3 weighted average share price of £4 03
(2006 nil) A charge of £710,000 (2006 rul) will be expensed over a vesting penod of four years A further 38 512 shares were scid to
employees as part of the maiching shares concept (note 22) The Group holds the remaining 85 379 ordinary shares, which will be used to
sausfy future share awards to employees

20 Liabihity for cash-settled share-based transactions
Liabiity for cash-settled share-based transactions relates to share subscriptions being shown as habilities due to the forfeiture provisions
contained In the share agreements

On 6 November 2006, amendments were made to the share agreements to remove the obligation of the Group to finance the repurchase of
its shares in the event they were forfeited Shares subject to such arrangements have therefare been reclassified from liabibities to

shareholders’ equity and are now treated as equity settled transactions

The effect of share-based transactions on the Group’s financial position was as follows

2007 2006
£000's £000s
Closing balance of lability for share-based transactions - 12,018

Total intrinsic value for share-based transactions - -
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21 Share capital

2007
£000’s
Authorised
250,000,000 ordinary shares of £0 001 each 250
Called up, allotted and fully paid
190,372,500 ordinary shares of £0 001 each 190
2006
£000's
Authorised
600,000 ordinary ‘A’ ctass shares of £0 01 each 6
600,000 crdinary ‘B’ class shares of £0 01 each 6
303,900 crdinary 'C’ class shares of £0 01 each 3
496,100 ordinary ‘D’ class shares of €00l each 5
20
Called up, allotted and fully paid
600,000 ordinary ‘A class shares of £0 01 each 6
600,000 ordinary "B’ class shares of £0 01 each I
12

Ordinary shares in ssue In the Company rank par passu Al of the ordinary shares in issue carry the same nght to receve dividends and
other distnbutions declared made or paid by the Company All of the ordinary shares have equal voting nghts

Changes to the authorsed and 1ssued share capital

On 1 November 2006, witten resoiutions of the company were passed such that sn advance of the Company's re-registration as a public
hmited company In connection with the apphcation for admission to the official Iist of the UK Listing Authonity (the “Official List”) and to
trading en the London Stock Exchange, a bonus issue of shares was authorised to be made to the ‘A", 'B' and ‘D’ class shareholders at a
ratio of nine new equivalent shares of one pence each for each 'A', "B’ or "D’ share held Further, the ¢apital of the "C shares was increased
from one pence each to ten pence each

On 1 November 2006 wntten resolutions were passed that the authorised "A, 'B’, 'C' and ‘D' shares would at a future date prior to Listing
be split into ordinary shares of 0 1 pence each and subsequently conschidated into one class of ordinary shares of 0 1 pence each

On & Nevember 2006, amendments were made to the ‘D’ Share Subscription Arrangements As a result, the ‘D’ Shargs have been
reclassified as equity in accordance with 1AS 32

On 17 November 2006, conditional dealings in the ordinary shares (as unlisted securities) of the Company commenced on the London Stock
Exchange

On 22 November 2006, immediately prior to Listing, the written resolution passed on 1 November 2006 was invoked and each ‘&', '8’ 'C’
and ‘D’ Share was spht intc ordinary shares of 0 1 pence each and consclidated into one class of ordinary share of 0 1 pence each

On 22 Novernber 2006, Listing was effective and uncenditional dealings 1n the ordinary shares of the Company commenced The authorised
share capital at the time of Listing was 250,000,000 shares of © 1 pence each The 1ssued share capital was 190,310,000 ordinary shares of
0 1 pence each Ng new ordinary shares were 1ssued prior to or at Listing
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22, Own shares

Own shares are held by employee trusts and share incentive plans for the purposes of satisfying certain equity-based awards where shares
have not vested unconditionally in employees of the Group During the year, the number of own shares purchased by employee trusts and
share incentive plans was 1,085,275, at a cost of £1,169,540 (2006 nil) The Group also disposed of 38,512 shares realising proceeds of
£155,000

The Company also holds own shares through its arrangements with 2 number of employees who have subscribed for shares which have not
vested uncondrtianally Under the terms of each subscription, the shares are held in a nominee account on behalf of each employee until
such shares are no longer subject to forfeiture The number of own shares held under such arrangements was 63,587,000 (2006
49,610,000

23 Reserves
The Group’s reserves are shown in the Group’s Statements of Changes in Equity

24 Cash generated from operations

2007 2006
kOO0 £00Os
Continuing operations
Operating profit for the year _ e e 20,476 . ...30.287
Adjustments for

Financial assets at fair value (250} (211)
Dervatives at fair value (3} -
Share-based payments 687 81
Finance income 2,257 816
Finance expense {47) -
Depreciation 1,312 665
Amortisation of intangibles 328 137
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 254 174
Loss on disposal of intangible assets ~ 155
4,538 1,817
Changes in working capnal
Increase in recewvables (3,259) (18,292)
Increase in payables 4,363 12,733

Cash generated from operations 56,118 26,545
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25 Related party transactions
The following transactions were carried out with related parties

(a) Transactions and balances with related entities during the year
During the year the following categories of related party transactions cccurred

Description of ralationship Description of service Description of transactions
Funds managed by the Group Provision of investment management Management and performance fees earned
and related through key and investment services by Group companies

management personnel

(1) Sales of services duning the financial year

2007 2006

£000’s £000's

Investment management fees 108,216 75,205
Year end balances ansing with shareholders dunng the financial year

2007 2006

~ o - £000's _ __ £000's

Funds managed by the Group 31,472 28,601

All transactions with related parties were on an arm’s length basis

{b) Transactions and balances during the year with entities who were related parties up to the date of Listing
The following transact:ions were carmed cut dunng the year with entities who wete related parties up to the date of Listing

Description of relationship Description of service

Description of transactions

Exiting shareholder Range of banking services on normal third party

terms 1o the Group companies

Interest income receved Cash held on
account ()

External fund entities, controtled Distribution agreement
by an exiting shareholder

Rebates paid to the investor (i)

Exiting shareholder Placement agent services 1o the Group companies

Fees incurred on investments placed as a result
of these services ()

(1} Income receved during the year

2007 2006
£000% £000°s
Interest received 2,197 733
Income received up to the date of Listing was £767,000
Balances as at the year end
2007 2006
£000° £000's
Cash held on account 51,330 24,937
Cash held on account at the date of Listing was £34,038,000
(n} Purchases of senaces dunng the year
2007 2006
B £000's £000’s |
Distribution fees paid 663 193

Oistnbution fees paid up to the date of Listing was £270,000
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25 Related party transactions continued

{b) Transactions and balances duning the year with entities who were related parties up to the date of Listing continued

Balances as a1 the year end

2007 2006
£000's £000's
Payable due to related parties 170 145
Amaunts pavable to related parties as at the date of Listing was £109,000
(in) Purchases of services dunng the year
2007 2006
£000's £000's
Placement fees paid 137 162
Placement fees paid up to the date of Listing was £43,000
Balances as at the year end
2007 2006
. ) . ) o o o | £000's _ £000s
Payable due to refated parties 32 G

Amounts payable to related parties as at the date of Listing was £9,000

(c) Key management compensation

The remuneration of key management personnel duning the year can be found in the audited part of the Remuneration Report of this

Annual Report

26 Commitments and contingent liabilities

(a) Operating leases

The Group leases cffice premises and computer software under non-cancellatle operating lease agreements The leases have varying terms

and renewal nghts The future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows

2007 2006
Leasehold property Leasehold property
£000's £000's

Commitments under non-cancellable operating leases expiring
Within one year 1,807 928
Later than one year and [ess than five years 24,741 5,857
After five years 37,687 -
Total 64,235 6,785
2007 2006
Computer software Computer software
£000's £000's

Commitments under non-cancellable operating leases expining
within ane year 298 204
_Later than one year and less than five years 381 826
Total 679 1,030




BlueBay Asset Managemenit pic
Annual Report 2007

82

Group notes to the financial statements contiues

26 Commitments and contingent habihities continued
(b) Capital commitments

2007 2006
£000's £000's
Expenditure contracted for but not provided for i the Financial Statements 406 i76

(c) Contingent liabilities
The Group s not aware of any contingent habiites as at 30 June 2007 A 30 June 2006, the Group had contingent hiabihvies totaling
£450,000 with respect to expenses payable to external advisors in the event of a Listing on the Stock Exchange

27 Prinapal group investments

The names of the principal investments of BlueBay Asset Management plg, together with the Group’s controlling interest and voting rights
are given below

e e Country of incorporation Effective group interest %
Principal operating subsidiaries
BlueBay Funds Management Company S A Luxernbourg 99
BlueBay Asset Management Japan Limited United Kingdom 106

BlueBay Asset Management USALLC ______Mnited States of America _ 100
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Company balance sheet ss a0 une 2007

2007 2006

Neote £000°s £000 s
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment N 2,313 2,504
Intangible assets 32 1,747 1,525
Financial assets 33 80 79
Deferred tax asset 37 6,706 594
Non-current receivables T 34 = 1,101
Total non-current assets 10,846 5,803
Current assets
Trade and other recevables 34 35,703 31.5M
Derwvative financial mnstruments 38 3 246
Financial assets 33 13,876 3674
Current tax asset B4 -
Cash and c¢ash equivalents 35 51,384 24,986
Total current assets 101,050 60,477
Total assets 111,896 66,280
Liabihties
Non-current habilities
Deferred tax hability 37 - 117
Trade and other payables 36 6,353 1,347
Liability for share-based payments 20 - 12,018
Total non-current hiabilities 6,353 13,482
Current habilities
Trade and other payables 36 18,121 18,986
Current tax habilities - 5.321
Total current habilities 18,121 24,307
Total habilities 24,474 37,789
Shareholders’ equity
Share capital 40 190 12
Share premium 31,551 15,587
Retained earnings 41 49,446 12,445
Other reserves 823 447
Total shareholders’ equity e 87422 ____ 2849
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity 111,896 66,280

The notes on pages 86 to 92 are an integral part of these Company Financial Statements

The Financial Statements on pages 83 to 92 were approved by the Board of Directors and authonsed for issue on 24 September 2007 and
signed on its behalf by

Cirector Hugh Waths Director Nick

x4
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Company statement of changes

In shareholders’ equity

Share Share Retained Other

capital  premium earnings reserves Total

£000°s £000’s £000s £000's £000’s

Balance at 1 July 2006 12 15,587 12,445 447 28,491
Share-based payments - - - 687 687
Deferred tax on share-based payments - - - 6,006 6,006
Deferred income tax - - - 16,444 16,444
Net income/(expense) recognised directly in equity - - - 23,137 23,137
Profit for the year - - 35,065 - 35,065
Dividends - - (14,398) - (14,398)
Total recognused income for the year - - 20,667 23137 43,804
Reclassification of debt as equity (note 20} 50 11,968 - - 12,018
Exercise of share options 20 5,234 - - 5,254
Bonus Issue {note 21} 108 (108) - - -
IPO costs (note 3) - {1,130 - - (1,130)
Funding of Employee Benefit Trust - - - (270) (270)
Funding of Share incentive Plan - - - (900} (900)
Disposal of shares for Share lncentive Plan - - - 155 155
Deferred tax asset utilised - - 16338  (16,338) -
Transéer between reserves - - {4) 4 -
Balance at 30 June 2007 190 31,551 49,446 6,235 87,422

Share Share Retained Other

Capital Premium Earnings Reserves Total

£000's £000's £000's £000s £000's

Balance at 1 July 2005 12 15,587 4,684 - 20,283
Share-based payments - - - 81 81
Deferred tax on share-based payments - - - 366 366
Net income/(expense) recognised directly in equity - - - 447 447
Profit for the year - - 21,561 - 21561
Dividends - - {13.800) - (13,800
Total recognised income for the year — - 7 761 447 8,208
Balance at 30 June 2006 12 15,587 12,445 447 28,491

The notes on pages 86 1o 92 are an integral part of these Company Financial Statements
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Company cash flow statement ro ine year ended 30 une 2007

2007 2006
Note £000's £000's

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generaied from operations 42 56,049 26,102
Corporation tax paid (5,473) (7,765)
Exceptional siems (1,098) -

49,478 18,337
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment {1,288) (2,209}
Purchase of intangible assets (550) {1,001}
Purchase of current financial assets {10,199) (3,462)
Sale of current financial assets 246 -

{11,791) (6,672)
Cash flows from financing activities
Cash receved for cash settled share-based payments - 12,018
Proceeds from 1ssue of ardinary shares 5,254 -
Funding of Employee Benefit Trust (270) -
Funding of Share Incentive Plan (900} -
Sale of shares by Share Incentive Plan 155 -
IPO costs written off against share premium (1,130} -
Dividends paid (14,398} {13,800)

(11,289} {1,782)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 26,398 9,833
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 24,986 15,103
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 35 51,384 24,986

The naotes on pages 86 to 92 are an integral part of these Company financial Statements
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Company notes to the financial statements

28 Basis of accounting

The Company applies Group accounting policies with the exception of those listed below The Group's accounting palicies can be found in

the Group Financial Statements on pages 56 to €0

The Company Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with 1AS 27 'Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements’

a) Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidianes are held at cost, less provision for imparrment

b} Funding of share schemes

The Company provides funding for employee share schemes to faclitate the acquisition and holding of its own shares in anucigation
of delivering the shares under the share-based payment arrangements The cost of such funding 15 taken directly to equity within

other reserves

29, Profits of the Company

The profit for the financial year dealt with in the Company was £35,065,000 (2006 £21,561,000} In accordance with Section 230 of the
Companies Act 1985 a separate Income Statement has not been presented for the Company

30 Segmental reporung

The Company need not present segmental inforeation in accordance with 1AS 14 Segment Reporting’ as it has taken the examption from

publshing its Income Statement and related notes under Section 230 of the Companies Act 1985

31 Property, plant and equipment

Information and

Furmiture communication
Leasehold fixtures and technology
improvemants fittings equipment Total
£000°s £000°s £000’s £000's
Cost
At 1 July 2006 1,778 623 1547 31948
Additions 756 84 414 1,254
Disposals (310 - - {310)
At 30 June 2007 2,224 707 1,961 4,852
Accumulated deprecation
At 1 July 2006 308 306 830 1,444
Depreciation charge 645 164 383 1,192
Disposals (57) - - (57)
At 30 June 2007 896 479 1,213 2,579
Net book amount as at 30 June 2007 1,328 237 743 2,313
Information and
Furniture communiation
Leasehold fixtures and technology
improvements fittings equipment Total
_ o B E00O s E000 s £000's £000's
Cost
At 1 July 2005 647 288 1,041 1,976
Additions 1,383 335 506 2,224
Disposals {252) - - (252)
At 30 June 2006 1,778 623 1,547 3,948
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 July 2005 128 209 573 S10
Depreciation charge 258 97 257 612
Disposals (78) - - {78}
At 30 June 2006 308 306 830 1,444
Net book amount as at 30 June 2006 1,470 317 717 2,504




BlugBay Asset Management plc
Annual Report 2007

87 |

32 intangible assets

Licences and
development costs

£000's
Cost

At 1 July 2006 1,700
Additrons 550
At 30 June 2007 2,250
Amortisation

At 1 July 2006 175
Amortisation in the year 328
At 30 June 2007 503
Net book amount as at 30 June 2007 1747

Licences and
development costs

£000's
Cost
At 1 July 2005 1,947
Additions 1,019
Disposals {1,266)
At 30 June 2006 1,700
Amortisation
At 1 July 2005 1,149
Amortisation In the year 137
Disposals (1,401
At 30 June 2006 175
Net book amount as at 30 June 2006 1,525
33 Financial assets
2007 2006
£000%s £000's
Current financial assets
Fair value through profit or loss
AL 1 July 2006 and 2005 3,674 -
Additions 10,454 3674
Disposals (252) -
At 30 June 13,876 3,674
Non-current financial assets
Wholly owned subsidianes
A1 1 July 2006 and 2005 79 79
Additions 1 -
At 30 lune 80 79
Total 13,956 3,753
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33 Finanaal assets {(continued)
Financial assets at far value through profit or loss include the following

2007 2006
£000's £000%s
Investrnent in funds 13,876 3674

The Company has partially hedged against current financial assets {(note 18) The carrying amounts of the Campany's current and non-
current financial assets are denominated i the following currencies

2007 2006

£000's £000°s

S dollar 9,061 270
Eurg 4,895 3,483
Total 13,956 3,753

Financiat assets held at fair value are designated as such upon imtial recognition The fair values of the investments in funds are determined
by using the net asset valuation of the funds at the balance sheet date

These investments are held in relation to the "deferred compensation scherme™ which 1s discussed in more detall in note 5 Financial assets of
£3,674 000 have been reclassified from non-current assets to current assets n 2006

34 Trade and other receivables

2007 2006

£000s £000 s

Amounts owed by related parties (note 25) 31,472 28,601

Other trade recewvables 1,252 373

Amounts owed by subsidiaries (see note 43) 13 501

Prepayments and accrued mcome 2,966 2,096

Toial amounts falling due within one year 35,703 31,571
Amounts falling due after more than one year

Rent deposit - 1101

Total amounts faling due after more than one year - 1,101

The Directors consider that the ¢arrying amount of trade and other recewvables are appropriate to their fair values

All non-current receivables are due within five years from the balance sheet date Trade and other recewvables are denominated in the
following currencies

2007 2006

£000 s £000’s

Sterling 1,930 1,063
US dollar 21,232 20,207
Euro 12,513 10,118
Japanese yen 28 183
Total amounts falling due within one year 35,703 31,571
Sterling - 1,101

Total ameunts falling due after more than one year - 1,101
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35 Cash and cash equivalents

2007 2006
£000's £000s
Cash at bank and in hand 1,384 786
Short-term bank deposits 50,000 24,200
Total cash and cash equivalents 51,384 24 986
Cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the following currencies
2007 2006
£000%s £000's
Sterling 50,192 24,511
US dollar 705 256
guro 4382 219
Japanese Yen ] a
Other A -
Total 51,384 24,986
36 Trade and other payables
2007 2006
£000s £000s
Trade payables 302 322
Amounts owed to related parties (note 25) - 154
Amounts owed to subsidianes {see note 43) 229 3
Other tax and sociat secunty payable 516 318
Qther creditors 2,859 1,825
Accruals 14,215 16,364
Total trade and other payables due within one year 18,121 18,986
Amounts faling due after more than one year
Accruals 6,353 1,347
Total amounts due after more than one year 6,353 1347

The Directors consider that the carrying amount of current trade and other payables are appropriate to therr fair values

Amounts faling due after more than one year relate to costs accrued as part of the Group's deferred compensation plan £1,347,000 of
costs accrued at 30 June 2006, which were previously disclosed as current liabilities, have been reclassified as non-current liabilities to reflect

the period in which they vest

Other accruals totalling £2,386,000 have been reclassified from other creditors to accruals at 30 June 2006

Current trade and other payables are denominated in the following currencies

2007 2006

£000's £000s

Sterling 8,922 8,206
US dollar 6,537 7,430
Euro 2,662 3,350
Total trade and other payables due within one year 18,121 18,986
Sterling 297 -
Us Doltar 3,328 140
Euro 2,728 1,207
Total amounts due after more than cne year 6,353 1,347
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37 Deferred taxation
Deferred tax 15 calculated in full on temperary differences under the hability method using a tax rate of 28% (2006 30%)

The movement on the deferred tax account is shown below

2007 2006

£000's £000's
At 1 July (111) 20
Income Statement credit (224) (81)
At 30 June (335) {1113

Deferred tax assets have been recogmised in respect of all tax losses and other temporary differences giving nse to deferred tax assets where
it 15 probable that these amounts will be recovered

Deferred tax assets and labilities are only offset where there 1s a legally enforceable night of offset and there 15 an intention to settle the
balances net The movements In deferred tax assets and habilities (prior to the offsetting of balances within the same junsdiction as

permitted by 1AS 12} during the period are shawn below

{a) Deferred tax assets

Temperary

differences

£000's

At 1 July 2006 594
Deferred 1ax asset utilised (16,338)
Deferred tax on share-based payments taken to equity 6 006
Deferred income tax taken to equity 16,444
At 30 June 2007 6,706
Temporary

differences

£000s

At 1 July 2005 137
Income Statement credit g1
Credit taken to equity 366
Al 30 June 2006 594

The deferred tax income tax credited to equity dunng the year 1s as follows

2007 2006

£000's £000’s

Share aptton scheme 22,450 366

Deferred income tax assets are recogrised on the tax deduction avaitable to the Company through the exerase of share options during
the year

Deferred tax assets have been recognised where the tax deduction in the current penod has exceeded the current forecast taxable profits
The recognition of the defarred tax asset 15 based on the probability that the Company will derve taxable profits in the future

{b} Deferred tax Labilities
Temporary
differences
£000's
At 1 July 2006 (117)
Income Statement expense 117
At 30 June 2007 -

Temporary

differences

£000°s

At 1 July 2005 and 30 june 2006 {117)
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38 Derivative finanaal instruments

Details of the financal instruments disclosure in accordance with 1AS 32 are given in note 18 to the Group Financial Statements

39 Share-based payments

Detalls of the share-based payments are given in note 15 to the Group Financial Statements

40 Share capital

2007
£000's
Authorised
250,000,000 ardinary shares of £0 001 each 250
Called up, allotted and fully paid
190,372,500 ordinary shares of £0 001 each 190
30 June
2008
£000's
Authonsed
600,000 ordinary A’ class shares of £0 01 each 6
600,000 ordinary ‘B’ class shares of £0 01 each &
303,900 ordinary C class shares of £0 01 each 3
496 100 ordinary 'D’ class shares of £0 01 each 5
20
Called up, allotted and fully paid
600 000 ordinary *A’ class shares of £0 01 each 6
600,000 ordinary 'B class shares of £0 01 each &
12
Detalls af the shares are given in note 21 10 the Group Finanaial Statements
41 Reserves
The Company’s reserves are shown in the Company's Statement of Changes in Equity
42 Cash generated from operations
2007 2006
£000's £000's
Continuing operations
Operating profit for the year 50,210 30,201
Adjustments for
Financial assets at fair value {250} 211
Derwvatives as fair value 3 -
Share-based payments 687 8i
Finance income 2,254 809
Finance expense (47) -
Depreciation 1,192 6512
Amertisation of intangibles 328 137
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 254 174
Loss on disposal of intangible assets - 155
4,415 1,757
Changes in working capital
Increase n recewvables (2,789) (18,542)
Increase in payables 4,213 12,686
Cash generated from operations 56,049 26,102
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43 Related party transactions
The Company provides related party disciosures in note 25 to its Group Financial Statements Where the Company’s transactions differ from

those of the Group, these are shown below

{a} Transactions and balances with related entities during the year

Descniption of relationship Description of service Description of transactions
Subsidiary undertakings Transfer pricing agreement 10% commission rate on expenses
Provisian of financial suppor, Cash transfers from the Company 10 its subsidiaries

(1) Purchases of services during the financial year

2007 2006

£000°s £000's

Fee charged by subsidiary undertakings 2,838 916

Rermbursement of capital 7 3
Year end balances ansing duning the financial year

2007 2006

e e e e et et et N - . . foo0s _ £000%

Recewvable from subsidiary underiakings 13 501

Payable to subsidiary undertakings 229 3

(b} Transactions and balances during the year with entities who were related parties up to the date of Listing

Des¢ription of relationship Description of service Description of transactions
Exiting sharehclder Range of banking services on normal third Interest income receved Cash held on account (1)
party terms to the Group companies

(1) Income recewed during the year

2007 2006
£000’s £000's
Interest recaved 2,197 733
Income received up to the date of Listing was £767,000
Balances as at the year end
2007 2006
£000's £000’s
Cash held on account 51,315 24,837

Cash held on account at the date of Listing was £34,026,000
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Erratum

The Basic Earnings per share for 2007 was misstated in the above document. It should have
read 29.3p instead of the 25 Op that was stated.

The Drluted Earnings per share number was correctly reported at 18.5p.

The Company published the above correction by RNS on 19 October 2007,




